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Corporate Information
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CHINA (THE “PRC”)
No. 3 Taihong Road
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Kunshan

Jiangsu Province
PRC

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.gtechglobal.com
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Corporate Profile
/L\\ ﬁ.l j|\n H

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading mid-to-high end
camera and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group is primarily
engaged in the design, research and development, manufacture
and sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules,
and centred on mid-to-high end camera and fingerprint recognition
module market for Chinese branded smart phone and tablet PC
manufacturers. The Group is one of the first few manufacturers in
the PRC to use chip on board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”)
technologies and molding on board (“MOB”) and molding on chip
(“MOC”) technologies in the manufacture of camera modules, as
well as to produce ultra-thin camera modules with resolutions of
20 mega pixels and above, dual camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules with various technologies on a mass
production scale. Currently, the Group’s product mix covers
camera modules ranging from 3 mega pixels to 24 mega pixels,
dual camera modules, fingerprint recognition modules and outdoor
sports camera modules. The Group is dedicated to become a
technology company which provides intelligent vision systematic
solutions for intelligent mobile terminals, through continuously
building up capabilities of optical design, computing vision, deep
learning and system integration, with an aim to let the machines
see clearly and better understand the world.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

EXBMB(EE)ER2A (XA
al) ZREMEAR ([AEE])B—
FREARKME ([HE])BLEHTH
R AR A R AR R AR R
AEBEERERT % BENH
EREBBEERIENEBEE W IAF
BaoE B FHEFRERRERNT
= i 98 {5 9B AR AR A 5 AR B AR AR T 35
T -AKELSTEIBRAENBERER
AREPRAR LA HE(COB) EE
& & H K (COF) it » #k £ 22 3 (MOB) &
BRZE (MOC) &RIMT A R EES B A E
K 3HE2,0008 B EMIA LHBERERE -
ERGEBEEEM TR T R2ENEEE
MEERZ— B AREBEREET
—HERERE_TUHAERENEER
B ERERERA  BHIGEREENP
SNEBHEREBEAST - BB TEHBEEN
BRI -AEREGNREEBLESRE
ROTEZEN REBBRNIRKES—
ROBEBSRmREEERERSL
BATEROBREE UBEKSEEE
168 B flEl tth R



(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

Five-Year Financial Summary
hEFEHMBHE

(ARE T BREEXSHIEHEI)

BEZE+=-HA=+—BHLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
s -~ “F-EF ZF-WmF  ZF-=
Consolidated
=
Operating results rexE
Revenue WA 7,938,958 4,991,158 2,202,395 2,161,084 1,410,613
Gross profit EF 882,733 422,437 240,571 352,579 234,046
Finance costs MEKA (16,912) (5,548) (9,948) 23,171) (9,010)
Profit before taxation B B A1 4 A1 509,515 214,587 114,701 239,077 188,172
Income tax FTisi (73,238) (23,832) (12,702) (43,571) (25,011)
Profit for the year FERHEF 436,277 190,755 101,999 195,506 163,161
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company RABIRRE 436,277 190,755 101,999 195,506 163,161
Non-controlling interests AR RS - _ _ _ _
436,277 190,755 101,999 195,506 163,161
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFRBHE

(In Renminbi (“RMB’) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

(ARBTT &K

&

B =B 1EHEFS))

BE+t-A=+—HLEFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
-t — T F C—E-RF CE-@HmFE CZT-=F
Consolidated
cXid
Basic earnings per share BERGR AT
(RMB cents) (ARES) 39.8 18.4 10.1 31.8 32.6
Diluted earnings per share BEERAT
(RMB cents) (AR¥5) 38.9 18.1 9.8 29.6 30.9
Assets and liabilities EERER
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,953,154 826,185 453,930 359,954 294,174
Current assets mEEE 4,147,096 3,604,144 1,536,731 1,942,579 1,468,266
Total assets BEE4E 6,100,250 4,520,329 1,990,661 2,302,533 1,762,440
Bank borrowings RITER 1,078,119 335,432 142,164 712,679 427,581
Other liabilities Hi &5 2,876,474 2,616,932 630,940 465,566 1,066,260
Total liabilities =Ligt 3,954,593 2,952,364 773,104 1,178,245 1,493,841
Net assets EEFE 2,145,657 1,567,965 1,217,557 1,124,288 268,599
Total equity EEHE 2,145,657 1,567,965 1,217,557 1,124,288 268,599
Key Financial Ratio TERKLE
Gross profit margin (%) E 72 (%) 11.1% 8.5% 10.9% 16.30% 16.60%
Net profit margin (%) ﬂﬂ%a%) 5.5% 3.8% 4.6% 9.00% 11.60%
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BEARAEBHLE (%)
~(HEtE1) 50.2% 21.4% 11.7% 63.40% 213.60%
Rate of return on common FEEERE %)
Stockholders’ equity (%) N 20.3% 12.2% 8.4% 17.4% 60.7%
Current ratio (times) (Note 2)  RENEL & (%)
(Haz2) 1.1 1.3 2.0 1.7 1.1
Quick ratio (times) (Note 3) REL = (fF)
(K153 0.9 1.0 1.7 1.5 1.0
Net asset value per share ARERIEFREA
attributable to owners of EEERFEE
the Company 1.92 1.45 1.18 112 0.54
Price per share as at 31 +=-A=+—~H
December (HKD) FREHR
(B%T) 11.00 4.00 1.59 2.20 N/A
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) ~ M&BXE (fizt4) 23.10 20.29 13.19 5.46 N/A
Market capitalization as at 31 +— A =+—HM{E
December (HKD thousand) (BETIT) 12,271,567 4,327,084 1,634,447 2,200,000 N/A
Dividend per share (RMB cents) &R 8.
(AE#5) 7.80 3.50 - 4,06 =
Dividend yield (%) BB Y g & 0.90% 1.21% - 2.10% -
EBITDA (Note 5) BHITE REHEA
FE (Hiz6) 662,232 284,155 167,098 293,574 207,297
Note 1:  Gearing ratio represents the balance of bank borrowings and — #/7#71 © EAAEBLRIEBEF HARNRITE
related parties’ loans as of the end of the year/period divided by REEELERRERUNEEF HR
total equity as of the end of the year/period. KR 4058
Note 2:  Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total  A/i22 © REBLREBREF HRORDEESL
current liabilities as of the end of the year/period. ) Bl ARE BEETE- e
Note 3:  Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories  A7i13 : RBLEREBEF RN THEEL
divided by total current liabilities as of the end of the year/ BEREATFEBRUGBDEERE:
eriod.
Note 4: grice earnings ratio represents the market price of shares Afit4 : WEREHEF, HIROBRZETNERIA
divided by earnings per share as of the end of the year/period. B Fhkase ) .
Note 5:  EBITDA represents earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) + A#/i£5: EBITDAEEFRIFE (EBIT) +IT&EEA
depreciation cost + amortization cost. +HEER -
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Chairman’s Statement
FRE®RE

Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”), the
fourth annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
since its listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, both the global and the PRC economies were
in the courses of recovery. According to the data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics of China on 18 January 2018,
China’s gross domestic product (GDP) amounted to approximately
RMB82,712.2 billion in 2017, representing an increase of 6.9%
over the previous year, achieving the first increase in GDP growth
rate since 2011. It has been pointed out in the Report on the Work
of the Government delivered by Mr. Li Kegiang, Premier of the
State Council, at the First Session of the 13th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China held on 5 March 2018
that the target for GDP growth of China in 2018 has been set at
around 6.5%, and the Chinese economy will remain capable of
maintaining a steady growth. On the other hand, protectionism in
some countries is rising, adversely affecting the trend of economic
globalization, which hinders the growth of the world economy
with challenges and risks. At the same time, according to some
professional research institutions, the growth in shipment of
smartphones may slow down due to the extension of smartphone
replacement cycle. Although China’s smartphone brands received
better recognition from customers on product design and cost/
price performance through continuous product innovation and
effective marketing, they need to tackle various barriers such as
trade protection in some countries. As a result, the overall growth
rate slowed down from the previous year. Nevertheless, we still
considered camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
to be one of the consumers’ most concerned smartphone
components. The continuous pursuit of better images has further
driven the improvement of camera modules with progressive
transition from 2-dimension to 3-dimension. The demand for
privacy protection of smartphones has further increased the
popularity of fingerprint recognition modules. This has promoted
the steady development of the supply chain of camera modules
and fingerprint recognition modules. Through relentless efforts, the
Group has comprehensively demonstrated its excellence in the
design, research and development, manufacture and after-sales
of mid-to-high end camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules, and successfully acquired camera module supplier
qualification from Huawei, as well as dual camera module supplier
qualifications from vivo and many other well-known brands.
Consequently, the customer and product mixes improved greatly,
and the Group’s business achieved a rapid growth during the Year.
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Looking back to the Year, with the trust and support of our core
customers and the relentless efforts of all of our employees,
the revenue of the Group recorded a rapid growth, driven by a
substantial increase in the sales volume of fingerprint recognition
modules and significant optimization of the product mix of
camera modules. The sales volume of camera modules reached
approximately 172.45 million units, representing a decrease of
approximately 2.8% as compared with that of 2016 (approximately
177.40 million units), while the sales volume of fingerprint
recognition modules reached approximately 80.73 million units,
representing an increase of approximately 285.5% as compared
with that of 2016 (approximately 20.94 million units). The revenue
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB7,938,958,000,
representing an increase of approximately 59.1% as compared
with that of 2016 (approximately RMB4,991,158,000), among
which, the revenue of camera modules reached approximately
RMB5,901,798,000, representing an increase of approximately
38.1% as compared with that of 2016 (approximately
RMB4,274,867,000), while the revenue of fingerprint recognition
modules reached approximately RMB2,037,160,000, representing
an increase of 184.4% as compared with that of 2016
(approximately RMB716,291,000). The year-on-year growth in
revenue of camera modules was faster than that of the sales
volume, mainly due to the surge of average selling price of camera
modules to approximately RMB34.22 (2016: approximately
RMB24.09) as a result of the significant
product mix of camera modules and the significant increase in

enhancement of the

the proportion of dual camera modules. The year-on-year growth
in revenue of fingerprint recognition modules was slower than
that of the sales volume, mainly due to a decline in the average
selling price of fingerprint recognition modules to approximately
RMB25.23 (2016: approximately RMB34.20) as a result of the
change in the product mix of fingerprint recognition modules
and a significant decrease in the selling price driven by material
cost. The overall product average selling price was approximately
RMB31.36, representing an increase of approximately RMB6.20
(approximately 24.6%) as compared with that of 2016 (2016:
approximately RMB25.16).
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Chairman’s Statement
FRE®RE

During the Year, the gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 11.1%, representing an increase of approximately
2.6 percentage points as compared with approximately 8.5% of
2016. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to a year-on-year increase in the gross profit margin of camera
modules due to an increase in the added value of camera modules
resulting from the significant enhancement of product mix of
camera modules, significant increase in the proportion of dual
camera modules and single camera modules with resolutions of
13 mega pixels and above as compared with that of the last year.
At the same time, the gross profit margin of fingerprint recognition
modules decreased due to the intensified market competition,
despite the fact that a significant expansion of the sales scale of
the fingerprint recognition modules helped reduce the marginal
cost.

During the Year, the Group has proactively responded to the
market demand for single and dual camera modules with higher
pixels and developed the mid-to-high end camera modules
with resolutions of 13 mega pixels and above. The total sales
volume of camera modules with resolutions of 13 mega pixels
and above significantly increased to approximately 83.05 million
units (2016: approximately 41.48 million units), which accounted
for approximately 48.2% of the Group’s total sales volume of
camera modules for the Year (2016: approximately 23.4%), and
approximately 75.1% of the Group’s total revenue of the camera
modules for the Year (2016: approximately 39.8%), among which,
the sales volume of the dual camera modules was approximately
20.78 million units, accounting for approximately 12.0% of the
Group’s total sales volume of camera modules for the Year (2016:
approximately 0.9%). The rapid increase in the sales volume
and higher proportion of mid-to-high end camera modules has
demonstrated the increasing market recognition of the Group’s
mid-to-high end products, which reflected the Group’s stronger
competitiveness in the mid-to-high end camera module products
and laid a solid foundation for further optimization of the product
mix of camera modules of the Group in the future.
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Meanwhile, the Group’s sales volume of fingerprint recognition
modules for the Year amounted to approximately 80.73 million
units (2016: approximately 20.94 million units), which accounted
for approximately 31.9% of the Group’s total sales volume for
the Year (2016: approximately 10.6%), and approximately 25.7%
of the Group’s total revenue for the Year (2016: approximately
14.4%), among which, the fingerprint recognition modules that
adopted cover lens technique accounted for approximately 25.0%
of the total sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules (2016:
approximately 35.3%). The year-on-year decline in the proportion
of the fingerprint recognition modules that adopted cover lens
technique was mainly affected by the introduction of full screen
design of smartphones. The rapid increase in the sales volume of
fingerprint recognition modules was benefited from, on one hand,
the rapid growth in demand from smartphone brands for fingerprint
recognition modules, and, on the other hand, the higher market
recognition of the Group’s manufacturing ability of fingerprint
recognition modules, which enhanced the market share of the
Group’s fingerprint recognition modules.

During the Year, the Group continued to strengthen its research
and development on camera modules, in order to develop more
advanced functionalities and products. On one hand, the Group
vigorously promoted the development of miniaturized technology
for camera modules in response to the demand for smaller camera
modules due to the continuous growth in dual camera modules
and gradual popularity of multi-camera modules in the future.
Research in miniaturized technology for modules such as molding
on chip, molding on board and holding on chip has resulted in
substantial progress. Camera modules that adopted molding
on chip and molding on board technology have achieved bulk
deliveries for the Year, which enables the Group to become one of
the few earliest companies in the stage of mass production and
sales of camera modules with miniaturized module technology
in Mainland China. On the other hand, the Group continued to
strengthen the development of high-end modules with resolutions
of 16 mega pixels and above, dual camera modules and 3D
camera modules, especially the research and development in
the production of dual camera modules and 3D structure light
modules without AA process. As of the end of the Year, scaffold
dual camera modules without AA process have already achieved
bulk deliveries. At the same time, the Group also focused on the
research and development of under-glass fingerprint products, and
has mastered the various principles and manufacturing technology
of optical under-glass fingerprint products, which laid a solid
foundation for the development of under-glass fingerprint products
in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement
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AWARDS AND HONOURS

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to our customer-
oriented service strategies, always considered the provision
of good personal experience for customers as our operation
direction and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’
needs in product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product
quality and technology innovation, and earned high recognition
of the Group’s products and services from the industry, local
governments and our customers.

In April 2017, Kunshan Q Technology Limited (“Kunshan QT
China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, won the “High
Quality Award” granted by vivo, one of the most well-known global
handset brands, becoming the only camera module supplier that
won this award;

In August 2017, Chengdu Q Technology Limited (“Chengdu QT”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was successfully
recognized as a High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”)
and obtained the recognition certificate as a HNTE with a validity
period of three years, becoming the second HNTE of the Group
which obtained the recognition certificate following Kunshan QT
China.

In October 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Best Quality
Award” granted by Xiaomi, one of the most well-known global
handset brands, becoming the only camera module and fingerprint
recognition module supplier that won the quality related award in
2017;

In October 2017, Mr. Wang Jiangiang, Executive Director and
CEO of the Company, was granted “Honorary Citizen of Kunshan”
by Kunshan Municipal Government, becoming the second senior
manager of the Group who has been granted such an honour
following Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman;
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In November 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Global Best
Partner Award” granted by ZTE Corporation, one of the most well-
known global handset companies, becoming the only camera
module supplier that won this highest award in 2017;

In November 2017, Kunshan QT China was recognized as the
“Corporate Technical Center” of Jiangsu Province by Jiangsu
Economic and Information Technology Commission;

In November 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Best
Collaboration Partner” granted by Huawei, one of the most well-
known global handset brands, becoming the only fingerprint
recognition module supplier that won this prestige award in 2017;

In December 2017, the “Q TECH fingerprint recognition modules”
manufactured by Kunshan QT China was recognized as the 2017
“Jiangsu Famous-brand Product” by Jiangsu Strategic Top Brand
Promotion Committee;

In January 2018, “2017 China Financial Market Award” hosted by
China Financial Market, a well-known financial magazine, granted
Mr. Fan Fugiang, CFO of the Company, the “Best CFO of the Year”
honorary title. The appraisal organizations of the activity included
The Listed Companies Council of Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, The Chinese Asset Management Association of
Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators Limited, China Mergers & Acquisitions
Association Hong Kong Branch, Chinese Securities Association of
Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong and other authority
organizations.

The aforementioned awards and honours have reflected the high
recognition by local governments, our core customers and all
sectors of society, which has further enhanced our confidence in
further implementing the long-term strategy to develop intelligent
visual system products, further consolidated our confidence in
driving the product mix optimization strategies and providing
customers with good personal experience, and also further
strengthened our confidence in maintaining a sound operation.
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PROSPECTS

Although the Group recorded a significant growth in the operating
results for the Year as compared with that of 2016, coupled with
the significant optimization of the product mix of camera modules,
which led to the significant increase in our comprehensive gross
profit margin as compared with that of 2016, the Directors are
well aware that 2018 will still be full of challenges. On one hand,
coupled with the rising of the protectionism in some countries,
some economic powers may enter into the interest rate hike cycle.
The market liquidity will be tightened with the shrinking balance
sheet by some countries or economies affecting the overall trend
of economic globalization. Therefore, the growth of the global
economy will still be confronted with challenges and risks, and
the prospect of the intelligent mobile communication terminal
industry also remains highly uncertain under the macro-economic
environment. Meanwhile, according to professional research
institutions, the extended replacement cycle of smartphones will
lead to the slower growth of the shipment volume of smartphones,
resulting in lower or even zero growth rate of the industry. On the
other hand, although the customer mix of the Group has been
significantly enhanced with establishment of supply cooperation
relationship with famous brands in the world such as Huawei,
Xiaomi, vivo, OPPO, ZTE and Lenovo, major customers of the
Group remain to be smartphone manufacturers in Mainland
China with relatively high regional concentration. The probable
trade protection under protectionism may pose new barriers
for their entry into overseas markets, and affect their overseas
expansion. Meanwhile, overseas smartphone brands are also
actively scrambling for market share with launch of new products,
which may compete with smartphone manufacturers in China.
Therefore, our existing customers may not be able to record the
same growth rate as in the past, thereby affecting our sales.
Moreover, the exchange rates of RMB against USD experienced
significant appreciation for the Year, but may fluctuate in the future
due to various factors such as politics, economy and supply and
demand. As it is difficult in the short run to adjust the Group’s
business model, under which sales revenue will be settled in RMB
but overseas purchases of several core components will be settled
in USD, the exchange risks may still have impacts on the operation
of the Group in 2018. However, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) remain unswerving in continuously promoting the
development of intelligent visual system products, and cautiously
optimistic about the development of the camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules in the coming year, and believe
that:
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(i

Camera modules will remain one of the end-consumers’
most concerned smartphone components, as consumers
prefer to take photos with portable and convenient
smartphones instead of cameras, and they hope to have
more video functions in their smartphones, which will
lead to continuous improvement in product specifications
of camera modules. The proportion of products with
resolutions of 8 mega pixels and below remains as high as
approximately 51.8% during the Year. The Group currently
has obtained the qualification for supplying high pixel single
camera module products to all customers, which will help
the Group to further uplift the shipment proportion of single
camera modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and
above.

With the increasingly improved dual camera module
solutions, consumers’ recognition of the photographing
functions of dual camera modules has been continuously
enhanced. Smartphone brands may likely adopt dual
camera modules, which were previously equipped in high-
end flagship phones only, into other mid-end phones.
This may lead to a remarkable improvement in market
penetration of dual camera modules in the future. The
Group has obtained the qualification for supplying dual
camera module products to major customers except
Huawei, and becomes the main supplier of dual camera
modules of several high-end flagship phones for core
customers in 2017, which can help the Group further
increase the shipment proportion of dual camera modules
and further optimize the product specification of camera
modules in 2018.

(i)

(i
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(i)

Camera modules are one of the most important human-
machinery interactive interfaces during the Internet of
Things era. A famous worldwide brand has launched
smartphones with 3D structure light modules with functions
such as face recognition in 2017. Smartphone brands in
Mainland China will probably follow with their launch of
smartphone with 3D modules. The Group has made long-
term preparations in 3D module field. If smartphone brands
in Mainland China launch smartphones with 3D modules
as scheduled, the Group may be benefited in gaining new
momentum for the growth of camera modules. In addition,
the on-going demand for camera modules by products
such as AR, VR, MR and motor vehicles may give a new
growth potential for the volume and value expansion of
camera modules.

Nowadays consumers are accustomed to mobile payment
via smartphones, and many of them regard smartphones
as important official and personal data storage tools.
Therefore, consumers have continuously increased their
demand on the security of smartphones. On one hand, 3D
modules may satisfy the demand through face recognition.
But due to the higher cost and incomplete supply chain of
3D modules, traditional capacitive fingerprint recognition
modules with increasingly mature technology and lower
cost will probably remain an important choice as the
standard configuration of smartphones. Therefore, the
market penetration of capacitive fingerprint recognition
modules may continue to grow. The Group has established
supply cooperative relationship in terms of capacitive
fingerprint recognition modules with most of the Chinese
renowned smartphone brands, which can help the Group
increase its market share of the capacitive fingerprint
recognition modules in 2018. Meanwhile, the Group has
made long-term preparations for developing the optical
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules, so it will
be ready to be benefited and gain from the potential for
growth in the fingerprint recognition modules if the potential
customers launch smartphones with optical under-glass
fingerprint recognition modules as scheduled.
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Hence, the Directors believe that opportunities coexist with
challenges. The Group will adhere to the mission of “providing
intelligent vision systematic products for intelligent mobile
terminals” and strengthen its capacity development in three
aspects, namely optical design, computing vision and system
integration, continue to enhance the R&D of new products and
new processes and improve its precision manufacturing capability,
and proactively carry out marketing activities to enhance its
customer relationship, aggressively expand overseas renowned
smartphone branded customers and continuously enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group. We will focus on developing
high-end camera modules with resolutions of 16 mega pixels and
above, dual camera modules, 3D structure light modules and
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules, provide assistance
to Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. (“Newmax Technology”), our
associate, a company listed on the Taipei Exchange (stock
code: 3630), in the development of camera module lens and 3D
structure light module VCSEL Lens, with an effort to strengthen the
technical cooperation and resource integration in image algorithm
of dual/multiple camera modules and strengthen the technical
cooperation and resource integration between camera modules
and key components such as lens, at the same time striving to
achieve a breakthrough in the application of camera modules in
non-mobile-phone sector. The Group endeavours to achieve the
following objectives: (i) Shipment of camera modules in 2018 will
increase by approximately 10% to 20% over the previous year; (ii)
Shipment of fingerprint recognition modules in 2018 will increase
by approximately 20% to 30% over the previous year; (iii) While
constantly reviewing customers rolling demand and the Group’s
business plan, production capacity of camera modules will be
gradually expanded to not more than 45 million per month by
the end of 2018, including production capacity of dual camera
modules of approximately 10 million per month. The Directors are
confident in leading the Group to embrace the challenges, and
make further efforts to achieve good development and strive to
create greater value for the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, both the global and the PRC economies were
in the courses of recovery. According to the data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics of China on 18 January 2018,
China’s gross domestic product (GDP) amounted to approximately
RMB82,712.2 billion in 2017, representing an increase of 6.9%
over the previous year, achieving the first increase in GDP growth
rate since 2011. It has been pointed out in the Report on the Work
of the Government delivered by Mr. Li Kegiang, Premier of the
State Council, at the First Session of the 13th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China held on 5 March 2018
that the target for GDP growth of China in 2018 has been set at
around 6.5%, and the Chinese economy will remain capable of
maintaining a steady growth. On the other hand, protectionism in
some countries is rising, adversely affecting the trend of economic
globalization, which hinders the growth of the world economy
with challenges and risks. At the same time, according to some
professional research institutions, the growth in shipment of
smartphones may slow down due to the extension of smartphone
replacement cycle. Although China’s smartphone brands received
better recognition from customers on product design and cost/
price performance through continuous product innovation and
effective marketing, they need to tackle various barriers such as
trade protection in some countries. As a result, the overall growth
rate slowed down from the previous year. Nevertheless, we still
considered camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
to be one of the consumers’ most concerned smartphone
components. The continuous pursuit of better images has further
driven the improvement of camera modules with progressive
transition from 2-dimension to 3-dimension. The demand for
privacy protection of smartphones has further increased the
popularity of fingerprint recognition modules. This has promoted
the steady development of the supply chain of camera modules
and fingerprint recognition modules. Through relentless efforts, the
Group has comprehensively demonstrated its excellence in the
design, research and development, manufacture and after-sales
of mid-to-high end camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules, and successfully acquired camera module supplier
qualification from Huawei, as well as dual camera module supplier
qualifications from vivo and many other well-known brands.
Consequently, the customer and product mixes improved greatly,
and the Group’s business achieved a rapid growth during the Year.

BEEWED

£ e

RAFE  2EREEMTBREESEER-
RIEFEBERGTBR2018F1 18 A Mk
AR 2017FRBEBERNAEAE (GDP)HA
R#827,122(8 7 - btk EF 12 K6.9% « 1 K K
BEIR2011F LR R BT - Bk AR S
B EEN2018EIASH RN T=E 2 &
ARREERGE—REEMIEIBNIER
HHIRT2018F EH B KN AGDPIERTEH B
BARESRIL A FRLENE LEERTE
BigR-BE—FE BLrERORKREE
ETNEER B REMNBEHREE <
S REERIERDAT IR FIRRR - 8211
F - BEXLEEZRAFEREOEE ST
BREAREMER FEEREFREEHE
RIZRRE A LN EIE  PEIS TR M
B AR FEE R E M AT A I A T 5 2 8
FREEEHEERRAEEENEELE
TEESMNRA BEXLEROARER SR
EERNE A ERERFAERL—FER
FRRNEE - SESR TN - TRAPMIR AT R EEE AR
BHBABEANARBEESZAB TN E 6

K2 — HREGEBNIFEBRKSEE
GEEANREE—DRA AH2DES M
DFERE - MBS e FHBALARES KA
SRIBEGHERNRAN T R RE— IR M
HERG SRR ARG RIS A e SRR
BR - AEEBARFENS N TORTER
= U R 5 SRR AR N B A R IR 4B B RO RR BT
e EEMER T EOEBEE N JERERSF
ZELoEEERARERER KIS vivoE
ZEE2REEREEANHERER 26
BEFEBNEREEDEUKNIERS  UEH
REBNRAFEER TEKHRERER -

20175 F8% E#BE (£E)BERLTF

21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWED

Looking back to the Year, with the trust and support of our core
customers and the relentless efforts of all of our employees,
the revenue of the Group recorded a rapid growth, driven
by a substantial increase in the sales volume of fingerprint
recognition modules and significant optimization of the product
mix of camera modules. The sales volume of camera modules
reached approximately 172.45 million units, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.8% as compared with that of
2016 (approximately 177.40 million units), which was mainly
due to keen market competition and the Group’s misjudgment
in production capacity planning in the second half of 2017, as
a result of which the Group encountered a bottleneck in terms
of its production capacity and had to withdraw from some
mid-to-low end projects; while the sales volume of fingerprint
recognition modules reached approximately 80.73 million
units, representing an increase of approximately 285.5% as
compared with that of 2016 (approximately 20.94 million units),
which was mainly due to the continuous improvement in the
customer structure of the fingerprint recognition modules with
increasing market share. The revenue of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB7,938,958,000, representing an increase
of approximately 59.1% as compared with that of 2016
(approximately RMB4,991,158,000), among which, the revenue
of camera modules reached approximately RMB5,901,798,000,
representing an increase of approximately 38.1% as compared
with that of 2016 (approximately RMB4,274,867,000), while the
revenue of fingerprint recognition modules reached approximately
RMB2,037,160,000, representing an increase of 184.4% as
compared with that of 2016 (approximately RMB716,291,000).
The year-on-year growth in revenue of camera modules was faster
than that of the sales volume, mainly due to the surge of average
selling price of camera modules to approximately RMB34.22
(2016: approximately RMB24.09) as a result of the significant
enhancement of the product mix of camera modules and the
significant increase in the proportion of dual camera modules. The
year-on-year growth in revenue of fingerprint recognition modules
was slower than that of the sales volume, mainly due to a decline
in the average selling price of fingerprint recognition modules
to approximately RMB25.23 (2016: approximately RMB34.20)
as a result of the change in the product mix of fingerprint
recognition modules and a significant decrease in the selling
price driven by material cost. The overall product average selling
price was approximately RMB31.36, representing an increase of
approximately RMB6.20 (approximately 24.6%) as compared with
that of 2016 (2016: approximately RMB25.16).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, the gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 11.1%, representing an increase of approximately
2.6 percentage points as compared with approximately 8.5% of
2016. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to a year-on-year increase in the gross profit margin of camera
modules due to an increase in the added value of camera modules
resulting from the significant enhancement of product mix of
camera modules, significant increase in the proportion of dual
camera modules and single camera modules with resolutions of
13 mega pixels and above as compared with that of the last year.
At the same time, the gross profit margin of fingerprint recognition
modules decreased due to the intensified market competition,
despite the fact that a significant expansion of the sales scale of
the fingerprint recognition modules helped reduce the marginal
cost.

During the Year, the Group has proactively responded to the
market demand for single and dual camera modules with higher
pixels and developed the mid-to-high end camera modules
with resolutions of 13 mega pixels and above. The total sales
volume of camera modules with resolutions of 13 mega pixels
and above significantly increased to approximately 83.05 million
units (2016: approximately 41.48 million units), which accounted
for approximately 48.2% of the Group’s total sales volume of
camera modules for the Year (2016: approximately 23.4%), and
approximately 75.1% of the Group’s total revenue of the camera
modules for the Year (2016: approximately 39.8%), among which,
the sales volume of the dual camera modules was approximately
20.78 million units, accounting for approximately 12.0% of the
Group’s total sales volume of camera modules for the Year (2016:
approximately 0.9%). The rapid increase in the sales volume
and higher proportion of mid-to-high end camera modules has
demonstrated the increasing market recognition of the Group’s
mid-to-high end products, which reflected the Group’s stronger
competitiveness in the mid-to-high end camera module products
and laid a solid foundation for further optimization of the product
mix of camera modules of the Group in the future.
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Meanwhile, the Group’s sales volume of fingerprint recognition
modules for the Year amounted to approximately 80.73 million
units (2016: approximately 20.94 million units), which accounted
for approximately 31.9% of the Group’s total sales volume for
the Year (2016: approximately 10.6%), and approximately 25.7%
of the Group’s total revenue for the Year (2016: approximately
14.4%),
adopted cover lens technique accounted for approximately 25.0%

among which, the fingerprint recognition modules that

of the total sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules (2016:
approximately 35.3%). The year-on-year decline in the proportion
of the fingerprint recognition modules that adopted cover lens
technique was mainly affected by the introduction of full screen
design of smartphones. The rapid increase in the sales volume of
fingerprint recognition modules was benefited from, on one hand,
the rapid growth in demand from smartphone brands for fingerprint
recognition modules, and, on the other hand, the higher market
recognition of the Group’s manufacturing ability of fingerprint
recognition modules, which enhanced the market share of the
Group’s fingerprint recognition modules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, the Group continued to strengthen its research
and development on camera modules, in order to develop more
advanced functionalities and products. On one hand, the Group
vigorously promoted the development of miniaturized technology
for camera modules in response to the demand for smaller camera
modules due to the continuous growth in dual camera modules
and gradual popularity of multi-camera modules in the future.
Research in miniaturized technology for modules such as molding
on chip, molding on board and holding on chip has resulted in
substantial progress. Camera modules that adopted molding
on chip and molding on board technology have achieved bulk
deliveries for the Year, which enables the Group to become one of
the few earliest companies in the stage of mass production and
sales of camera modules with miniaturized module technology
in Mainland China. On the other hand, the Group continued to
strengthen the development of high-end modules with resolutions
of 16 mega pixels and above, dual camera modules and 3D
camera modules, especially the research and development in
the production of dual camera modules and 3D structure light
modules without AA process. As of the end of the Year, scaffold
dual camera modules without AA process have already achieved
bulk deliveries. At the same time, the Group also focused on the
research and development of under-glass fingerprint products, and
has mastered the various principles and manufacturing technology
of optical under-glass fingerprint products, which laid a solid
foundation for the development of under-glass fingerprint products
in the future.

AWARDS AND HONOURS

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to our customer-
oriented service strategies, always considered the provision
of good personal experience for customers as our operation
direction and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’
needs in product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product
quality and technology innovation, and earned high recognition
of the Group’s products and services from the industry, local
governments and our customers.
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In April 2017, Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, won the “High Quality Award” granted by vivo, one
of the most well-known global handset brands, becoming the only
camera module supplier that won this award;

In August 2017, Chengdu QT, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was successfully recognized as a HNTE and obtained
the recognition certificate as a HNTE with a validity period of three
years, becoming the second HNTE of the Group which obtained
the recognition certificate following Kunshan QT China.

In October 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Best Quality
Award” granted by Xiaomi, one of the most well-known global
handset brands, becoming the only camera module and fingerprint
recognition module supplier that won the quality related award in
2017;

In October 2017, Mr. Wang Jiangiang, Executive Director and
CEO of the Company, was granted “Honorary Citizen of Kunshan”
by Kunshan Municipal Government, becoming the second senior
manager of the Group who has been granted such an honour
following Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman;

In November 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Global Best
Partner Award” granted by ZTE Corporation, one of the most well-
known global handset companies, becoming the only camera
module supplier that won this highest award in 2017;

In November 2017, Kunshan QT China was recognized as the
“Corporate Technical Center” of Jiangsu Province by Jiangsu
Economic and Information Technology Commission;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In November 2017, Kunshan QT China won the “Best
Collaboration Partner” granted by Huawei, one of the most well-
known global handset brands, becoming the only fingerprint
recognition module supplier that won this prestige award in 2017;

In December 2017, the “Q TECH fingerprint recognition modules”
manufactured by Kunshan QT China was recognized as the 2017
“Jiangsu Famous-brand Product” by Jiangsu Strategic Top Brand
Promotion Committee;

In January 2018, “2017 China Financial Market Award” hosted by
China Financial Market, a well-known financial magazine, granted
Mr. Fan Fugiang, CFO of the Company, the “Best CFO of the Year”
honorary title. The appraisal organizations of the activity included
The Listed Companies Council of Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, The Chinese Asset Management Association of
Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators Limited, China Mergers & Acquisitions
Association Hong Kong Branch, Chinese Securities Association of
Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong and other authority
organizations.

The aforementioned awards and honours have reflected the high
recognition by local governments, our core customers and all
sectors of society, which has further enhanced our confidence in
further implementing the long-term strategy to develop intelligent
visual system products, further consolidated our confidence in
driving the product mix optimization strategies and providing
customers with good personal experience, and also further
strengthened our confidence in maintaining a sound operation.
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PROSPECTS

Although the Group recorded a significant growth in the operating
results for the Year as compared with that of 2016, coupled with
the significant optimization of the product mix of camera modules,
which led to the significant increase in our comprehensive gross
profit margin as compared with that of 2016, the Directors are
well aware that 2018 will still be full of challenges. On one hand,
coupled with the rising of the protectionism in some countries,
some economic powers may enter into the interest rate hike cycle.
The market liquidity will be tightened with the shrinking balance
sheet by some countries or economies affecting the overall trend
of economic globalization. Therefore, the growth of the global
economy will still be confronted with challenges and risks, and
the prospect of the intelligent mobile communication terminal
industry also remains highly uncertain under the macro-economic
environment. Meanwhile, according to professional research
institutions, the extended replacement cycle of smartphones will
lead to the slower growth of the shipment volume of smartphones,
resulting in lower or even zero growth rate of the industry. On the
other hand, although the customer mix of the Group has been
significantly enhanced with establishment of supply cooperation
relationship with famous brands in the world such as Huawei,
Xiaomi, vivo, OPPO, ZTE and Lenovo, major customers of the
Group remain to be smartphone manufacturers in Mainland
China with relatively high regional concentration. The probable
trade protection under protectionism may pose new barriers
for their entry into overseas markets, and affect their overseas
expansion. Meanwhile, overseas smartphone brands are also
actively scrambling for market share with launch of new products,
which may compete with smartphone manufacturers in China.
Therefore, our existing customers may not be able to record the
same growth rate as in the past, thereby affecting our sales.
Moreover, the exchange rates of RMB against USD experienced
significant appreciation for the Year, but may fluctuate in the future
due to various factors such as politics, economy and supply and
demand. As it is difficult in the short run to adjust the Group’s
business model, under which sales revenue will be settled in RMB
but overseas purchases of several core components will be settled
in USD, the exchange risks may still have impacts on the operation
of the Group in 2018. However, the Directors remain unswerving
in continuously promoting the development of intelligent visual
system products, and cautiously optimistic about the development
of the camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules in the
coming year, and believe that:
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Camera modules will remain one of the end-consumers’
most concerned smartphone components, as consumers
prefer to take photos with portable and convenient
smartphones instead of cameras, and they hope to have
more video functions in their smartphones, which will
lead to continuous improvement in product specifications
of camera modules. The proportion of products with
resolutions of 8 mega pixels and below remains as high as
approximately 51.8% during the Year. The Group currently
has obtained the qualification for supplying high pixel single
camera module products to all customers, which will help
the Group to further uplift the shipment proportion of single
camera modules with resolutions of 10 mega pixels and
above.

With the increasingly improved dual camera module
solutions, consumers’ recognition of the photographing
functions of dual camera modules has been continuously
enhanced. Smartphone brands may likely adopt dual
camera modules, which were previously equipped in high-
end flagship phones only, into other mid-end phones.
This may lead to a remarkable improvement in market
penetration of dual camera modules in the future. The
Group has obtained the qualification for supplying dual
camera module products to major customers except
Huawei, and becomes the main supplier of dual camera
modules of several high-end flagship phones for core
customers in 2017, which can help the Group further
increase the shipment proportion of dual camera modules
and further optimize the product specification of camera
modules in 2018.

(i)
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Camera modules are one of the most important human-
machinery interactive interfaces during the Internet of
Things era. A famous worldwide brand has launched
smartphones with 3D structure light modules with functions
such as face recognition in 2017. Smartphone brands in
Mainland China will probably follow with their launch of
smartphone with 3D modules. The Group has made long-
term preparations in 3D module field. If smartphone brands
in Mainland China launch smartphones with 3D modules
as scheduled, the Group may be benefited in gaining new
momentum for the growth of camera modules. In addition,
the on-going demand for camera modules by products
such as AR, VR, MR and motor vehicles may give a new
growth potential for the volume and value expansion of
camera modules.

Nowadays consumers are accustomed to mobile payment
via smartphones, and many of them regard smartphones
as important official and personal data storage tools.
Therefore, consumers have continuously increased their
demand on the security of smartphones. On one hand, 3D
modules may satisfy the demand through face recognition.
But due to the higher cost and incomplete supply chain of
3D modules, traditional capacitive fingerprint recognition
modules with increasingly mature technology and lower
cost will probably remain an important choice as the
standard configuration of smartphones. Therefore, the
market penetration of capacitive fingerprint recognition
modules may continue to grow. The Group has established
supply cooperative relationship in terms of capacitive
fingerprint recognition modules with most of the Chinese
renowned smartphone brands, which can help the Group
increase its market share of the capacitive fingerprint
recognition modules in 2018. Meanwhile, the Group has
made long-term preparations for developing the optical
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules, so it will
be ready to be benefited and gain from the potential for
growth in the fingerprint recognition modules if the potential
customers launch smartphones with optical under-glass
fingerprint recognition modules as scheduled.
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Hence, the Directors believe that opportunities coexist with
challenges. The Group will adhere to the mission of “providing
intelligent vision systematic products for intelligent mobile
terminals” and strengthen its capacity development in three
aspects, namely optical design, computing vision and system
integration, continue to enhance the R&D of new products and
new processes and improve its precision manufacturing capability,
and proactively carry out marketing activities to enhance its
customer relationship, aggressively expand overseas renowned
smartphone branded customers and continuously enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group. We will focus on developing
high-end camera modules with resolutions of 16 mega pixels and
above, dual camera modules, 3D structure light modules and
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules, provide assistance
to Newmax Technology, our associate, in the development of
camera module lens and 3D structure light module VCSEL Lens,
with an effort to strengthen the technical cooperation and resource
integration in image algorithm of dual/multiple camera modules
and strengthen the technical cooperation and resource integration
between camera modules and key components such as lens, at
the same time striving to achieve a breakthrough in the application
of camera modules in non-mobile-phone sector. The Group
endeavours to achieve the following objectives: (i) Shipment of
camera modules in 2018 will increase by approximately 10% to
20% over the previous year; (i) Shipment of fingerprint recognition
modules in 2018 will increase by approximately 20% to 30% over
the previous year; (i) While constantly reviewing customers rolling
demand and the Group’s business plan, production capacity of
camera modules will be gradually expanded to not more than
45 million per month by the end of 2018, including production
capacity of dual camera modules of approximately 10 million
per month. The Directors are confident in leading the Group to
embrace the challenges, and make further efforts to achieve good
development and strive to create greater value for the shareholders
of the Company.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB7,938,958,000, representing an increase of approximately
59.1% as compared with approximately RMB4,991,158,000 of
2016. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to: (i) the
sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules amounted to
approximately 80.73 million units, representing an increase of
approximately 285.5% as compared with approximately 20.94
million units of 2016; and (i) the surge of average selling price
of camera modules amounted to approximately RMB34.22 as a
result of the obvious improvement in the product mix of camera
modules, representing an increase of approximately 42.0% as
compared with approximately RMB24.09 of 2016.

Cost of sales

For the Year, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB7,056,225,000, representing an increase of approximately
54.4% as compared with approximately RMB4,568,721,000 of
2016. The increase in the cost of sales was primarily attributed
to the increase in sales volume of fingerprint recognition modules
as well as the increase in sales size of both camera modules
and fingerprint recognition modules and resulted in that: (i) total
investments in raw materials increased by approximately 50.9% to
approximately RMB6,264,797,000 as compared with the 2016; (ii)
labour cost increased by approximately 84.8% to approximately
RMB371,086,000 as compared with 2016 due to an increase
in the total number of employees, staff under labour service
agreements and interns of the Group; (iii) depreciation cost from
production base and equipment being invested for expanding
the production capacity increased by approximately 109.1% to
approximately RMB107,444,000 as compared with 2016; and (iv)
sub-contracting charges increased by approximately 89.5% to
approximately RMB140,923,000 as compared with 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB882,733,000 (2016: approximately RMB422,437,000),
representing an increase of approximately 109.0% as compared
with 2016, while the gross profit margin was approximately
11.1% (2016: approximately 8.5%). The increase in gross profit
margin was mainly attributable to the significant increase in the
proportion of dual camera modules and single camera modules
with resolutions of 13 mega pixels and above as compared with
2016 as a result of the significant enhancement of product mix
of camera modules, which pushed up the added value of camera
module products and resulted in the year-on-year increase in
the gross profit margin of camera module products. Meanwhile,
although the obvious expansion of sales of fingerprint recognition
modules reduced the marginal cost, the gross profit margin of
fingerprint recognition modules decreased due to the intense
market competition.

Other revenue

For the Year, other revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB35,099,000, representing an increase of approximately
90.7% as compared with approximately RMB18,407,000 of 2016.
The increase in other revenue was primarily due to: () interest
income from the bank deposits of the Group was approximately
RMB18,377,000, representing an increase of approximately
331.8% as compared with approximately RMB4,256,000 of
2016; and (ii) the recognised government grants of the Group
was approximately RMB16,659,000, representing an increase
of approximately 22.3% as compared with approximately
RMB13,620,000 of 2016.
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Other net loss

For the Year, the Group had other net loss of approximately
RMB23,931,000, representing a decrease of approximately 47.0%
as compared with other net loss of approximately RMB45,172,000
in 2016. Such other net loss was primarily attributable to: (i)
net exchange gain recorded of approximately RMB41,918,000
due to the appreciation in exchange rates of RMB against US
dollar during the Year; (ii) the net realised and unrealised loss on
foreign currency option contracts entrusted in 2016 and early
2017 amounted to approximately RMB47,911,000; and (iii) the
estimated fair value loss of foreign currency forward contracts was
approximately RMB17,555,000.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB16,045,000, representing an
increase of approximately RMB6,383,000 or approximately 66.1%
as compared with approximately RMB9,662,000 of 2016. The ratio
of selling and distribution expenses in turnover was approximately
0.2%, which was at similar level of approximately 0.2% for 2016.
The increase in selling and distribution expenses was mainly
attributed to the increase of sales staff’s total salaries as a result
of the expansion in the sales scale and increase in number of staff,
and increase in entertainment expenses in relation to the sales
activities during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative and other operating expenses

For the Year, total administrative and other operating expenses
of the Group increased from approximately RMB41,311,000 of
2016 to approximately RMB64,955,000, representing an increase
of approximately RMB23,644,000 or approximately 57.2%. The
increase in administrative and other operating expenses was
mainly attributable to: (i) due to business expansion during the
Year, staff costs and other administrative expenses increased
accordingly, and the staff recruitment expenses increased
significantly from approximately RMB1,444,000 in 2016 to
approximately RMB24,441,000 for the Year, representing an
increase of approximately 1,592.6% in particularly for resolving
the abnormal capacity as a result of the difficulties in recruitment;
and (ii) the reversal of provision of allowance for doubtful debts
on trade receivables for the Year of approximately RMB9,555,000
as compared with approximately RMB9,400,000 provision of
allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables of 2016.

R&D expenses

For the Year, total R&D expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB269,556,000, representing an increase
of approximately 116.4% as compared with approximately
RMB124,564,000 of 2016. The increase in R&D expenses for
the Year was mainly attributable to the Group’s continuous
investments in the R&D of new products, new functionality and
new production techniques, so as to allow the Group to develop
camera module products with higher pixels, dual camera modules
products with different functions and applications, camera module
products with smaller size, 3D optical module products, camera
module products applied in automotive and smart home areas,
more miniature fingerprint recognition module products with higher
definition, fingerprint recognition module products under optical
screen, as well as to optimise and enhance the standards of
production automation.
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Finance costs

For the Year, the finance costs of the Group was approximately
RMB16,912,000, increased by approximately 204.8% from
approximately RMB5,548,000 of 2016, which was primarily due
to the combined effect of the year-on-year increase in the Group’s
daily average balance of bank borrowings as compared with 2016
and the increase in interest rate of USD borrowings.

Income tax expenses

For the Year, the income tax expenses of the Group increased
by approximately 207.3% from approximately RMB23,832,000
for 2016 to approximately RMB73,238,000, which was mainly
attributable to increase in revenue and gross profit margin that
resulted in significant increase in net profit amount during the
Year. The income tax rate for the Year was approximately 14.4%,
representing an increase of approximately 3.3 percentage
points as compared with approximately 11.1% of 2016. The
increase in income tax rate was mainly due to the following
factors: (i) the tax effect of additional deduction of research
and development expenses of Kunshan QT China for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB20,035,000 (2016: approximately
RMB9,207,000), accounting for approximately 3.9% (2016:
approximately 4.3%) of the profit before tax. The decrease
in the deduction rate reduced the contribution of income tax
deduction; (i) for the Year, a withholding tax of Kunshan QT China
of approximately RMB4,495,000 was incurred due to dividend
proposed, while there was no withholding tax in 2016; (iii) for the
Year, profits tax of Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Kunshan QT Hong Kong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, amounted to approximately RMB1,512,000, while
profits tax refund of approximately RMB2,142,000 was recorded in
2016; and (iv) for the Year, the proportion of the profit before tax of
Kunshan QT China in the profit before tax of the Group increased
to approximately 99% from approximately 95% of 2016.
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Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
was successfully recognized as a HNTE on 6 July 2015, and
obtained the recognition certificate as a HNTE. Kunshan QT
China will continue to enjoy preferential policies of income tax
rate of 15% and bonus deduction allowance of R&D expenses
with a validity period up to 31 December 2017. Kunshan QT
China was actively pushing on the review issue. Chengdu QT, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was qualified for the
recognition of software enterprises. According to relevant policies,
software enterprises are subject to the preferential policy of “refund
immediately after payment” for the excess of actual tax on value-
added tax over 3% after the payment of the value-added tax at
the tax rate of 17% for the sales of self-developed and produced
software products. At the same time, Chengdu QT is entitled
to preferential policies in the “2-year exemption and 3-year half
payment” of income tax from 1 January 2015, with a validity
period up to 31 December 2019. Chengdu QT was successfully
recognized as a HNTE on 29 August 2017, and obtained the
recognition certificate as a HNTE. Therefore, Chengdu QT can
enjoy preferential policies of income tax rate of 15% and bonus
deduction allowance of R&D expenses with a validity period up to
31 December 2019.

Profit for the Year

Based on the foregoing, the profit of the Group for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB436,277,000 (2016:
approximately RMB190,755,000), representing an increase of
approximately 128.7% as compared with 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB1,078,119,000, representing an increase of
approximately 221.4% from approximately RMB335,432,000 as at
31 December 2016. The maturities of all of those bank borrowings
are less than 1 year.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and/or USD. The overview of the Group’s
cash flow for the Year and 2016 was set out as follows:

R-ZE—+E+-A=1+—8 A&EE2RTT
EBRUARER SETTHE AEBRAFE
BERZE—X"EFNRSRHRLOT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —EBAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETTT

Net cash generated from/(used in) KESEENEE (FTA)M
operating activities IR & 58 2,221,513 (38,614)
Net cash used in investing activities REFSMANIE /558 (2,118,977) (429,711)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & /& B E £ MR & F 5 311,626 245,529

As of 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB464,982,000, representing
an increase of approximately RMB400,077,000 from approximately
RMB64,905,000 as at 31 December 2016. The increase in cash
and cash equivalents was mainly due to the net cash inflow
in operating activities and the funds raised by placing of new
shares under general mandate (which has been completed on 29
December 2017).

Operating activities

For the Year, the Group’s net cash inflow of operating activities
amounted to approximately RMB2,221,513,000, while there
was a net cash outflow of operating activities of approximately
RMB38,614,000 in 2016. The Group’s cash flow recorded a net
inflow from its operating activities, which was primarily attributed
to: (i) the decrease by approximately 20 days to approximately
104 days in turnover days of receivables during the Year from
approximately 124 days in 2016, while the turnover days of
payables increased by approximately 12 days to approximately
130 days during the Year from approximately 118 days in 2016;
and (i) the increase in gross profit margin of the Group during the
Year.
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Investing activities

The net cash outflow used in the investing activities of the Group
in the Year amounted to approximately RMB2,118,977,000,
which was mainly due to () the expenses for plant expansion
and purchasing equipment in the amount of approximately
RMB942,196,000; (ii) the net cash outflow of purchase
and redemption of other financial assets of approximately
RMB865,744,000; and (i) investments in Newmax Technology in
the amount of approximately RMB275,236,000.

Financing activities

The net cash inflow generated from the financing activities
of the Group during the Year amounted to approximately
RMB311,626,000, which was mainly due to: (i) the inflow of
bank borrowings of approximately RMB877,046,000 and the
cash outflows for repaying bank borrowings of approximately
RMB658,554,000; (ii) the net proceeds from placing of 20
million new ordinary shares under general mandate (which
has been completed on 29 December 2017) of approximately
RMB179,065,000; and (iii) the payment of dividend of
approximately RMB37,145,000.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio, which is defined as
the balance of bank borrowings and related parties’ loans divided
by total equity at the end of the Year, was approximately 50.2%,
representing an increase of approximately 28.8 percentage points
as compared with approximately 21.4% as at 31 December
2016, which was mainly due to: (i) significant increase in bank
borrowings balance, which increased by approximately 221.4%
from approximately RMB335,432,000 as at 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB1,078,119,000 as at 31 December 2017; (ii)
payment of dividend during the Year amounting to approximately
RMB37,145,000; and (i) the net profit recorded in the Year of
approximately RMB436,277,000, and no dividend having been
paid to shareholders of the Company in respect of such profit
recorded for the year 2017.
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Treasury policies

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), and
was amended by the risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company on 24 March 2016,
the details of which were disclosed under the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of the 2016 annual report.
The Board, the Risk Management Committee of the Company
and the staff at the relevant positions always remain alert to the
performance and risk assessment of the wealth management
products so as to ensure that the wealth management operation
does not pose excessive risk to the principal amount. At the same
time, the Company also pays close attention to the liquidity and
debt asset position of the Group in order to ensure the sufficiency
of its working capital and maintain the debt asset ratio at a
reasonable level.

As of 31 December 2017, the balance of other financial assets of
the Group was approximately RMB873,486,000 at the end of the
period. The breakdown is as follows:

B BER

AEENEMBREENARS T —HF
T—AZTHENARABRERER([BRE
Bl YRARFRBREEZES ([RRE
BZRE )R _BE-—R"RF=ZA-THEBEH
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EEALSHAEBRZNLT AR - R A
RANEYEIASERBECNEEZERAR
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Value

recognized

at the end of

Amount Value Expected the period

No.  (RMB’000) Principal Commissioned Bank date Maturity date Term (day) return (RMB'000)

£ BARAEE

Ff (AR¥Fr) EHE ERRIT EER H#A R (X) BEkEE (AR®TR)

1 70,000.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/8/11 2018/8/8 362 4.8000% 71,315.97
Bl ritHE FEIERITARA 1T

2 100,000.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/8/25 2018/8/22 362 4.9500% 101,749.13
B EiHE PR IERTTEA 1T

3 136,000.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/9/20 2018/9/18 363 4.9500% 137,885.14
Bl ritHE FEIERITARA 1T

4 83,500.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/9/25 2018/9/20 360 4.9500% 84,635.01
B EiHE FEIBRTTEA 1T

5 31,500.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/9/25 2018/9/18 358 4.9500% 31,937.29
Bl ritHE FEIERITARA 1T

6 148,000.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/11/1 2018/10/30 363 4.9500% 149,219.59
B EiHE FEIBRTTEA 1T
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Value
recognized
at the end of
Amount Value Expected the period
No.  (RMB’000) Principal Commissioned Bank date Maturity date Term (day) return (RMB'000)
£ BARAEE
R (AR%FR) TS ERBIT BEA HEA BR(R) BHkEE (AR%TR)
7 4,000.00 Chengdu QT Chengdu Branch of CCB 2017/10/19 Redeemable after the sixtieth day 4.3000% 4,000.00
from the value date based on
the T+1 principle
g FERRRIABA T R E60RHET+ER
8 28,744.00 Kunshan QT China Kunshan Branch of CMB 2017/12/20 No fixed term and redeemable at any 4.0200% 28,744.00
time on workdays
B FR$E REROTRIAT BETH IfFHERER
9 65,000.00 Kunshan QT China Kunshan Branch of CCB 2017/12/28 No fixed term and redeemable at any 2.3000% £5,000.00
time on workdays
Bl ripE HERRRIRWAT EETH TIFARKED
10 199,000.00 Kunshan QT China Heyuan Branch of ICBC 2017/12/29 No fixed term and redeemable at any 3.0000% 199,000.00
time on workdays
B rstHE FEIERTARA T BETH IfFHERER
Total  865,744.00 873,486.13

At
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Other financial assets at the end of the period set out in the above
table are short-term regular investments carried out for financial
management purposes and are transactions conducted by the
Group in its ordinary course of business to obtain gains. The
subscription of wealth management products was discussed,
voted and approved by the Risk Management Committee of the
Company pursuant to the treasury policies of the Group. Directors
and the Risk Management Committee believe that such other
financial assets were all subscribed from top-ranking commercial
banks in the PRC in terms of total assets and such idle funds
in surplus cash reserve can generate more income effectively.
As it is part of the financial management of the Group in its
ordinary course of business, no transaction should be defined
as discloseable transaction and/or connected transaction under
Chapters 14 and/or 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The No.1
to No.6 wealth management products in the above table were all
issued by and subscribed from the Heyuan Branch of ICBC, which
is an independent third party of the Company, and were pledges
for securing bank borrowings from the bank; the No.7 to No.10
wealth management products in the above table were no fixed-
term or short-term wealth management products subscribed by
Kunshan QT China and Chengdu QT, which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, from a number of banks, all of which
are independent third parties of the Company, for the purpose of
generating more income from idle funds. Other financial assets
at the end of the period were all low-risk and short-term wealth
management products with a term shorter than one year and
will all expire before 31 December 2018, which is in line with the
treasury policies of the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save for participation in the private placement of shares of
Newmax Technology, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 31 August 2017, the Company completed its participation
in the private placement of shares of Newmax Technology. A
total of 57,008,888 placing shares,
36.0% of the total number of issued ordinary shares of the

representing approximately

Newmax Technology as enlarged after the completion of private
placement, has been issued and allotted to the Company at the
price of TWD21.88 per share. Details of the private placement
are disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 22
February 2017, 19 March 2017, 24 August 2017 and 31 August
2017.

On 17 October 2017, Kunshan QT China entered into an
investment agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with the
management committee (“‘Kunshan Management Committee”) of
Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial Development Park (“Kunshan High-
Tech Park”), pursuant to which Kunshan QT China has agreed to
increase its investment in Kunshan Hi-tech Park by way of increase
of registered capital of US$100 million in Kunshan QT China and
establishment of a camera lens project company with a registered
capital of US$30 million in Kunshan Hi-tech Park. As part of the
arrangement under the Investment Agreement, on 29 December
2017, Kunshan QT China entered into a project supervisory
agreement with Kunshan Management Committee, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to invest a total amount of not less than
US$300 million (including an investment amount of not less than
RMB215 million in fixed assets) towards the new production
base to be constructed on a parcel of industrial land located
at Kunshan High-Tech Park, which will be funded by internally
generated funds and other internal resources of the Group and/
or external borrowings and financing. Construction of the new
production base on the land will commence within six months from
the date of the delivery of the land (which is currently scheduled
to be delivered on or before 22 March 2018), and is scheduled
to be completed within two years. Details of the investment
are disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 17
October 2017 and 29 December 2017.
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Save as disclosed in the above announcements, as at 31
December 2017, the Group did not hold any significant investment
and there were no legally binding agreements or arrangements
with respect to any investment opportunities entered into by the
Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the assets pledged by the Group
included bank deposits, trade receivables, bills receivable and
other financial assets of approximately RMB894,153,000, which
were pledged as security for bank borrowings and bills payable.

EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 2,526
1,850) (excluding staff
under labour service agreements and internship agreements).

employees (as at 31 December 2016:

The Group is committed to providing all staff with fair working
environment, providing newly recruited staff with induction
training and job technical counseling to help them to adapt
to job requirements quickly, providing all staff with clear job
responsibilities guidelines and for employees at different positions
with on-the-job training together with other training programmes
to help improving their skills and knowledge, and strived to
provide all staff with competitive remuneration packages. For the
Year, the remuneration of the employees (including staff under
labour service agreements and internship agreements) of the
Group was approximately RMB463,868,000 (2016: approximately
RMB278,918,000).
includes performance bonus, medical insurance and provident

Apart from basic salary, the package also
fund (staff under labour service agreements and internship

agreements are treated according to the laws and regulations of
the PRC).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, the Company has accepted the applications from 42
staff to exercise their options and issued a total of 13,826,000
ordinary shares during the Year pursuant to the pre-IPO share
option scheme adopted on 13 November 2014, at the exercise
price of RMBO0.40 per share and total consideration received was
approximately RMB5,530,000, which highlighted the confidence
of the core management and technical personnel in the Company.
In addition, the Group granted share options for a total of
39,425,000 ordinary shares to 165 staff (including two Executive
Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu) on 26 October
2016 in accordance with the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 13 November 2014 with the exercise price of
HK$4.13 per share (please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 October 2016 for details). No option granted
on 26 October 2016 was exercised during the Year, but options
for a total of 2,660,000 ordinary shares were waived as a result
of the resignations of 14 grantees as at 31 December 2017. On 9
June 2017, the Company granted options for a total of 8,083,000
ordinary shares to 48 staff (none of whom are Directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of
their respective associates) with the exercise price of HK$6.22
per share and subject to certain vesting conditions and exercise
periods (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
9 June 2017 for details). During the Year, no option granted on
9 June 2017 was exercised, but options for a total of 1,530,000
ordinary shares were waived as a result of the resignations of 6
grantees during the Year. Since 1 January 2018 up to the date
of this report (i.e. on 19 March 2018), option granted on 9 June
2017 for a total of 160,000 ordinary shares was also waived as a
result of the resignation of one grantee. (For details of the terms
of the pre-IPO share option scheme and the share option scheme
adopted on 13 November 2014, please refer to the disclosures
set out in sections D1 and D2 headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” respectively in Appendix IV
“Statutory and General Information” to the Prospectus.)

In respect of the compliance in the labour and social security
aspect, there was no material non-compliance incidents involved
by the Group and we had obtained the Certificate of Compliance
and No Punishment issued by Kunshan Municipal Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily due to certain
receivables, payables, cash balances and loans that are
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB arising from
the operating activities such as bank borrowings, product sales
and purchase of raw materials. The Group is also exposed to
currency risk from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB. During the Year, the Group recorded
an exchange gain of approximately RMB41,918,000 as the
sales income of the Group was still mainly settled in RMB but
various raw materials for production and some equipment
for production were purchased from overseas and settled in
USD, and appreciated approximately 6.2% in the RMB against
USD exchange rate for the Year. However, the realized and
unrealized loss on foreign currency option contracts amounted
to approximately RMB47,911,000, and the fair value loss on
foreign currency forward contracts amounted to approximately
RMB17,555,000. As affected by multiple factors such as politics,
economic, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB against USD
in the future is subject to great uncertainties. It is difficult to adjust
the business mode of the Group in the short run. Therefore, the
profit or loss of the Group may still be affected by exchange rate
fluctuation in the future. The Company will, on one hand, strive
to strengthen the expansion of overseas business continuously
to increase USD income; on the other hand, the Group will
coordinate actively with suppliers receiving settlement in USD to
seek the consent of certain suppliers to purchase domestically or
arrange settlement in RMB, so as to reduce the demand for USD.
Meanwhile, the Group will enhance monitoring of the exchange
rate fluctuation on a daily basis, adjust the proportion of USD
deposits to total deposits balance and the proportion of USD
loans to total loans balance from time to time with reference to the
analysis of exchange rates fluctuation trend, fix the future foreign
exchange costs by properly using currency derivative instruments
such as foreign exchange forwards and options, and take into
account of costs during the price quotation for purchase or sales,
SO as to strengthen the management of foreign exchange risks and
strive to reduce foreign exchange loss.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

On 2 December 2014, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
were initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by
global offering. The net proceeds from the above global offering
was approximately HK$658,000,000 (after deducting relevant
listing expenses). As at 31 December 2017, the fund raised was
fully utilised. Among the utilised net proceeds: (i) approximately
HK$256,620,000 was utilised to purchase production and testing
machinery and equipment; (i) approximately HK$164,500,000
was utilised to enhance R&D capabilities; (iii) approximately
HK$101,990,000 was utilised to expand the production base;
(iv) approximately HK$46,718,000 was utilised to repay bank
borrowings; (v) approximately HK$22,372,000 was utilised
for sales costs of product and business expansion; and (vi)
approximately HK$65,800,000 was utilised for general corporate
purposes. The capital utilisation is consistent with the intended use
of the global offering.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

On 12 December 2016, the Company completed the placing
of 40,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each under a
general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholder to
two placees, namely Value Partners Hong Kong Limited and The
People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are not connected persons of
the Company, and are third parties independent of the Company
and its connected persons, at the placing price of HK$3.90 per
placing share. Based on the closing price of HK$4.12 per share
on 1 December 2016, being the date of the placing agreement,
the placing shares had a market value of HK$164,800,000 and an
aggregate nominal value of HK$400,000. The Directors considered
that the placing offered a good opportunity to raise additional
funds to strengthen the financial position. More importantly, the
Directors considered that the placing to the placees was beneficial
and constructive to the Group with the following merits because: (i)
the placees were reputable fund and fund management company
whose investment into the Company allowed the Group to further
strengthen its goodwill and reputation; (i) the placing broadened
the shareholder base of the Company and was helpful to the
continuous growth and sustainable development of the Group.
The net proceeds from the above placing was approximately
HK$154,428,000, after deducting the related placing commission,
professional fees and all related expenses. As at 31 December
2017, the fund raised was fully utilised. Among the utilised net
proceeds: (i) approximately HK$70,000,000 was utilised for capital
expenses; (i) approximately HK$70,000,000 was utilised for R&D
activities; and (i) approximately HK$14,428,000 was utilised for
general working capital. The capital utilisation is consistent with the
intended use of the net proceeds of the placing.
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On 29 December 2017, the Company completed the placing
of 20,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each under a
general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders
to not less than six placees, being professional, institutional and/
or other investors, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
are not connected persons of the Company, and are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons, at the
placing price of HK$10.80 per placing share. Based on the closing
price of HK$11.22 per share on 29 December 2017, being the
date of the placing agreement, the placing shares had a market
value of HK$224.40 million and an aggregate nominal value of
HK$200,000. The Directors considered that the placing offered
a good opportunity to raise additional funds to strengthen the
financial position. The Directors were of the view that the placing
would also broaden the shareholder base and the capital base
of the Company and was helpful to the continuous growth and
sustainable development of the Group. The net proceeds from
the above placing was approximately HK$214,218,000, after
deducting the related placing commission, professional fees
and all related expenses. As at 31 December 2017, the fund
raised was utilised as to HK$93,889,000. Among the utilised net
proceeds: (i) approximately HK$59,996,000 was utilised for capital
expenses; and (i) approximately HK$33,893,000 was utilised for
R&D activities. It is contemplated that the capital utilisation will
be consistent with the intended use of the net proceeds of the
placing.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 of RMB7.8 cents (equivalent
to HK9.6 cents) per share (final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2016: RMB3.5 cents (equivalent to HK3.9 cents) per
share) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Tuesday, 12 June 2018. Subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”), the proposed final dividend is
expected to be paid on or around Monday, 25 June 2018.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to attend the 2017
annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 21 May 2018 to 25 May 2018. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18
May 2018.

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 8 June 2018 to 12 June 2018, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 June 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

On 29 December 2017, the Company completed the placing
of 20,000,000 new ordinary shares under general mandate at
the placing price of HK$10.80 per share. Save as the aforesaid,
during the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has strictly complied with the applicable environmental
protection laws and policies in the jurisdictions where the
respective members of the Group are located. During the Year,
the Group had continued to revise, improve and implement a
number of internal rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection management such as the implementation of
Wastewater Management Regulations, Waste Gas Management
Regulations and Greenhouse Gas Management Measures , and
to further perfect the wastewater, waste gas and greenhouse
gas treatment system in order to strengthen its management
and control in production and domestic sewage so as to ensure
that the wastewater discharge is in compliance with statutory
requirements, and clarified the ranges, procedure and instrument
of collecting the data of greenhouse gas for the effective
management of greenhouse gas of the Group in the long run and
prepared for reducing carbon emissions. As the same time, the
Group had also amended and implemented certain regulations
and measures including improving the Fire Safety Management
Regulations and Emergency Plan, held fire drills with particular
focus on strengthening of self-check of the fire control facilities and
improving the fire prevention and control capability, and Kunshan
QT China successfully obtained the compliance certificate in
terms of work safety granted by Administration of Work Safety
and Environmental Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial
Development Park.

Particulars of the environmental protection management of
the Company are disclosed in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
consists of six Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu,
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning ({fI2 2 )  aged 47, was appointed as a
Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. He has been the chairman
of the Board and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company since 13 November
2014. He is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning
and formulation of investment strategies of our Group. Mr. He
founded Kunshan QT China in October 2007 and has more than
20 years of experience in the electrical and electronic industries.
Prior to founding the Group, Mr. He served as a sales officer of
Samsung Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co., Ltd. (RZ==£F
AR ARA), a manufacturer of electronic components, from
July 1992 to April 1997 where he was primarily responsible for
sales and delivery management. In November 2000 and June
2004, Mr. He founded Surewheel Asia Pacific Limited (ZE# &R
mAABRAT) (“Surewheel”), a company principally engaged in
agency sales of printheads, and Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom
Equipment Co., Ltd. CRYITTEAIEERERMKHEER Q)
(“Shenzhen CK”), a company principally engaged in the research,
development and sales of complete handsets components, and
has been the chairman of Surewheel and Shenzhen CK. Mr. He
is primarily responsible for the strategic planning. In December
2004, Mr. He founded CK Telecom Limited ( 78 7] & {= i &% 18
CRJR) BB A A]) (“Heyuan CK”), a company principally engaged
in the sales and manufacturing of complete handsets and handset
components and modules, and has been the chairman of Heyuan
CK. Mr. He is primarily responsible for the strategic planning of
Heyuan CK. Mr. He is the sole director and the sole shareholder
of Q Technology Investment Inc. (“QT Investment”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company as at the date of this report. Mr. He
received his bachelor’'s degree in science, majoring in weather
dynamic, from the Peking University in July 1992 and his master’s
degree of business administration from the University of California
in March 2002. Mr. He is also the step-brother of Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, an executive Director and chief executive officer (the
“Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company.
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Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China) Inc.
(formerly known as “CK Telecom (Great China) Inc.”), Kunshan QT
Hong Kong and Kunshan QT China, each of which is a subsidiary
of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jianqgiang ( Ef@&3) ,
Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. Wang was appointed as

aged 46, was appointed as a

Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8 July 2016 and
is primarily responsible for operation and business management
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as a
supervisor of the quality assurance department of SAE Magnetics
(REHBET
October 1995 to September 1996, where he was primarily

F ), a computer hardware manufacturer, from

responsible for product quality assurance. From August 1998 to
January 2005, he served as the sales assistant manager of the
Shenzhen office of Samsung Electro-Mechanics (H.K.) Limited
(ZEE®R(FB)BERRAAF,

components, where he was primarily responsible for the sales of

a manufacturer of electronic

the electronic components. From February 2005 to April 2014 and
December 2005 to April 2014, respectively, Mr. Wang served as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where
he was primarily responsible for audit management and budgeting.
Mr. Wang received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring
in fluid machinery and engineering, from the Sichuan University of
Science and Technology (PAJIl T £t ) in June 1995. Mr. Wang
is the step-brother of Mr. He.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, Kunshan

QT China and Chengdu QT, each of which is a subsidiary of the
Company.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Mr. Hu Sanmu (8§ =) , aged 42, is the vice president of sales
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the expansion of sales
network and maintenance of relationship with customers. Mr. Hu
was appointed as an executive Director of the Group since 8 July
2016. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held various positions in
VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited (1€ 5EE T Em OFII)
AREA7]), a company principally engaged in manufacturing of
telecommunication products, from July 1998 to November 2002,
where he last served as a mechanical structure engineer and was
primarily responsible for the mechanical design. From November
2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various positions in Tianjin
Amphenol Kae Co., Ltd. (REZEHINEES FHRRA), a
manufacturer of interconnect products, where he last served as a
sales engineer and was primarily responsible for maintaining the
relationship with existing customers and the expansion of sales
network. From July 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Hu held various
positions in Van Telecom Limited (Z R BR A F]) , a company
principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of precise
connectors, where he last served as the sales director and was
primarily responsible for sales management and product planning.
Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in
mechanical design and manufacture from the Xi’an University of
Science and Technology (A& B K2 ), previously known as
Xi'an Mining Institute (FAZ &% 26t ) , in July 1998.

Mr. Hu is also a director of Kunshan QT China, which is a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (@35 ), aged 67, JP, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director (the “INED”), a member of
each of the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board,
the remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the
Board, the Nomination Committee and the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee of the Company on 31 May 2017. Mr. Ko
holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree from The University
of Hong Kong, and holds a Master of Science degree and a Doctor
of Philosophy degree from the University of California at Berkeley.
He is an Adjunct Professor of Peking University and Tsinghua
University and Emeritus Professor of Electrical & Electronic
Engineering and the former Dean of the School of Engineering of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Ko was
the Vice Chairman of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science
Department of the University of California at Berkeley from 1991 to
1993 and a member of Bell Labs in USA from 1982 to 1984. Mr.
Ko is an independent non-executive director of each of Henderson
Investment Limited (Stock code: 0097) and Henderson Land
Development Company Limited (Stock code: 0012) respectively,
both of which are Hong Kong listed companies.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (¥] X #£) , aged 48, was appointed as
an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014. From June
1997 to June 2002, Mr. Chu served at various positions in
Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd. (B ERIFE M BR A F), which
is a provider of computing devices, testing and skilled solutions,
and last served as a sales expert and was primarily responsible
for overseeing its sales department in respect of the computing
devices. From May 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Chu served as the
investment manager of CDIB Venture Capital Corp. (#F ZE RT3
BRI ERMABRAE), which was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Development Financial Holding Corporation ( A 2 5
B mIERARMDBR A F) (Stock Code: 2883) listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and was primarily engaged in enterprise
operations, management, and consulting services. Mr. Chu was
primarily responsible for exploring and assessing investment
plans and post-investment management. In January 2014, Mr.
Chu established WK Innovation Ltd. (Z:R&IF D ERAF) ,
a venture capital firm, and served as the managing director and
acted as its chairman and chief executive officer, where he was
primarily responsible for its strategic planning. From August 2004
to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general manager of WK
Technology Fund (E &M AIZEE, previously known as &A%
HERMDABRAT), aventure capital firm. Mr. Chu was primarily
responsible for exploring and assessing investment plans and
post-investment management. He was the legal representative
of Litmax Electronics Inc. (F@EHXBRMH B MR AT, Stock code:
4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor Corporation ( SR A
R~ A&], Stock code: 3592), each of which is listed on the Taiwan
Cretai Securities Market (R 2B HBEEFE+F L) .

Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association ( & /AR EFERELES
from May 2008 to May 2010.
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Mr. Ng Sui Yin (2% 8) , aged 49, was appointed as an INED,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Committee
of the Company on 13 November 2014. Mr. Ng was previously
the financial controller of Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 6828). He is now the financial controller and company
secretary of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
0894). Mr. Ng has extensive experience in the areas of finance,
audit, tax, bankruptcy, information technology and business
development. Mr. Ng has been admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since April 2001 and April
2009, respectively. Mr. Ng was registered as a certified tax advisor
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in July 2010. He received
his Honours Diploma in Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue
Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
and Master’s degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from City University of Hong Kong.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fan Fugiang (38E5), aged 40, was appointed as chief
financial officer of the Company on 8 July 2016. Mr. Fan is
primarily responsible for financial management, securities affairs
and risk control functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan held
various positions in Heyuan branch of the Bank of China, a state-
owned bank principally engaged in providing a range of corporate
banking, personal banking, investment banking and other services,
from July 1996 to June 2011 and last served as the general
manager of Heyuan High-tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China
and vice general manager of the corporate department of Heyuan
branch of Bank of China, where he was primarily responsible for
the grant of the credit facilities, risks management and international
settlement. From May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to April
2014, respectively, Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief
financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily
responsible for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan
received a professional certificate from Guangdong International
Finance College (JER B £ B 24 ) located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a graduation
certificate from the Central Party School of Guangdong Provincial
Committee (AP HE R A & ) located in the PRC, in January
2008, majoring in public management, and received a graduation
certificate from South China University of Technology ( Z g 3# T X
E) in July 2016, majoring in administrative management. Mr. Fan
was one of the joint company secretaries of the Company before
his resignation on 21 November 2017.

Mr. Fan received the Top Ten Distinguished Employees ( +1£8
T ) Award of Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the years 2005
and 2006 and the Innovative Employee Award (4E# TE#% ) by
Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the year 2007.
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Mr. Liu Tongquan ( 2|##) , aged 40, is the production director
of the Group and the assistant general manager of Kunshan
QT China. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for the process
engineering and production management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu served as a production manager of Kunshan
Giantplus Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (BWLZENXE
Rifr AR AT ), a LCD display manufacturer, from July 2002
to November 2007, where he was primarily responsible for
production management. Mr. Liu received his bachelor’s degree
in engineering, majoring in measurement and control technology
and instrumentation, and his bachelor’s degree in economics
from Wuhan University ( V£ K2 ) in June 2002 and July 2002,
respectively.

Mr. Jin Yuanbin (£ Jt3g) , aged 42, is the research and
development director of the Group. Mr. Jin is primarily responsible
for the research and development of products, as well as the
improvement in manufacturing technology and techniques of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Jin served as the
manager of testing engineering department of Walton Advanced
(Suzhou) Engineering Inc. (ZER B (M) B R A7) from
2003 to 2007, where he was responsible for preparation of the
implementation, testing criteria and method for new product.
From 2008 to 2010, he worked in Altek System (Kunshan) Co.,
Ltd. (& EERFH (BIL) AR AF]), and served as the factory
director of camera modules business department, where he
was responsible for manufacturing engineering and production
operation of camera modules. Mr. Jin has been engaging in the
research and development, engineering, testing and production
of camera modules since 2002, and possesses extensive related
work experience. Mr. Jin received his diploma majoring in financial
management, from Nanyang Institute of Technology ( 7 k5 32 T £
BT ) in 2008.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Mr. Sun Wei (&) , aged 39, is the purchasing director of our
Group. Mr. Sun is primarily responsible for selecting and evaluating
the suppliers and overseeing the sourcing and purchases of
raw materials and equipment. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Sun served as the procurement officer (£RE E 8 ) of Compal
Electronic Technology (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ({ZEEF&I (B 1)
AR A7), a notebook computer manufacturer, from July 2004
to May 2005, where he was primarily responsible for procurement
of the materials. From July 2005 to June 2008, Mr. Sun served as
the procurement supervisor of Altek System (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.
(@A ERF (BWL)ARAT), a digital camera manufacturer,
where he was primarily responsible for sourcing and buying the
materials for optical products. From July 2008 to February 2011,
he served as the section manager of the supplier development
division of Young Optics (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ( EIL#5RAXEFR A
7)), a projector manufacturer, where he was primarily responsible
for sourcing and buying the materials for optical products. Mr.
Sun received his master’'s degree in management, majoring in
management sciences and engineering, from Harbin Institute of
Technology (M # /& T2 K2 ) in July 2004.

Ms. Le Yanfang (%# %), aged 34, is the senior human
resources manager of our Group. Ms. Le is primarily responsible
for management of human resources of our Group. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. Le served as the head of the human resources
department in AVCON Information Technology Co., Ltd. (%
EB MM AR AR), a company principally engaged in the
provision of the multi-media communication system solutions, and
was primarily responsible for formulating human resources policies
and human resources affairs from October 2007 to December
2010. Ms. Le received her graduation certificate from Jiujiang
Vocational and Technical College (JU/T B ¥ T8 ) in June
2004, majoring in electronic technology and application. Ms. Le
completed an online programme in human resources management
provided by Nankai University (X2 ) in January 2012.

Mr. Cheng Zhihua (#2321t), aged 42, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 21 November 2017. Mr.
Cheng graduated from the Jinan University (B ® KX £) with a
bachelor of accounting degree in 1999 and further obtained a
master of business administration degree from the Jinan University
in 2010. Mr. Cheng is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is currently a financial director
of a private company in Hong Kong and has more than 20 years
of experience in handling accounting and compliance matters at
various companies and accounting firms in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Mr. Cheng has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since 2017.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

Details of use of proceeds from Global Offering of the Company
are set out in the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page
47 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

Details of use of proceeds from placing of shares of the Company
are set out in the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
47 to 48 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five accounting years are set out on pages 7 to 9 of this
annual report.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 174.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 10 to 20 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 10 to 20. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 21 to 50 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Group Five-year Financial Summary
on pages 7 to 9 of this annual report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion and Analysis,
the Corporate Governance Report, the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 10 to
20, pages 21 to 50, pages 105 to 130, pages 131 to 162, and
pages 60 to 104 respectively. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.
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FINAL DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of RMB7.8 cents (equivalent to
HK9.6 cents) per share to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 12
June 2018. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held on Friday, 25 May
2018, the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
around Monday, 25 June 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entittement to attend the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 21 May
2018 to 25 May 2018. All transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2018.

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 8 June 2018 to 12 June 2018, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 June 2018.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:

The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 13.3% (2016: approximately 17.2%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 39.3% (2016: approximately 46.5%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
37.8% (2016: approximately 31.9%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 79.7% (2016: approximately 79.3%) of the total
turnover of the Group.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholders of
the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017
are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves (including
share premium and retained profits) available for distribution
to the equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB986,162,000 (2016: approximately RMB815,723,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) N
Mr. Wang Jiangiang
Mr. Hu Sanmu

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang"A®
Ms. Chen JunNARM
(resigned on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Ko Ping KeungNAfM
(appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Ng Sui YinAfM

member of audit committee of the Company
member of remuneration committee of the Company
member of risk management committee of the Company

z z 3T >

member of nomination committee of the Company
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In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Ko Ping Keung (appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2017) will hold office until the
AGM and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
AGM.

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. He Ningning and Mr. Ng Sui Yin will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

During the Year, other than Ms. Chen Jun’s resignation as
an INED, a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
chairlady of the Risk Management Committee due to personal
affairs (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 May 2017 for details), no Director resigned from his/her office
or refused to stand for re-election to his/her office due to reasons
relating to the affairs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 51 to 59 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commencing
from the month in which the Company’s Shares were listed on
the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office for
Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commencing from 8 July 2016. On
2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company for
a term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017. The
service contract of each executive Director may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other party.
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Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, pursuant to which the term of office for each of Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin is 3 years commencing from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the shares of the
Company were initially listed on the Stock Exchange; and Mr. Ko
Ping Keung’s term of office is three years commencing from 31
May 2017. Ms. Chen Jun has resigned as an INED due to her
personal affairs, details of which are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 May 2017. On 2 December 2017, Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin signed letters of appointment
with the Company for a term of 36 months commencing from 2
December 2017.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, its holding company, its
controlling shareholder or subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
relation to the positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

(a) Interest in the Shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ issued of the issued
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares held Position held Shares
(Note 2)
2z
EE ITETH BRI NEFE BT
ABHR 51/ ERME gy ¢! S} BRHE DL
(Htitz)
He Ningning Interest of a controlled 751,391,000 Long position 67.35%
fEE corporation (Note 1) TR
R EEER (Htet1)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 10,000,000 Long position 0.90%
T EnBEAA (Note 3) W&
(#1i23)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 1,493,000 Long position 0.13%
H=x EnBEAA (Note 4)  WR
(Hiit4)
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Notes:

Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board, is the sole beneficial owner of QT Investment which owned
approximately 67.35% of the issued Shares. Under Chapter 15 of the
SFO, Mr. He Ningning is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by QT Investment.

The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by
1,115,597,000 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2017.

On 3 April 2018, an aggregate of 644,800 Shares were issued to Mr.
Wang Jiangiang pursuant to the exercise of 644,800 share options
granted to him by the Company under the Share Option Scheme on
26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13 per share. Since 3
April 2018, Mr. Wang Jiangiang has been the beneficial owner of an
aggregate of 10,644,800 Shares of the Company.

On 3 April 2018, an aggregate of 480,000 Shares were issued to
Mr. Hu Sanmu pursuant to the exercise of 480,000 share options
granted to him by the Company under the Share Option Scheme on
26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13 per share. Since
3 April 2018, Mr. Hu Sanmu has been the beneficial owner of an
aggregate of 1,973,000 Shares of the Company.
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(b) Interest in Underlying Shares (b) REERGZER

Approximately
percentage of
the underlying
Shares over
the Company’s

Number issued
of underlying Shares (Note2)
Shares in (assuming
respect of that the share
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ the share options are
Chief Executive Nature of interest options granted Position held exercised in full)
B R 5
ERRARE BT
B 45 (iz2)
PRERHE BABD T
B TEAH BRED (RRBRE
ABHE 51/ EntE HEKRGHE &8 BE2HTRE)
Wang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 1,612,000 Long position 0.14%
T EnBEAA (Note 1and 3)  t1A&
(HfsE1%3)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 1,200,000 Long position 0.11%
=R BEnEEA (Note 1 and 4) HE
(HfsE1K4)
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Details of the above share options have been disclosed in the
following sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and note 25
to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares
divided by 1,115,5697,000 issued Shares of the Company in
total as at 31 December 2017.

On 3 April 2018, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 644,800 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13
per share. Mr. Wang Jiangiang is interested in the remaining
967,200 share options granted to him.

On 3 April 2018, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 480,000 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme on 26 October 2016, at an exercise price of HK$4.13
per share. Mr. Hu Sanmu is interested in the remaining 720,000
share options granted to him.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

FHEREZHFBEER T ER
TS| EE R AR R E GBI R
KU FE25I FE -

ZEADLLIEEBESNEBKRG
HEBRUARARTAR=_E—EF+=
A =+—HH#1,115,597,000/% & 2
TTRR 1D 42 & -

RZZE—NFWOA=H TRAEL
EUEBRITEERAASETLITER
R_E—ARF+A=-+BREE
I% #E 5T 81 % T 2644,80017 5 %
e TRBIEERERMERLNE
T967,2001) FE AR R 5 M 5

RZE-NFEA=0 =K%
EUERITEERAASETITER
RZE—ARF+A=Z+BREE
% ¥ 51 8] & % T 2480,00017 i %
o= AREERERERLNE
T720,00017 B M e p M 5 R s o



(c) Interest in Associated Corporation
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(c) RAEBZEE zERE

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of shares in
Name of Directors/ Name of associated Capacity/Nature issued Shares associated
Chief Executive corporation of interest held corporation
FSESTIEN P
B2 TETH DS AY &6y ERITRG
ABHE BB EE £ B B RntE R&HEE Bat
He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 1 100%
A EE IR E EnlERA
Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of B EXFIEBEEIN RZT—+tF+ =

the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any Shares, and underlying Shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as follows:

TERREDKE

R-ZZB—tE+ZA=+—H ®ARQ
MEERA TIAL (RARAEER
FETHRABRIN) KA K ER D (&
REBRAITETAMBAENR A EAR)
PR RN ES K E G F3365
BERARBEFNECMAZBRIA
BT

Approximate
percentage of

total issued

Shares in

Capacity/Nature Number of the Company

Name of Shareholder Long/short position of interest Shares held (Note 1)

RS N

ERITRA

By

BRAE BE/ KR 517/ ER R G &8 B (H721)

QT Investment Long position Beneficial owner 751,391,000 67.35%

EREE gE EnBEEA (Note 2)

(Htet2)

Note: Bt -

1. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares 1. ZEBADLLLEEEAEZNEBARMGD

divided by 1,115,597,000 issued Shares of the Company in total as
at 31 December 2017.

2. Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of
Q Technology Investment Inc., which owned approximately 67.35%

of the issued Shares.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2017.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made charitable or other donations of
HK$10,000 and/or above during the Year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 21 to 50, there were no other important events affecting
the Group that had occurred after 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

There were no important changes in the information of Directors
required to be disclosed in this report pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and granted a total
of 59,935,000 share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to the eligible participants with an aim to reward their
contribution to the Group made or possibly made. On 26 October
2016, the Company granted an aggregate of 39,425,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme to the eligible participants
and on 9 June 2017, the Company granted an aggregate of
8,083,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme to the
eligible participants. Details of the schemes are set out below:
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A. Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new
Shares as the Board may determine:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of this report:

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 19 May 2017, an ordinary resolution was passed
by the shareholders of the Company to approve the
refreshment of the maximum number of Shares that
may be issued upon the exercise of all options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to not
exceeding 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company
as at the date of approval by the Shareholders of the
refreshed limit. On the date of approving such ordinary
resolution (i.e. on 19 May 2017), the Shares in issue
of the Company was 1,095,597,000 shares, therefore,
the maximum number of Shares relating to the options
that may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
were refreshed to 109,559,700 Shares, representing
approximately 9.82% of total number of 1,115,597,000
Shares in issue on the date of this report (i.e. on 19
March 2018).
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme:

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each Eligible
Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)  the issue of a circular by the Company containing
the identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers
of and terms of the options to be granted (and
options previously granted to such Eligible
Participant), the information as required under Rules
17.02(2)(d) of and the disclaimer required under
17.02(4) of, the Listing Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time with such Eligible
Participant and his/her close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the
Eligible Participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
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The period within which the options must be exercised
under Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time in the
period after the date upon which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date subject to the provisions for early
termination set out in the Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up by eligible
participants within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.
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10.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years commenced from 13 November 2014.

The total number of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016:

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (representing approximately
3.78% of the total number of issued Shares on the date
of grant of the relevant share options (i.e. on 26 October
2016) and approximately 3.53% of 1,115,597,000
shares of the total number of issued Shares as at the
date of this report (i.e. on 19 March 2018)) under the
Share Option Scheme to 165 eligible participants. Such
share options were not exercisable during the Year
and as of 31 December 2017, share options for a total
of 2,660,000 shares were waived as a result of the
resignations of 14 grantees.

10.
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11.

The exercise period within which the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme on 26 October 2016:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as

notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance

with the following manner:

(0

upon, among others, the revenue (‘revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 increases by not less than 25% as compared
with the revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019 (both days inclusive); and

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

11. B

— = _

—E2—ARE+AZ+BR

15 B B M At 1R /O s IR HE Y
TTIE AR -

BhnBREIREESNS
EARBRANBRAARUATAER
1718 :

(i)

(if)

F(EPaF)BE-Z
—tF+—A=+—HILHF
EARRIZEERA([E
EWADBEE-_ZT—X
F+-A=+—RHILFEZ
Z WAL R TER25%
FTiE N 2 & %40%05 % 1
(MTHBREZEOERE)
BHE-_Z—\FWA—HBZ
—FE-NF+ZHAH=1+—H
HE (REEaEMAE)A T
1118

F(EPRBE)HEZZT
—N\FE+—_A=+—HIitz
FEEERAREEZE-ZT
—RNE+-A=+—HIE
EEERAZFESERRE
ERER25%  FiiR it 2 &
Z30%HERIE (M THEE
REAEE)KBE=-Z—AN
FMA-—BE_ZE—HNEF
+-—A=+—BHHE (2%
BEMB)A FIIE: &



(i) upon, among others, the revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2019 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December
2020 (both days inclusive).

12. The basis of determining the exercise price of share

options granted on 26 October 2016:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the share
options granted on 26 October 2016 under the Share
Option Scheme is HK$4.13 per Share.

13. The total number of share options granted under the

Share Option Scheme on 9 June 2017:

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of
8,083,000 share options (representing approximately
0.74% of the total number of issued Shares of
1,095,597,000 shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 9 June 2017) and
approximately 0.72% of the total number of issued
Shares of 1,115,597,000 shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 19 March 2018)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 48 eligible participants. Such share options
were not exercisable during the Year and as of 31
December 2017, share options for total of 1,530,000
shares were waived as a result of the resignations of 6
grantees.

12.

13.
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14. The exercise period within which the options granted

under the Share Option Scheme on 9 June 2017:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as

notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance

with the following manners:

(1) Share Options One:

)

upon, among others, the revenue (“revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 increases by not less than 25% as
compared with the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 40% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2018 to 31 December 2018
(both days inclusive);

upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2018 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 25% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
(both days inclusive); and
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(i)

upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 25% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive).

(2) Share Options Two:

(M

upon, among others, the revenue (“revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2018 increases by not less than 20% as
compared with the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 40% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
(both days inclusive);
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(i)

upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 20% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less
than 20% from the revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive).

15. The basis of determining the exercise price of share

options granted on 9 June 2017:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the share

options granted on 9 June 2017 under the Share Option
Scheme is HK$6.22 per Share.
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B. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was a share incentive
scheme established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) had made to the Group.
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme provided the Pre-
IPO Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving
the following purposes:

()  motivate the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships
with the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the
longterm growth of the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Board might, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board might determine to the full-time, key
employees of the Group who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, had contributed to the Company and/or any of
the subsidiaries (the “Pre-IPO Eligible Participants”).
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The number of Shares in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
59,935,000 Shares (representing approximately 5.99%
of the total number of issued Shares immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Prospectus) and approximately 5.37% of the
total number of issued Shares of 1,115,5697,000 Shares
as at the date of this report (i.e. on 19 March 2018)).
These options were granted on 13 November 2014 to
subscribe for 59,935,000 Shares. No further options will
be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, as the rights to do so have been terminated.

The exercise period within which the options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

()  up to 50% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017;

(i) up to 75% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2017; and
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(i) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and ending on 31
December 2017.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable during the years when such
option becomes vested.

As at the date of this report, none of share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme had lapsed accordingly.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is RMBO0.4 per Share.

Except for the above, the principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which were confirmed
and approved by resolutions in writing of all of the
Shareholders passed on 13 November 2014, were
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted

RIBEE R QR E R BRE S

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: EFHERERARFRZEHEEFE W
T
Number of underlying Shares comprising share options
BRESR2ABROHA
Outstanding Lapsed/
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited As at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2017 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2017
RZ-tE
-f-8 RZB-tE
HATEN RERLY/ 128
B REBH it BRE REREH  AERAR AEREH L =t-A
Directors
B2
Wang Jiangiang 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 25,000,000 - (2,500,000 - - -
TR ZE-RET-ATER —2-14§-f-R% 25,000,000% - (2,500,000)" - - -
ZE-tETZAZT-H
Hu Sanmu 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 373,250 - 373,250/ - - -
#=K “E-MmET-AT=H “E-1%5-f-BE% 378,507 - (373,250)" - - -
ZE-+F+ZR=1-H
Directors (in total) 2,873,250 - (2,873,250) - - -
EELE) 2,873,250 = (2,873.250) s = s
Employees (in total) 13 November 2014 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 10,952,750 - (10,952,750) - - -
EE(&3) “E-RET-A1ZH —T-1f-f-BEZ 10952,750% 5 (10,952,750)7 - - -
ZE-+ETZAZT-H
Total 13,826,000 - (13,826,000) - - -
B 13,826,000 - (13,826,000) - - -
Notes: Hiat -

On 6 January 2017, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 2,500,000 share
options, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 373,250 share options, and a total
of 10,952,750 share options were exercised by the employees on the
same date. The weighted average closing price immediately before
the date on which the share options were exercised was HK$4.29 per
Share.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted

under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

BRESR 2 AERAEA
Options
Outstanding Lapsed/

asat Exercised Cancelled Forfeited Asat

1 January during during during 31 December

Category Date of grant Exercise period 2017 the Year the Year the Year 2017
RZB-tF

-f-8 RZB-tF

WAL ER T2

L)) REBH fit:d BhRE RERTRE AEREH &M/ %K =t-A

Directors

iz

Wang Jiangiang 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 1,612,000 - - - 1,612,000
“The exercise period within which Note 1)
the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26
October 2016” on pages 80 to 81

TR ZE5-R"ETAZTRA FHMENEBIENE-~ETA 1612000 - - - 1,612,000
ZTRRRERREERLSE (Hi1)
RENTRAR] &%

Hu Sanmu 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
“The exercise period within which Note 1)
the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26
October 2016” on pages 80 to 81

Bz ZZ-RETAZTRE BAHEZBIR ] AETA1,200000 - - - 1,200,000

TARRERRE AR NOE (Hi1)

TR i) &%
Directors (in total) 2,812,000 - - - 2,812,000
B3 (i) 2,812,000 - - - 2,812,000

20175 5% E#BE (£E)BRLTA

89



90

Directors’ Report
EEERE

Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

BRESRZABROUA
Options
Outstanding Lapsed/
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited As at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2017 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2017
RZE-tF
-f-8 RIB-tfF
HATEN RER 128
LY REEH it BRE REREH  AERTR RERTEH /%K =t-A
Employees 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 35,932,000 - - - (1,979,000) 33,953,000
“The exercise period within which Note 1)
the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 26
QOctober 2016” on pages 80 to 81
2 ZE-R"ETAZTRA F2HE80Z81E 35,932,000 - - - (1,979,000) 33,953,000
“+ BREER g (1)
REmEER] &%
Employees 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under - 4,838,000 - - (1,290,000) 3,548,000
Share Options One “The exercise period within which Note 2)
the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 9 June
2017: (1) Share Options One” on
pages 82 to 83
B8 (BhE-) “E-+EABAR AENERZEIR [N_F—FNA - 4,838,000 5 5 (1,290,000) 3, 548 000
NAREERET IS LN ERE (H#2)
BTRER: (ERE-| 8%
Employees 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under - 3,245,000 - - (240,000) 3,005,000
Share Options Two “The exercise period within which
the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme on 9 June
2017: (2) Share Options Two” on
pages 831084
[E5 (BRRiE-) “E-t57ANR FRUEGE0E - 3,245,000 - - (240,000) 3,005,000
ik (i
E’Mﬂiﬁéﬁ& (BRE= &S
Employees (i total) 35,932,000 8,083,000 - - 3,509,000 40,506,000
[E& (a3 35,932,000 8,083,000 - - 3,509,000 40,506,000
Totel 8,083,000 - - 3,509,000) 43,318,000
@t 38,744,000 8,083,000 - - 3,509,000) 43,318,000
Notes: BT
1. On 3 April 2018, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 644,800 share 1. RZ-Z— \FWEA=H TR®KELEITE
options, Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 480,000 share options, and a total 644,80017 & IR 4 - 18 =N 58 4 77{£480,00019
of 13,581,200 share options were exercised by the employees on the R RFIBEE & #£7716£13,581,20017
same date. The weighted average closing price immediately before fEiE - fTHE R E— (@& % B SR mEF K
the date on which the share options were exercised was HK$10.02 m{EA10.028 7T °
per Share.
2. On 3 April 2018, a total of 1,419,200 share options were exercised 2. RZ-ZZ—N\NFMNA=-H EEA X7

by the employees. The weighted average closing price immediately
before the date on which the share options were exercised was
HK$10.02 per Share.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being
the chairman, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in this report
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed in this report, none of the related party transactions
constitutes a continuing connected transaction or connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the notice and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:
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Purchase Agreement in respect of the purchase of
precise connectors from Van Telecom Limited (“Van
Telecom PRC”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement”) with
Van Telecom PRC, pursuant to which Van Telecom PRC agreed
to supply the precise connectors to the Group for a term from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 16 December 2016,
the Company and Van Telecom PRC renewed the Purchase
Agreement (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC Purchase
pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed to

continue to supply to the Group precise connectors for a term

Agreement”),

commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
December 2016 for details.

The price for the precise connectors supplied by Van Telecom
PRC under the Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement and the
Renewed Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement was determined
by reference to the price at which comparable types of precise
connectors that are sold by independent suppliers to the Group
under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of its
business and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group
than was available from independent suppliers.
whether to purchase from Van Telecom PRC, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering the

In considering

same or comparable products. The Group purchased the precise
connectors from Van Telecom PRC if the price and quality of the
products offered were comparable to or more favourable to the
Group than those offered by independent third parties for the same
or comparable products.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly owned by CK Telecom Inc. (‘CK
Telecom”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. He Ningning,
an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. As such, Van
Telecom PRC is a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total transaction
amount under the Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement and the
Renewed Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement was RMB9,000
and the annual cap amount for the Year was RMB300,000.

C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement in respect of the
purchase of flexible printed circuit board and rigid-flex
printed circuit boards (“FPC and RFPC”) from C-Flex
Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd. (formerly known as C-Flex
Electronic (Heyuan) Co., Ltd) (“C-Flex Electronic”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) with
C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which C-Flex Electronic agreed to
supply the FPCs to the Group for a term from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016. On 16 December 2016, the Company
and C-Flex Electronic renewed the Purchase Agreement (the
“Renewed C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to
which, C-Flex Electronic agreed to continue to supply to the Group
FPCs and RFPCs, for a further term commencing from 1 January
2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. On 2 June 2017, the
Company and C-Flex Electronic entered into the Supplemental
C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement (the “Supplemental C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement”) to revise the annual caps for
the transactions under the Renewed C-Flex Electronic Purchase
Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2019 and
terminate the Renewed C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement
with effect from 1 July 2017. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 2 June 2017 for details.
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The price for the FPCs and RFPCs supplied by C-Flex Electronic
under the C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement, the Renewed
C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement and the Supplemental
C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement was determined by
reference to the price at which comparable types of FPCs and
RFPCs that are sold by independent suppliers to the Group under
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of its business
and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was
available from independent suppliers. In considering whether to
purchase from C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought quotations
from at least two independent third parties offering the same or
comparable products. The Group purchased the FPCs and RFPCs
from C-Flex Electronic if the price and quality of the products
offered were comparable to or more favourable to the Group
than those offered by independent third parties for the same or
comparable products.

C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi Venture
Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He
Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, and
10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer. As such, C-Flex Electronic is a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total transaction
amount under the C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement,
the Renewed C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement and the
Supplemental C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB15,937,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB18,000,000.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

EETREASEFREHE AY
EFENRBBINOAEEFREMR
a8 BRI EN R BB IR M AE 4 &
HERIEEIRER DL EBLHEEHRN
BHEXBGBIEPREFTEBEGRAAS
[ $5 % 9 [R) 28 32 14 B /Y B8 B8 AR AN SR AE 45
AR ERRNEBRET BERAE
BIRENBEERTSERNBLHER
Rt E - EEZREARNAEETFHEE
B AEBSRELMAEHRERKE
BERNBYLE=-TORE -WREE
EFFREERMEBRLE S HEHE
RISk EREMNIBILE =77 iRt E
ERHAKEENES  MAKERHE
BB R T EN R E B AR AN SR A A B ED
BEEIR

EEFHRFYMZHEIZEREERA
Al (HAFMIAN22EFRA)2ER
B MANEATDRBATESRERE
RARRERRKRE (M EMRANAESR)
08 EHEE90.0% K& 10.0% 2 © A it -

ETETFREBELMBAUNBERARBEEA
j:o

HE_ZT—+tF+_-_A=+—HI#HF

B REAEETRBHE ALEE
BURRBHRLOEETRBEAEHS

EITHR 5 BFEX R AKRME15,937,000
T AFREZEETNFERSRER
AR %18,000,0007T °



Supply Agreement and Supplemental Supply Agreement
in respect of the supply of camera modules and
fingerprint recognition modules to CK Telecom Limited
(“Heyuan CK”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a supply
agreement (the “Heyuan CK Supply Agreement”) with Heyuan
CK, pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply the camera
modules to Heyuan CK for the production of its products for
a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 29
December 2014, the Company and Heyuan CK entered into a
supplemental supply agreement (the “Heyuan CK Supplemental
Supply Agreement |”) to revise the annual caps under the Supply
Agreement. On 16 December 2016, the Company and Heyuan CK
renewed the Supply Agreement (the “Renewed Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Heyuan CK agreed to continue
to purchase camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
from the Group, for a further term commencing from 1 January
2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. On 2 June 2017, the
Company and Heyuan CK entered into a supplemental supply
agreement (the “Heyuan CK Supplemental Supply Agreement
II”) to revise the annual caps of transactions under the Renewed
Heyuan CK Supply Agreement for the three years ended 31
December 2019 under the Supply Agreement. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 2 June 2017 for details.

The price for the camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules supplied by the Group under the Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement, Heyuan CK Supplemental Supply Agreement I,
Renewed Heyuan CK Supply Agreement and Heyuan CK
Supplemental Supply Agreement Il was determined by reference
to the raw material costs and production costs to be incurred
by the Group and the profit margin, which is expected to be
comparable with the level of profits derived from the Group’s sales
to independent customers, subject to adjustments arising from the
expected quantity, quality, delivery schedule, specifications and
market competition.
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Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman
and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total transaction
amount under the Heyuan CK Supply Agreement, Heyuan CK
Supplemental Supply Agreement |, Renewed Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement and Heyuan CK Supplemental Supply Agreement ||
was approximately RMB78,821,000 and the revised annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB140,000,000.

Property Sub-Lease Agreement entered into by
Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and Chengdu CK Technology Limited
(“Chengdu CK”) (“Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”)

On 6 June 2014, Chengdu QT, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a lease agreement with
Chengdu CK (the “Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Chengdu CK agreed to sub-lease certain portion of
the premises situated on the 6th floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu
Software Park, No. 219 Tianhua Er Road, Gaoxin District,
Chengdu, the PRC ( BRI BK #B i1 & % (2 R ZE — §82195% RN & 14 &
CIE&12#R6/E ) , with total gross area of approximately 242 sg.m. to
Chengdu QT for a term from 6 June 2014 to 31 December 2016.
On 16 December 2016, Chengdu QT and Chengdu CK renewed
the Sub-Lease Agreement (“the Renewed Chengdu CK Sub-Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Chengdu CK agreed to continue
to sub-lease certain portion of the premises situated on the 6th
floor, Block 12, Zone C, Tianfu Software Park, No. 219 Tianhua
Er Road, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, the PRC ( 7 B pX & 1 = 31 &
KIE 2195 KT ECI®124R6/E ) , with total gross area of
approximately 242 sg.m. to Chengdu QT, for a term commencing
from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2016 for details.
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The landlord of the premises sub-leased by Chengdu CK to
Chengdu QT is an independent third party, the rent under the
Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement and Renewed Chengdu CK
Sub-Lease Agreement to be paid by Chengdu QT to Chengdu CK
is determined with reference to the market rent for similar premises
in the vicinity and the rent, utilities and management fees payable
by Chengdu CK under the tenancy agreement entered into with
the Landlord and on normal commercial terms, and such prices
shall be no less favourable to Chengdu QT than is available from
independent third parties.

Chengdu CK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK, which
is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He Ningning, an executive
Director, the Chairman and controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company and as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer,
respectively. As such, Chengdu CK is a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total transaction
amount under the Chengdu CK Sub-lLease Agreement and
Renewed Chengdu CK Sub-Lease Agreement was approximately
RMB124,000 and the annual cap amount for the Year was
RMB131,000.
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Property Lease Agreements entered into by Kunshan
QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Van Telecom PRC (the “Van Telecom PRC
Property Lease Agreements”)

Kunshan QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into two factory building and dormitories lease
agreements (collectively the “Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreements”) with Van Telecom PRC on 23 June 2016 and 16
September 2016 respectively, pursuant to which, Van Telecom
PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC (#F Bl T &1 & & 1L T2 )i #519995% ) to Kunshan
QT China for a term up to 31 December 2018. On 16 December
2016, Kunshan QT China renewed the lease agreements with
Van Telecom PRC (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC agreed
to continue to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC ( 1 BIJT # & B I 2 B 5 19995% ) to Kunshan
QT China for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and
expiring on 31 December 2019. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 16 December 2016 for details

The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to Kunshan QT China
is its own property, the rent under the Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreements and Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreement paid by Kunshan QT China to Van Telecom
PRC was determined with reference to the market rent for similar
premises in the vicinity and on normal commercial terms, and such
prices offered by Van Telecom PRC shall be no less favourable to
Kunshan QT China than is available from independent third parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the
Chairman and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total transaction
amount under the Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreements
and Renewed Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement was
approximately RMB2,452,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB2,646,000.

The Huizhou Youhua Purchase Agreement in respect
of the purchase of voice coil motors and linear motors
(“WCM and LM”) from Huizhou Youhua Micro Electronic
Technology Company Limited (“Huizhou Youhua”)

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Huizhou Youhua Purchase Agreement”) with
Huizhou Youhua, pursuant to which Huizhou Youhua agreed to
supply the VCM and LM to the Group for a term from 1 July 2017
to 31 December 2019. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 December 2016 for details.

The price for the VCM and LM supplied by Huizhou Youhua under
the Huizhou Youhua Purchase Agreement was determined with
reference to the price at which comparable types of VCM and
LM are sold to the Group by independent suppliers under normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business, and such
price shall be no less favourable to the Group than that were
available from independent suppliers. In considering whether to
purchase from Huizhou Youhua, the Group sought quotations
from at least two independent third parties offering the same or
comparable products. The Group purchased the VCM and LM
from Huizhou Youhua if the price and quality of the products
offered was comparable to or more favourable to the Group than
those offered by such independent third parties for the same or
comparable products.
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Huizhou Youhua is owned as to 0.392% by Mr. Hu Sanmu,
an executive Director of the Company, and as to 54.04% by
Shenzhen Handi Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to
90.0% by Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman
and controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer. As such, Huizhou Youhua
is a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total transaction
amount under the Huizhou Youhua Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB25,090,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB37,000,000.

Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement in
respect of the purchase of flexible printed circuit board
and rigid-flex printed circuit boards (“FPCs and Rigid-
Flex PCBs”) from C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd.
(“Huangshi C-Flex Electronic”)

On 2 June 2017, the Company entered into a purchase agreement
(the “Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) with
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic agreed to supply the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs to the
Group for a term from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2019. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2 June 2017 for
details.
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The price for the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs supplied by Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic under the Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase
Agreement was determined with reference to the price at which
comparable types of FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs are sold to the
Group by independent suppliers under normal commercial terms
in the ordinary course of business, and such price shall be no
less favourable to the Group than was available from independent
suppliers. In considering whether to purchase from Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought quotations from at least
two independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs
from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic if the price and quality of the
products offered was comparable to or more favourable to the
Group than those offered by such independent third parties for the
same or comparable products.

Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He
Ningning, an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, and
as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang Jiangiang, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer. As such, Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total transaction
amount under the Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement
was approximately RMB2,899,000 and the annual cap amount for
the Year was RMB22,000,000.

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such transactions
have been:

()  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) entered into on normal and fair commercial or better terms;
and
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(i) entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable for the interests of
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the relevant
independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EEZBRFER

IRRATESMAEBERLEROCRKRE
(—HANEEEE2EHANRA)
(Gf [ERERR])R=_F—0OFE+—A
T=ARTTHARABMOTHFER
B (T TEFRIE]) - B S ZERACR
“EUAREEEERTBEA (KEEK
BRAIRIN P ERIREREYETT
THEEAMNEFEXNEZERAEER
BT RABEBA R F RS (M
EBERIN) RNEFEEKEEERE
BARKENXEBBREFHNRAEE
BB I S s - B R A
REEAREEEFAKERRMEEHE
AEBFELAEFERFONEHNT
] 2 &) (CH P 70 Bt 52 i s A ] H A 78
ZRAEMFHASHITRABED
5% - B 3 35 P9 0 5 & AR A O 4 il 1
REFE10%IA EERIN o

RAFE  RARRSHWERK B ZRBRR

MIEBBERTE RATIRFRBE2F
JE & [ HERR LK ©

20175 F8% E#BE (£E)BERLTF

103



104

Directors’ Report
EEERE

The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult a professional adviser.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
has resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
He Ningning

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to
the Company’s Shareholders and protecting and enhancing
Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the
Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and
human resources support are in place for the Group to achieve
its objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but
are not limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and
strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major capital
expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Ms. Chen Jun
(resigned from her position as an INED,
a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Nomination Committee and
a member and the chairlady of the Risk Management
Committee on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Ko Ping Keung
(appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Nomination Committee and
a member and the chairman of
the Risk Management Committee on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and
an executive Director, is the step-brother of Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other
material relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.
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Throughout the Year, the Company had appointed three INEDs,
representing half of the Board members, and has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at least one-third of the Board members, and met
the requirement that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation in writing from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation, the Company considers that all the
INEDs are independent and have met the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to
the date of this report.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for a term of three years,
which is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

During the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning,
Mr. Wang Jiangiang, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Ko Ping Keung, Ms. Chen
Jun, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang) have complied with
the requirements of the Code Provision A6.5 of the CG Code, have
participated in relevant continuing professional development and
training at the Company’s expense, and all Directors have been
requested to provide the Company with their training records.

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided

briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities.
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Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held eighteen meetings in total (i.e. on
4 January, 11 January, 22 February, 16 March, 19 May, 31 May, 2
June, 9 June, 22 June, 9 August, 12 September, 22 September,
25 September, 28 September, 17 October, 21 November, 19
December and 26 December 2017 respectively) with notice given
to the Directors at least 14 days in advance. Before each Board
meeting, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers have
been sent to all Directors at least three days before the intended
date of the Board meeting or such other period as agreed in
advance. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping all Board meeting’s minutes.
The draft and final versions of the minutes have been circulated to
the Directors for comments and record within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’
inspection.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting during the Year is as follows:
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G

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HERE BEEREE
General
Board Meeting
Name of Directors EENSE g BRAXE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) fABmELE (FE) 18/18 1/1
Mr. Wang Jiangiang TR (7THAE)

(Chief Executive Officer) 18/18 1/1
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Vice President of Sales) =R E (HEFEE) 18/18 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

(the “INEDs”)

Ms. Chen Jun BRESZ+ (R=ZF—+tF

(resigned on 31 May 2017) HA=+—H#MT) 6/6 11
Mr. Ko Ping Keung RAXRBEE(RZE—tF

(appointed on 31 May 2017) AA=+—HEZET) 12/12 =
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBELE 18/18 1/1
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MRFERE 18/18 11
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience
and professional experience.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, Chairman, is responsible
for the management of the Board while Mr. Wang Jiangiang,
Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for managing the Group’s
business and overall operations. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

During the Year, Ms. Chen Jun resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Nomination
Committee and a member and the chairlady of the Risk
Management Committee due to personal affairs (please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2017 for details).
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia—Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions regarding its

resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussing with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

TRERHRE

EEEeRT£8E

59 E‘“*Eﬂ—@ﬂééﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ
rEzEg REZESMAR
BEZBEE UEMEEARRTRN
mZEEER- %%A?Ti/\ai’]%
REBTESERAEZADER

Kgm

EFEeR ZEazEERESRED A
T B OB X P R AR R 4k b o

EREEE

EZZECAGEARELERNTA L
BT -BERZESRE=-RBIUIFH
TES Eﬂb&f“m%i = RO E K )
REELE - RGEBRLEETEREZES
EFEe

ERZEENTIEABMNBREBFEET

=
pzi|
/7

. Ef@l\uﬁ?ﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬂ’]éﬂm B K R
MEFSRMHEZ HEINBZH
b 7 BN K B2 A 1%??7\ K EEAA
38 5N B A BB B B Sk AR BE 0 R R

o ERIMNEPEZBUAD 2B - REE R
ZERE PR BERER ZE I
I 72 A 46 A B AT B2 5 8 % 2R AW 7 AT
ZHEEHESEMERT T

o I MENITEEME NP AR BB 2 K
R ARMSEEZBRY RME=SE
B URBETHABEREE R
B EMEA:

20175 F8% E#BE (£E)BERLTF

111



112

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments
contained therein;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

discussing the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty and
have an effective internal control system in place;

considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of

control and management’s response;

reviewing the pricing rules of continuing connected
transactions and implementation of transaction caps, etc.;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the

issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter; and

considering other topics as defined by the Board.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings in total
(i.e. on 16 March 2017 and 9 August 2017 respectively) (the “Audit
Committee Meetings”) and reviewed the audited consolidated
results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the unaudited
consolidated results for the six months ended 30 June 2017 of
the Company, respectively, including the accounting principles
and practice adopted by the Group, the Company’s compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code and disclosure thereof
in the relevant annual and interim reports, the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and recommended to the Board for
consideration the same and the re-appointment of KPMG, Certified
Public Accountant, as the Company’s external auditor at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 May 2017
(2017 AGM").

The attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings
during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE (M)
Name of Directors EE®HSE BERERFE
Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) RnBxEE (FE) 2/2
Ms. Chen Jun BRESZ+ (R=F—+t%F 11
(resigned on 31 May 2017) AA=+—H#T)
Mr. Ko Ping Keung BREEE(RZZT—LF 11
(appointed on 31 May 2017) RA=+—BHEZMT)
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang IIRELE 2/2

Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by all the Directors in

person, not by an alternate.
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The Audit Committee held one meeting on 19 March 2018 and
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results for the
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Ko Ping Keung. Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to:

e making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation

payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;
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e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
reasonable and not excessive;

e reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings on 16 March 2017 and 31 May 2017, and reviewed
and recommended to the Board for consideration certain
remuneration-related matters of the Directors and senior
management, determined the policy for the remuneration of
executive Directors, assessed performance of executive Directors
and approved the terms of newly appointed INEDs’ service
contracts and remuneration.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director’s workload
and required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual
contributions to the Group’s results and development as well
as individual’'s potential were considered when determining the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors.
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The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:

EEENAFELEFNEE S &L
g (N

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE ()
Name of Directors EEHNSE BERERE
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) MRERE () 2/2
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGBERE 2/2
Ms. Chen Jun BREB I (RZF—+F 2/2

(resigned on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

(appointed on 31 May 2017) AA=+—HE

Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on 19
March 2018, and reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors
and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises
two INEDs, namely Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
and an executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He
Ningning is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include, but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

e  assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing the
measurable objectives for implementing such Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background,
industry experience and professional experience of the Board,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and making
disclosure of its progress and its review results in the annual
report annually; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
on 16 March 2017 and 31 May 2017, and among other things,
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring
Directors as Directors at the 2017 AGM, determined the policy for
the nomination of Directors as well as made recommendations on
the appointment of INEDs.
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The attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee
Meetings during the Year is as follows:

EEENAFELFIRETESCEHT
g (N

No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE ()
Name of Directors EEHNSE BERERE
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) A/ 5 & (F/E) 2/2
Ms. Chen Jun BREB 2+ (RZFE— L5 2/2
(resigned on 31 May 2017) AA=+—HET)
Mr. Ko Ping Keung RAXRBAEE(RZZE—tF -
(appointed on 31 May 2017) AR=+—HEZT)
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MRFELE 2/2

Note: The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 19 March
2018, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration the
reappointment of the retiring Directors and the Directors who filled
a casual vacancy or appointed as an addition to the existing
Board, namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Ko Ping
Keung as Directors at the AGM as well as reviewed the Board’s
Diversity Policy.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Risk Management Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin, both INEDs and Mr. Fan
Fugiang, the chief financial officer of the Company. In particular,
two members are our INEDs. Mr. Ko Ping Keung is the chairman of
the Risk Management Committee.
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EREEZEeNTEAGNLKBEATE
BAERER:

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;

reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;

reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million
exclusive) as requested from time to time (the provision of
reviewing the risks associated with the purchase of wealth
management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB10 million (RMB10 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time was amended to reviewing
the risks associated with, and approving, the purchase of
wealth management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time, pursuant to the amendments
made to the funds management policy at the Risk
Management Committee meeting held on 24 March 2016);

reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.
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During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held four
meetings in total (i.e. on 16 March, 19 May, 31 May and 9
August 2017) (“Risk Management Committee Meetings”). At the
above meetings, the Risk Management Committee reviewed and
assessed the Group’s wealth management product investment in
terms of whether such investment have complied with the Group’s
treasury and investment policies, the fund safety of and risks
associated with such investment and reviewed the status such
as debt asset ratio, operating cash flow and gearing ratio of the
Company.

The attendance of each member of the Risk Management
Committee Meetings during the Year is as follows:

RAEE BEREELZESHBITONKX
CF HRHIR=_FE—tF=A+xH"
EAt+AB - REA=+—BENARAH
(IRkERZEgER]) AREEZ
BNz e LtEMATHEASEN
BUERZERERGEETAEENE
FHERBRERKR B2 REZSE
REBBORKR  AEBEBAREEE
BER KENBEESR BLrEEBEXREH

[E:NE O

EXRERAFELERAREELZESS
ARACERLAAT -

No. of Attendance (Note 1)/
Eligible to attend

HERE (M),
Name of members REMHE BERERE
Ms. Chen Jun (Chairladly) AL L (£E) (RZT—tF 3/3
(resigned on 31 May 2017) AA=+—H&T)
Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman) RRBEE (FE) (RZE—+F 11
(appointed on 31 May 2017) RFA=Z+—HEZT)

Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIGELE 4/4
Mr. Fan Fugiang (Note 2) SBE i E (HiF2) 4/4
Note 1:  The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by all  f/;77: PE=EHHEESLERBEERLZE
the Directors in person, not by an alternate. ek JFEREAHE-

Note 2: Mr. Fan Fugiang is the chief financial officer and former joint  f/722 :© DBEBRLEEARNATHEHEERLR

company secretary of the Company. He has resigned as the
joint company secretary on 21 November 2017.

The Risk Management Committee also held one meeting on 19
March 2018, and reviewed and assessed the Group’s wealth
management product investment in terms of whether such
investment has complied with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment, and also assessed whether the operating cash of the
Group is sufficient and the control policies of liquidity risks.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

e reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commenced
from the month on which the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office
for Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commenced from 8 July 2016. On
2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.
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Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr. Ng
Sui Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang is three years with effect from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the shares of the
Company were initially listed on the Stock Exchange : the term of
office for Mr. Ko Ping Keung is 36 months commenced from 31
May 2017. Ms. Chen Jun resigned as an INED due to personal
affairs (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 May 2017 for details). On 2 December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin signed letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of 36 months commencing from 2 December
2017.

None of the Directors has a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting after his appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Ko Ping Keung
(appointed as an INED on 31 May 2017) will hold office until the
AGM and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
AGM.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Article 84 of Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is less than three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once
every three years. A retiring Director will be eligible for re-election
and will continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will include (so
far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by
rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those
who have been the longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) of Articles of Association shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. He Ningning and Mr.
Ng Sui Yin will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible to
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:
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Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in RMB) AR (ARY) ATEE
Nil to 1,000,000 = %=1,000,0007T 6
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0017t21,500,0007T 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG, the auditor, for the
services provided during the Year is set out below:

BB

AEE ZERETMEFMER SN
SB 2B REED -

RAFERMEZIRBE N A EEAD
ESREMEBAZHMIET T :

Fee paid/payable

e ENER
RMB’000

Services R AR¥T T
Interim review and annual audit service —E—+FHhEEMK

for 2017 FERTRY 1,930
Corporate environmental, Social and TERRE HTERERRE

Governance Reporting advisory services B IRTS 200
Total @Er 2,130*

* The amount includes service fee of RMB2,047,000 and related VAT of
RMB83,000.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year
at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Highlights of our internal control system include the
following:

e Code of conduct — The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.

° Management of related party transactions — The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control and only enter into
transactions with related parties that are carried out in the
ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

° Internal audit — The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.
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e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations — The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in PRC on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the internal control
measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Fan Fugiang (“Mr. Fan”) as
one of the joint company secretaries of the Company since 11
June 2014. Mr. Fan joined the Group in July 2011 with sound
understanding of the operations of the Board and the Group. He
was closely involved in the preparation of the Listing. To maintain
sound corporate governance of the Company and comply with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and other relevant laws and
regulations, the Company has also appointed Ms. Hung Ching
Yuen (“Ms. Hung”), who is in compliance with Note 1 to Rule 3.28
of the Listing Rules, as a joint company secretary. She worked
closely with Mr. Fan and assisted him in fulfilling his duties and
responsibilities as a joint company secretary of the Company.
Ms. Hung primarily contacted with Mr. Fan in respect of company
secretary matters.

Mr. Fan subsequently resigned as a joint company secretary
with effect from 21 November 2017, but he remains to be the
chief financial officer of the Company. Ms. Hung resigned as a
joint company secretary and an authorised representative with
effect from 21 November 2017. Mr. Cheng Zhihua (“Mr. Cheng”)
was appointed as the Company Secretary and authorised
representative with effect from 21 November 2017 (details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
November 2017).
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Mr. Cheng is an external service provider to the Company and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(in compliance with Note 1 to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules). The
primary contact person between the Company and Mr. Cheng is
Mr. Fan.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and/or the Chief
Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The appointment
and removal of the joint company secretaries or the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board’s approval.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or make a motion at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or make a motion may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
EGM” set out below.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than ten percent of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called by
the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or making a motion at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or making a motion at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 1715, 17/F, Topsalil
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) for
the attention of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial
officer.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s) made
or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the outcome
and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM.
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If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company, at Room 1715, 17/F, Topsail
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong by
post or by email to Mr. Cheng Zhihua at tonycheng128@yahoo.
com.hk or Mr. Fan Fugiang at richard.fan@ck-telecom.com, for
the attention of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial
officer.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary and/or the
chief financial officer will forward the communications relating to:

1.  matters within the Directors’ purview to the executive
Directors of the Company;

2.  matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and customer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.

TRERHRE

HEZESREEBEREERIKR2ANKRAA
FMERBBRRFERARE RERARTBTT
BRBRBIAE MARFARNEH
RERBRRENAEEEREARZA
ECHEHCERBRRELANAEREER
o

BRROESSBRHEAZRF

BROINERNEFERAARARNESSR
HHEERER SBBUHXREARFLZ
FEEEMB(FEHIALBHZLEH
SRENEEB17TE1716F ) KB BB H %
# 12 2 1t % & (tonycheng128@yahoo.
com.hk)3k 38 & 58 4t 4 (richard.fan@ck-
telecom.com)* AR AR E K 5B
TEHREE T T o

WEZEERE RAWE R KB
MEREBENTHRBER:

1. EHESMEREAZBHEEAA
AZHTES:

2. FHEFSETZE@REANL
EHEMEZEEIFE R

3. —REHBFR(flgz MErE
FHRHF)EARRRIHEEERE -

20175 5% E#BE (£E)BRLTA

129



130

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders can
have equal and timely access to information about the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the

Company during the Year. The M&A is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About this Report

Basis of Preparation

This report is the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group in 2017, which is prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, truly reflecting the environmental, social and
governance responsibilities performed by the Group in 2017.

Business of the Group

The Group is a leading mid-to-high end mobile terminal
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
manufacturer in the PRC, which mainly engages in the
manufacturing of camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules used in smart mobile terminals, including mobile
phones and tablets.

Scope of the Report

The reporting period of this report is the 2017 financial
year (i.e. from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017).
The principal businesses involved in this report include the
manufacture and sale of camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules used in mobile phones and other smart
devices. Kunshan QT China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, the principal place of business of which is the
production base (“Production Base”) and the headquarters
office of the Group located in Kunshan, is the place where
the Group’s major business activities take place. As for
operating offices of the Group located in other places such as
Shenzhen, Taiwan and Hong Kong, taking into consideration
their supporting roles, they are not covered in this report as
their activities do not constitute any significant threat to the
safety of the society and environment.

RIR -HERERKRE

AR E
CEES

AHRERAEB T —LFEKRB
B H?GX%ﬁﬁimfﬁﬁ‘JWﬁ27W
RE-HERkERMEIE %|>> #
E?iﬁ%mf&iﬁ‘ﬁ’\& A

EAEE T — tif@ﬂf‘«&
S HERER-AEANEER
Hgilo

UF n“HE

i

REMEK

AEERTHBELENTSHBEHK
iy 9 R BB AR AR N 1R AU R AR A B
B EITEREXBREERARE
BEERRERETH FREMSF
E’Uﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ#ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ%%ﬂ°

BEHE

AHRENRMEHR-_ZT—LFHH
FE(=F— ti—ﬂ—Eli_
T—+F+-_A=+—H) - XxRE
MNERBEFEEAEENEE FH#
MEMEBERENEGRERA KIS
BHBRRE- AEEETHNEZEMN
BARERILERKPE FELLE
BB AAKRBEURERLUNEER
(TEEREM ] NMBLBRAE 2
AEBITEREBELTSNELM-E
B AR B AR H bt B R Y|
BEMBEENRAERIFUHEN
KEDE - HEBZE e kIR
RELE2HTEATMEKEREE Tt
R|EGEW FBE -

20175 F8% E#BE (£E)BERLTF

131



132

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -dHERERHRE

Development Strategies of the Group on
Environmental, Social and Governance

1. In recent years, sustainable development has become a
significant concern of the public; in addition to product
quality, issues in respect of whether the production
process would cause serious environmental impacts and
whether the workers have been treated fairly are drawing
more and more attention.

2. We highly recognize the importance of managing
sustainability risk, such as environmental pollution and
child labour problems, which may constitute material
threats to the corporate image and performance of the
Group. As such, during the year, we continued to take all
necessary measures to reduce energy consumption and
emission, and reduce the production process’s impacts
on the earth, water and other natural resources in the
neighborhood.

3. The Group has implemented the major principles of
environmental protection and social responsibility in
its daily operations. During the year, we engaged a
third-party consultant to communicate with external
stakeholders to learn about their needs, and to record
and analyse environmental performance indicators in
order to formulate appropriate management policies
and objectives and to comply with relevant laws and
regulations

4. The Group strives to become an enterprise which can
get the respect and recognition from both the customers
and the public.

Source of Information

The information disclosed in this report is mainly sourced from
the internal documents of the Group, internal data analysis
and market public information. The contents of all information
are reviewed and confirmed by the management of the
Company and responsible departments, and are duly filed.
In case of any doubt or opinion regarding the content of the
report, you are welcome to contact the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Responsibility of the Board

All the information disclosed in this Report has been reviewed
and confirmed by members of the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement

In formulating the policies and directions in relation to
environmental and social responsibility, materiality assessment
plays an indispensable important role, which can instruct the
future operation and development of the Group. Therefore,
during the year, the Group engaged an independent
third-party consultancy firm to extend our stakeholders
engagement exercise to cover external stakeholders,
including bankers, customers and investors, in order to
understand those environmental and social responsibility
issues that they view as important for the Group. The
consultancy firm analyzed the findings from these interviews
and identified issues with high levels of materiality to the
Group.

In the future, there may arise a need for us to communicate
with a more extensive scope of stakeholders, such as
suppliers, independent non-executive directors and
non-management employees, so as to obtain a more
comprehensive understanding of all sorts of views and
further improve the environmental, social and governance
performance of the Group.

Stakeholders Involved in the Interviews of 2017

Category Focus

Bankers The Group’s operating results and compliance
with laws in relation to environmental protection
and social responsibilities issues

Customers Product quality and safety

Investors Internal management, anti-corruption system and

business performance of the Group
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Q Technology 2017 Materiality Matrix

3 Materiality Analysis
During the interviews with internal stakeholders, they were
being invited to give scores on the questionnaire for the
various issues on environmental and social responsibility
base on materiality. A range of highly important issues that
have material impact on the Group have been proposed after
further analyzing the opinions collected.
The materiality matrix constructed based on the results of the
interviews is set out below:
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BEAETL K&HE

Child and forced labour
BRERERTS
Occupational health and safety
EmAE

Product responsibility
K&

Anti-corruption

B I w7

Employee benefits
HrEsEE IR

Supply chain management
8T E#REKIEI

Staff development & training
ATE

Human rights
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HERKREBNEEN

Importance to Q Technology’s business

Qs=mzy
Hazardous waste
O 7«
Water consumption
A&

Electricity consumption

© oKk
Wastewater discharge
EAEREE
Indoor air quality

o R
Air emissions
BEME
Packaging material
HERE

Community investment
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Non-Hazardous waste
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Noise of Production Bases/shops
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Fuel for mobile uses
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Climate change



After assessing the views and opinions of stakeholders
collected in interviews, we present the significant
environmental, social and governance issues and their
relationships with business operations based on materiality in

the chart below:

Aspects

BE

Environmental

81

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Key issues
EEZE

Hazardous waste

BERED

Electricity consumption

Water consumption

F 7K

Wastewater discharge

FE KRR

Indoor air quality

D3
>
H
AN
i
feln

Air emissions

FiE RHE IR
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P A 25 48 B8 & Bh AP AR SR O R
BN B RETHE  BEARIRE
HekErMBEREERKESHN
BREEERENRTERTR:

Relationship with business
B ZBR

Certain amount of hazardous chemicals were
generated in the production process.

SERNLEEBRETEERA THENASEm-
Electricity was consumed in the operation of

the Group’s Production Bases to conduct
production.

SEETHEEENTERSE
B o

The major consumption of water of the Group was
due to the operation of water curtain system
for filtering air pollutants, used by the lenses
cleaning and consumed as domestic water for
dormitories.

SEXE2NAKRERBRERGTEM I KER
moBRRBREE ZEERK.

Wastewater was generated from the Production
Bases and dormitories of the Group.

SEMNAEEMNESOSELREK.

The soldering and painting process was required
during camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules manufacturing of which,
generated waste gases and posed impact on
the indoor air quality.

FREGERANMENEEANEERRTRTZETE
BEREZNTIF AUHSELATENEARTE
ERNERHNEE -

The soldering and painting process was required
during camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules manufacturing of which,
generated waste gases and emitted.

EBREERANENEANEERERTZETE
EREZNTIF AUhSELTEENERBEM-

BIE RALER
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Aspects Key issues

il EEZE

Social Child labour and labour
e exploitation

BAET NS RH

Product responsibility

EmAE

Occupational health and
safety

BEEFRELS

Anti-corruption

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

Relationship with business

EER CBE

The Group is very concerned about the issues
of labour exploitation and child labour and
therefore strictly complies with all relevant local
labour laws and regulations.

$EI3E%*E$EM@?IJ%J%D§IFEJ B APTERAS B

EMMANS THEBEEREER-

As a supplier of components, the quality of
products and services is crucial to the business
of the Group.

ERTHHHER EnkRENERHAEEN
EGERER-

Ensuring health and safety of staff is one of the
most important objectives of the Group. We are
committed to providing our staff with a safe and
comfortable working environment.

&@EI%@%E*%%$EIWEEEF2—Oﬁ
BN REIRE—EL2 MEFENTERE

The Group has always firmly believed that integrity
and compliance are the source of strength for
enterprise development. We require our staff to
be honest and clean, and not to seek personal
benefits by taking advantage of the Group’s
resource.

AEE-BEREREATENERERNNERR
HMPBBREIRFBLERZE THAAEEER
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4 Environmental 4 IR
4.1 Environmental-related Policies 4.1 RIEBHEBBER

- As a leading camera and fingerprint recognition — {EA— AP EEEE
module manufacturer in the PRC, apart from ¥ 48 F0HE 40 5 Bl 1R 48 BU o
attaching importance to scientific research o EERERAIF &%
innovation, high-efficient production and lean HEMBASIEIN EF2
management, the Board believes that it is crucial to HEYEMTFIRRETRE X
business operation to effectively conduct efforts on ELEFBERBBE LA
environmental conservation and improve resources T 78 1 P AR AR 2 iR A2 A BB
consumption efficiency of production, and strives to s~ AOR A R E fth K2R
reduce the hazards affecting the surrounding lands, BRMARKE  SEBE
water sources and other natural resources during BEHER &
production.

- The Group is well recognized in the construction — EEEREAXAERSGHE
of its environmental production system and has EFEEIRRE B EE
obtained 1SO14001 (Environmental Management) ISO14001(IRIEEE )N E
Qualification Certificate. BB o

- The Group complies with the state and regional — EEBETTEIRMNHMEMEAE
relevant environmental protection and prevention FAIRIR RGN BIBAELES
rules. It also actively cooperates with government BT ERPIBIIT I - BIEM R
departments in inspections on safety, environmental REMEHPEETHNLS
protection, firefighting and occupational health of RR HM BERES®R
enterprises conducted in a regular, specific and T pEXREEHBNIERE
unexpected manner, and make filing records for FEETERLREER WK
the environmental impact of construction projects BIEESE = F B R SR T
as well as invites third party agencies to prepare Lo
environment impact assessment report according to
the regulations.

- In accordance with the regulations, the Group starts — HRBREHET AERERAEE
to disclose five environmental key performance WEMBIWERARBEEN
indicators (“KPI") in this year’s ESG report and EIE([EWIBE]) WA
presents the total amount of the year. We will find FEAHSHHIAET - M
appropriate method for measuring intensity through BHEBBERANTEREFE
more in-depth research and discussion with an aim oA EM A EARE
to continually improving the disclosure quality in the HEZRE BZENAKREE
future. WEFHBERIKTF -

Q017EFH  ESEHE (EM)ERAT 137



138

4.2 Hazardous Waste Disposal

The main hazardous wastes used and discharged
by the Group are as follows: waste bath solutions,
organic solutions, waste paint slag, printing ink, dye
and coating and etc.

The Group has formulated and implemented
the Administrative Method for Waste Chemicals
and Materials with clear guidelines regarding the
procedures of classification and collection, specific
storage container, chemical labeling, tracking
and disposal of hazardous wastes. Each of the
department head monitors the procurement,
storage, utilization, disposal and emergency
treatment of such chemicals and ensures its strict
implementation.

Each production department is required to
collect and store hazardous materials in specific
containers and administrative department will
contact third-party organization which qualified by
government authority to handle such chemicals
after classification and recording. Regular online
declaration of relevant discharge record will
be conducted on the official website of local
Environmental Protection Administration where the
Production Bases locate.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Total amount of hazardous waste discharged by the
Group in 2017
Classification of hazardous waste Disposal (Kg)

Hydrocarbons and water mixtures 59,680
for ultrasonic cleaning

Industrial glue and hose 8,750
Waste alcohol soaked wiping cloth 6,500
Waste ethyl acetate for cleaning lances 92,215

Sewage from sedimentation tank of waste paint slag 200,000

waste paint slag 40,000

4.3 Electricity Consumption

— During the camera modules and fingerprint
recognition modules manufacturing process, the
main resource consumed is electricity. Precision
manufacturing requires high standard for the
production site, which are mostly clean rooms at
class 10 or class 1000 standard which need strong
air-conditioning and ventilation system. While in
production, spot-welder and oven also need to be
driven by more powerful electricity. Therefore, the
main measures of the Group to conserve electricity
are to optimize production procedures, enhance
electricity utilization efficiency, execute recycling and
reuse measures and even increase green energy
usage such as solar power electricity generation
within part of the dormitories.
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— In response to the national policy direction of green
production under the 13th Five-Year Plan, the
Group developed energy conservation plans and
goals during the year, mainly to enhance hardware
efficiency, optimize production and management
procedures, review and evaluate the progress of
energy-saving goals regularly, and analyze and
adjust the measures in a timely manner.

—  Optimize production and management procedures:
e  Starting from the production plans to enable
the equipment to operate at full capacity as

much as possible

e Reducing the wasted products and related
energy consumption

e Improving the automatic level of production
and enhancing energy efficiency

Total electricity consumption of the Group in 2017

Total electricity

Scope consumption (kwh)
Production Base at Hanpu Road, Kunshan City 30,071,822
Phase | Production Base at Taihong Road, 57,357,493

Kunshan City

Phase Il Production Base at Taihong Road, 9,210,547
Kunshan City

Total consumption during the year 96,639,862

1 40 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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4.4 Water Consumption and Sewage Discharge

The Group highly focuses on water resources
management, including water utilization. It avoids
contaminating water sources during production
and work process so as to sustain the utilization of
water resources. The Group improved the spraying
water curtain sewage treatment process and added
the water curtain recycling sewage treatment
equipment during the year, which reduced the
amount of wastewater discharge and reduced the
waste paint slag.

The Group formulated the sewage management
procedures, which assures sewage discharge to
meet the relevant standards through separate
treatment of sewage generated from plants and
dormitories. The plants are also equipped with
septic tank and sewage treatment system. Sewage
must be treated before flowing into municipal pipe
network. No direct discharge is permitted. Pipelines
of sewage and rain are segregated strictly to avoid
waste oil and chemicals from entering into the
sewer. Factory staff inspects the sewage treatment
system every day, records the sewage discharge
volume and reports to local safety and environment
department monthly for filing.

The Group advocates the recycling of waste water
and established the waste water recycling system
according to Waste Water Recycling System
Management Regulation {EE7K B F & & & 12
&) formulated by the Group. It recovers and filters
waste water for revolving use in the workshops and
reduced water consumption.
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Total water consumption of the Group in 2017

Total water

Scope consumption (m?

Production Base at Hanpu Road, Kunshan City 284,194

Phase | Production Base at Taihong Road, 476,757
Kunshan City

Phase Il Production Base at Taihong Road, 62,278
Kunshan City

Total consumption during the year 823,229

Discharge and recovery of sewage from the Group’s
Production Base in 2017

Total amount of

Sewage type water (md)
Discharge 3,146
Recovery 28,314

- The recycling percentage of the Group’s sewage
water is about 90%.
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4.5 Air Pollution 4.5 RS H

Indoor Air Quality

In the test report on the occupational hazardous agents
in the workplace conducted during the year, the Group
tested a number of toxic substances in the air within
the workplace according to the national regulations.
The tested items include: stannic oxide from the tin
spotting process, methanol produced by glue, butanone
emanated from the coating, and the circulation of
indoor air. The test results showed that the exhaust
gas concentration in the workshop is in line with the
requirements of Occupational Exposure Limits for
Hazardous Agents in the Workplace Part 1: Chemical
Hazardous Agents ((TYESAHBEEA XM EEBEREAE
F1E D (LEFERE) (GBZ 2.1-2007)) of National
Occupational Health Standards of the People’s Republic
of China.

Air Emissions
There are three main categories of Air Emissions from the
Group’s Production Bases:

—  Camera modules manufacturing: the reflow waste
gas generated during the soldering process. As the
volume is immaterial, waste gas will be collected
and exhaust by a 15-meter high funnel in the form
of turbine extraction.
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—  Fingerprint recognition modules manufacturing:
Waste gas generated from coating material in
coating workshops is filtered through specific
water curtain installed in the Production Base.
Particles generated from filtering will be combusted
for disposal by RTO heat reserve exhaust air
burning oven, and discharged collectively, without
secondary pollution.

— Vehicle exhaust emission: the Group advocates
less vehicle utilization, and encourages employees
to go green by bus or on bicycle. Furthermore,
the Group’s vehicles are required to conduct
comprehensive inspection in government’s testing
centers at scheduled time each year, and vehicles
not conforming to exhaust emission requirements
will not be used.

Air emissions from the Group’s Production Bases in

2017

Scope Emission (kg)

Production Base at Hanpu Road, 5,670
Kunshan City

Production Base at Taihong Road, 1,563
Kunshan City (Phase | and Phase Il)

Total consumption during the year 7,233

—  Exhaust emission includes welding waste gas and
hot exhaust air.

—  The emission from the Production Base at Hanpu
Road, Kunshan City is based on estimation, and the
Group is developing a new system to enhance the
accuracy of data collection.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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4.6.1 Noise Control

The Group pays serious attention to the
noise effect from plant manufacturing to
the surroundings, and formulated the Noise

Management Regulation ( (I2&EEHE) )
to regulate its staff.

The Group engages a professional third party
to conduct a noise monitoring exercise every
year, and assures noise level is in conformity to
statutory standards.

Sets up respective departments for the
introduction, development, research,
application and marketing of new noise
abatement technology, enhances employees’
training and propaganda.

Conducted noise inspection in Production
Bases according to the Occupational Exposure
Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace.
Part 2: Physical Agents ( (T1EHFTAE ERA
ZBEEBRAE FoBo WEREX) ) (GBZ
2.2-2007) of National Occupational Health
Standards of the People’s Republic of China
during the year, and all the check points
were in line with requirements of relevant
regulations.
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4.6.2 Greenhouse gas emission

In recent years, the Group is preparing the
Greenhouse Gases Regulations ( CEE &
BE®YL) ). The Group has preliminarily
planned the scope of greenhouse gas data
collection, with a view of implementation
of greenhouse gas calculations as soon as
possible with the assistant of professional
third-party consultants, and well prepared
for Central Government’s plan on carbon
reduction.

4.6.3 Non-hazardous waste disposal

The non-hazardous waste disposal sources are

mainly generated from three aspects, which the

Group has set up relevant management initiatives:

Engineering construction: Re-engineering,
repairing, new engineering works for
equipment and surrounding Production
Base should be conducted in the Production
Base periodically. The Group required that
before entering into contracts, contractors
must provide respective documents such as
Treatment of Waste Regulations ( (EEZ¥ R
EEEHEE) ) and Environmental Guidelines
( (3R¥% 7 &) ) and ensure appropriate
treatment of building debris.

Packaging materials and household waste in
dormitories: Adopt the “sort first then treat”
principle. Wastes will be gathered and will be
dealt with by professional institution selected
by tender.

Compliance with Rules

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any

material non-compliance with laws and regulations

relating to Environmental emissions.
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5 Social

5.1

5.2

Social-related Policies

The Group has a series of policies in place to manage
the issues related to various aspects of the society. The
policies are applicable to the following scopes:

e  Child and forced labour

o Product responsibility

e QOccupational Health and safety
e Anti-corruption

e  Staff welfare

e  Staff development and training
e  Supply chain management

e Community investment

Child and forced labour

— The Group respects talents and is committed to
provide a quality, diversify and impartial working
environment without discrimination. The human
resources department pays attention to the labour
laws and relevant regulations on a regular basis,
and is in strict compliance with relevant national
laws and regulations, including but not limited to
Labour Law of the PRC ( (R ZE A R A E 4 &)
55) ), Minors Protection Law ( (R F ARE
75) ), and has always been highly concerned
about labour rights, career development and safety.

Forced Labour

Working overtime is a common problem during the
peak production season of the Group, but the Group
will not force any employee to work overtime. Instead,
the Group will manage employees’ overtime hours
through centralized system and employees can apply to
work overtime voluntarily with a daily overtime working
hours cap of three hours. The Group adopts a flexible
paid leave system to ensure the health and balance
development of employees.
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Our employees have good impression on the Company
as a whole. The annual turnover rate was less than 3%
for functional staff. Proportion of male and female worker
in the production line of Production Bases is 3:2, which
is an average proportion and no discrimination against
female employees is found.

Child Labour

— The Group has formulated policies to clearly
prohibit child labour, established a confidential and
anonymous complaint mechanism and regularly
reviews the procedures of recruitment agencies to
ensure the verification of the age of their employees
as a standard process and makes it a selecting
criteria of agents. If job application of child labour
is found, the Group will communicate with its
legal guardian and arrange handling methods. If
there is illegal behavior, platforms for reporting to
management are established within the Group,
for example, employees can report in person or
by e-mails. Further, to protect underage workers
between 16 and 18 years old, the Group will
not arrange them to work night shift nor work in
relatively high-polluted painting workshops.

Compliance with Rules

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding labour standards, and obtained the
compliance certificate in terms of work safety granted
by Administration of Work Safety and Environmental
Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial Development
Park.
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5.3 Product responsibility

The Group strictly complied with the Law of the
PRC on Product Quality ( (P ZE AR KELMBERE
=,%5) ) and other product-related laws to establish
formal management policies for the health and safety,
advertisement, label and privacy of products and set
up specific policies on process quality control and
finished product management. Besides, the Group has
obtained ISO9000 product quality control certificate and
conducted customer satisfaction survey regularly.

To ensure no hazardous substances contained in raw
materials, the Group regularly required raw material
suppliers to provide authoritative third-party institution’s
inspection reports. All products must go through
stringent internal inspection before delivery. Besides, the
Group also entrusts a third-party institution for sample
testing in accordance with international and domestic
standards from time to time.

In order to protect customers’ privacy, the Group has
obtained the ISO 27001 certificate, which confirmed the
Group’s achievements and efforts in information safety
management.

—  During the year, the Group conducted interviews
and communications with our two most important
customers through the assistance of third-party
consulting companies and customers are generally
satisfied with the product quality and services. With
increasing awareness of green products, customers
also pay more attention to the groups’ efforts on
environmental and social issues in the supply chain.
For example, they require suppliers to provide
environmental impact assessment and social
responsibility reports. The Group will try its best to
cooperate with customers, jointly contributing to
national green development.
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Compliance with Rules

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding product responsibility.

Occupational Health and Safety

The principal business of the Group is to produce
camera and fingerprint recognition modules, which
belongs to the light electronic industry. Therefore, it will
not pose a serious safety problem to employees in the
manufacturing process generally. However, during the
production process, there is still a chance of exposure
to risks arising from hazardous chemicals and potential
fire hazard. The Group strictly complied with relevant
safety laws and regulations such as the PRC Production
Safety Law ( (FEAREMELZ2EEE) ) and Safe
Production Regulations of Jiangsu Province ( (T # & %
A EEHY ), formulated and implemented the Code
of Practice on Safety and Health ( {(Z 2 &4 T{ETF
Bl]) ) and the Hazards Realization Project ( {f& =@t
2l) ), arranged specific occupational safety and health
personnel for the Company, and regularly identified,
assessed and controlled the hazards related to work
environment or operation. The Group’s efforts to ensure
a safe working environment are highly recognized and
have obtained OSHAS18001 safety certificate and the
compliance certificate in terms of work safety granted
by Administration of Work Safety and Environmental
Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial Development
Park.

The measures for occupational health and safety
implemented during the year are as follows:

Safety Risks in the Workshop

— As some production machines inevitably produce
noise with high frequency and high decibel during
their operation, we required employees to wear
earplugs. The Group’s Safety Working Team
regularly inspected the wearing of earplugs, masks
and gloves for employees.
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The Group cooled high-heat production machines
with recycled pure water to help reduce the
temperature in the workshop.

During the year, the Group appointed qualified third
party to evaluate the occupational hazards in the
Production Base according to relevant national
occupational health laws and regulations and to
prepare an inspection report. No violations were
found.

Training and Dirills

The Group has a complete firefighting and
safety management system in place. Under the
Surveillance and Measurement Control Program
((EEREZRIESIREF) ), the Group conducts
two fire drills every year, assesses and improves
the efficiency and smoothness of the drills, such as
emergency evacuation route, whether all staff are
in place within time limit, examines and maintains
fire prevention and extinguishing apparatus regularly
and installs smoke detectors.

The Group has appointed safety officers to regularly
inspect the safety of the workplace, conduct
training and assessment of occupational risks for
new recruits and existing employees, and set up
appropriate signages and instructions for areas
requiring attention in the Production Bases.
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Treatment of Hazardous Chemicals

Frontline staff will be exposed to hazardous chemicals
during the modules production process; therefore, the
Group has formulated the following codes and guidelines
to ensure employees’ safety:

- Chemicals Management Regulations ( {{t 2 & & 12
#7E) ) to strictly supervise and control the reserve
and utilization of chemicals through an inventory in-
and-out form and list of chemicals and hazardous
goods to prevent misuse (such as storing privately)
of hazardous chemicals.

— Disposed Chemicals and Materials Management
Practices ( (BEEEREUBERBEE) ),
requiring the units of the Group to properly classify
and collect hazardous chemicals, and to the extent
possible, consider treatment ways that can both
reduce hazard caused to the environment and
economically viable.

In addition, the Group is aware of the crucial importance
of staff training for the treatment of hazardous
chemicals. Therefore, the Group provided chemical
management personnel regular trainings on chemical
safety instructions to ensure corresponding reasonable
treatment measures will be taken in emergencies,
established an inventory in-and-out form and list of
chemicals and hazardous goods to strictly supervise
and control the storage and utilization of chemicals,
formulated hazardous substances list and safety data
sheet, standardized the label of hazardous substances
and strengthened the hazards related training to
establish the awareness of all staff to potential hazards
and prevent the occurrence of hazards.
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Compliance with Rules

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety.

5.5 Anti-corruption

BHER

RBEHE SEXREHRE
THREERBEEFRERZE

MHEERERNBI

55 RES

The Group considers anti-corruption as main
commercial ethics principle among enterprises
and firmly refuses damages to the fair competition
environment in society. Accordingly, the Group has
formal management policies in place to prevent
bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering.
Related provisions are also clearly set out in
employment contracts, and all employees shall read
relevant content within the contract before signing
it. Besides, our internal Employee Manual stipulated
the requirements that employees shall comply with,
including Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ( B 1-8
BRARDBI) ) .

The Group implements the policy of “Sunshine
Procurement”, which strictly requires that two or
more employees must be present when conducting
price negotiation with suppliers and no employee
is allowed to meet customers alone. In evaluating
suppliers, the scores are given by several
departments together to avoid concentration
of authorities on a few of senior managements.
Meanwhile, employees are encouraged to report via
face-to-face reporting or emails to Board members
if any non-compliance issue is identified.

AEERRREBSREE
TENEERERRA EE
MRPEBELERAFHFIR
BoRith ARBASH IR
BBR HFERERES
HRZEANEERE &
B A4 LI B R BASR
E-XBEVATHEDA
AU BREBEAR R A
HENBEIFMITZLTETL
VEBSTHRE HPEE
B LERR BRI B ) -

SERETHEARE]K
RBBEBREEBEHHA
EBRHERE DEEMESL
NENBTITHYE TRFFE
TEBRE EFHHEER
- BHZEEFIEEIT D
RE > NERENLTRZ
BEEBESENT L-F
- & B TRBEELRT
B A AEBEMKETE
HREEEKEER-

20175 F8% E#BE (£E)BERLTF

153



154

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR HE8RE

AHE

— The Group’s clients maintain high requirement

to our performance in anti-corruption, and our

major customers regularly caution the Group’s

sales staffs to remind their suppliers the potential

corruption problems that may arise in negotiation.

The Group makes response seriously, and has

formulated relevant operation procedures for anti-

fraud and anti-corruption according to the relevant

circumstances and conducted induction training for

employees.

Compliance with Rules

During the reporting period, there was no non-

compliance incident with relevant anti-corruption

regulations that have significant impact on the Group nor

any incidents related to corruption.

5.6 Others

5.6.1 Employment and staff welfare

The Group has well-established personnel
policies in place, which cover remuneration
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities,
anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfares
and so on. To maintain transparency, staff
benefits and responsibilities are clearly stated
in Employees Manual.

The Group strictly complies with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China

((REAREMBL S L) ), the Minors
Protection Law ( (KK F AREE) ) and

other personnel related laws and regulations.
Staffs have equal and fair access to promotion.
The Group conducts work review, reporting
and KPI analysis every quarter and its
remuneration standard is market competitive.
The Group also has established platforms
such as interview, e-mail and regular staff
communication meetings, etc. for employees
to communicate with the management.
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Besides, the Company has rich sharing culture.
During the Year, it established Management
Measures for Internal Lecturer, which allows our
staff from different professional fields to become
our internal lecturer. Through knowledge and skills
training, the Company improves the professional
competence, management ability and teamwork
spirit of its staffs, and realizes the sharing and
passing of knowledge and experience, thereby
improving the Company’s core competitiveness.

The Company provides support to create a family-
friendly working environment and implements
special policies for pregnant employees:

° Exclude the employee in the third trimester of
pregnancy to work overtime

° Provides a half-day paid leaves per month
to the employee in the first six months of
gestation period

° Provides a full-day paid leaves per month
to the employee in the seventh and eighth
months of gestation period

° Provides a full-day paid leaves on a semi-
month basis to the employee in gestation
period above eighth months

e The employee in lactation period may enjoy
one hour leave daily and is permitted to arrive
late or leave early.
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The Company has been committed to improve and
enhance our staff welfare and living conditions by
optimizing the accommodation environment, such
as providing free network coverage, free shuttle
bus and increasing meal fee standard. In addition,
the Group grants gift packs to its employees on
traditional festival, increases the investment to build
a multiple-use activity center for employees, holds
large-scale art performance on certain holidays and
provides other welfare.

Compliance with Rules

During the reporting period, we were not aware
of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations regarding employment and labour
practices.

5.6.2 Staff Development & Training

— The Human Resources department provides
no less than 20 hours of external or internal
trainings for staff every year and offers
relevant courses to different employee groups.
For management and knowledge related
courses, the Group usually engage third party
professional lecturer to deliver. For instrumental
skills related courses, the Group organize
one internal training and sharing session per
month. The training format includes classroom
training, individual counseling and seminar.
The management regularly supervises and
checks the attendance record and training
assessment to ensure the relevant policies are
fully implemented.
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5.6.3 Supply chain management

Apart from their basic reputation, qualification (such
as 1SO9001 and 1SO14000), financial stability,
cost, technical support and service, the Group
will also take into consideration the environmental
and social responsibilities policies of suppliers in
selecting suppliers and have established the formal
management policy.

Suppliers must sign environmental protection
agreement and social responsibility agreement
before commencing cooperation with the Group.
For example, strictly require the prohibition of
child labour for suppliers. Besides, the Group
will conduct an annual questionnaire survey on
suppliers and conduct site investigations from time
to time to check whether suppliers have complied
with the environmental protection agreement and
social responsibility agreement.

For suppliers that repeatedly violate the environment
or labour laws, we will terminate our partnership
with them promptly and include them in the blacklist
and never employ again.

5.6.4 Community Investment

The Group continues to practice corporate citizen
responsibility and contributes to the community and
the country by participating in charity and voluntary
activities. During the year, 40 employees of the
Group were organized to participate in the activities
of caring for the elderly living in nursing homes in
Kunshan, so as to deliver warmth and blessing to
those in need.
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Appendix | —Index Table of Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide by

Hong Kong Stock Exchange

fisg1 —EBBEXZ I (RIRH
erRERKREES) RIIX

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
Em EHEEH B

A Environmental

A BRIR

A1 Emissions 4.2,4.4,45and 4.6 —

A1 23,87 424.4-45K46 -

Al.1 The types of emissions and 4.2,4.4 and 4.5 During the Year, the Group disclosed three
respective emissions data. important emissions data: hazardous waste,

wastewater discharge and air emissions.

Al BB R AEAE AR - 42-44%45 SEERFERET=-REZNHRYEIE:

BEREEMYEN - KRR ERBER -

A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in 4.6.2 The materiality analysis results of the Group
total (in tonnes) and, where during the Year shows that greenhouse
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit gas emissions are not the most important
of production volume, per facility). environmental issues in relative terms, thus we

will consider making disclosures on such data in
the future.

Al2  RERBBAHME (UME) X 4.6.2 SEARFNEENSTERBERREREMAY

(iR B (MASEB B -
SHERIHE) -

TREEENRARE AERMAGEEEER
RAEHRRA M SR IR -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR -HERERHRE

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
Em EEMH e

A1.3  Total hazardous waste produced 4.2 The Group will first disclose the total amount
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, during the Year. The Group is considering
intensity (e.g. per unit of suitable units for calculating intensity and plans
production volume, per facility). to disclose it in the future.

A13 FMELXBEEEWRAE (UNHE 4.2 SEEAFEARBREE SR TEZEREESR
M(WmER)ZE (MAGEESE B ERE 2 B WA ARRMEH B -
i BIERBAE) o

A1.4  Total non-hazardous waste 4.6.3 The materiality analysis results of the Group
produced (in tonnes) and, where during the Year shows that non-hazardous waste
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit is not the most important environmental issue
of production volume, per facility). in relative terms, thus we will consider making

disclosures on such data in the future.

Al4  FEABEZEZEYES (ANETE) 4.6.3 SEXFHNEZEUSTERBETIESEYHEET
R(WER)ZE (MAEESE EREZENRARBEALBRME S EBERKE
- FIERMEFHE) ° AR R Y BRI BR -

A1.5 Description of measures to 4.2,4.4,45and 4.6 —
mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

A15  HREBERENEEEAFK 424445846 -
B

A1.6  Description of how hazardous 4.2 and 4.6.3 -
and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

A6 HMEBEEREEREEZEMNT 4.2%4.6.3 -

EOREELENERNTEK
Ho
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HERERRSE

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
Em EEMH E

A2 Use of Resources 4.3 and 4.4 -

A2 BEREM 4.3%4.4 -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy 4.3 The Group will first disclose the total amount
consumption by type (e.g. of electricity consumption during the Year. The
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh Group is considering suitable units for calculating
in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit intensity and plans to disclose it in the future.
of production volume, per facility).

A21  RERESHERRAEEER 4.3 SEEAFEARERERE -SEEEZRE
(W% - Reh) BFEE (A TET EREFERRE 2 BN R ARIRIELHEE -
ERABE)REE (MAGEEE
- SERIEE) -

A2.2  Water consumption in total 4.4 The Group will first disclose the total amount of
and intensity (e.g. per unit of water consumption during the year. The Group is
production volume, per facility). considering suitable units for calculating intensity

and plans to disclose it in the future.

A22 REKEREE(WNEBESE 4.4 EEEAFEARERKRE - EBIEEEEHR
i - BIERMEFHE) - EREFERERE 2EMWRRRIELHEE -

A2.3 Description of energy use 4.3 -
efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

A2.3  fEALBETRE A ke at & M PT1SAK 4.3 -

Ho

A2.4  Description of whether there is 4.4 S
any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

A2.4  HECSRERGE B KR AT A E A 4.4 -

B A RIRTT Ak et 8 M PG
R o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -HERERKRE

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
Em EEMH e
A2.5  Total packaging material used for 4.6.3 The materiality analysis results of the Group
finished products (in tonnes) and, during the Year shows that packaging materials
if applicable, with reference to per are not the most important environmental issues
unit produced. in relative terms, thus we will consider making
disclosures on such data in the future.
A25 BIKmATABEMENRE (LA 4.6.3 SERFNEZUSTERBET~BEMEBEET
AE)R(WMER)BEESMG EREBENRRZEFLRME S ZBERKE
o AR R B BUR B 5B -
A3 The Environment and Natural The Group strives to reduce the impact of its
Resources business on the environment and other natural
A3 RERRXAER resources. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not cause any significant pollution
A3.1 Description of the significant _ and damage to nearby air, land, water sources
impacts of activities on the and the environment. The Group’s policies and
T e et e e measures on resource use and emissions are
and the actions taken to manage described in detail in sections A1 and A2.
PR AR E BN E R H B R MR R RER
A3.1 Tﬁﬂ%f%é@%ﬁ%%‘&%%é/ﬁﬂ@ _ FofA i&%ﬁﬂf‘aﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁ%ﬂiﬁ?iihﬂﬂmﬁ

EAFERERDERANTEN
GEL

RAERRBESTMERNTREBIE AEE
SRR A R AR BR R i E R AT
K A2EB AR VEFE Al L AR ©
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERRSE

Aspects Reporting Section Remarks
Em EEMH E

B Social

B Ea =

B1 Employment 5.6.1 -
B1 = 5.6.1 -
B2 Health and Safety 5.4 -
B2 BRERZ2 5.4 -
B3 Development and Training 5.6.2 =
B3 R BRI 5.6.2 -
B4 Labour Standards 5.2 -
B4 2 IR 5.2 -
B5 Supply Chain Management 5.6.3 -
B5 s EE 5.6.3 -
B6 Product Responsibility 5.3 -
B6 EmEE 5.3 -
B7 Anti-corruption [OHS -
B7 R&S 515 -
B8 Community Investment 5.6.4 -
B8 HERE 5.6.4 -

j. 6 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Independent Auditor’s Report

lcpraG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 173 to 308, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

B A BEN RS

BYRBEAEE
BERBE (KE)ERAFARRE
(REIEHETMALAERL A])

=z
=

NIZEAED (AT &M EETT
EHNFE173EBEMERBI R (£ H)
BERAR (LATEWIERR]) REMH
BRAAI(ATHABIEEE])NE
BHRE LEAEHUERERBER=-Z
—+F+ A=+ —BHNEHTBRR
REHEZHLEFEMNAMIBEEREM
cEHRER GHEZEHRMEHIR
SMER UREHTBHRERMZE 21
TESHHREES-

BMRR ZEaHYBRRERER
RertElZEe ([BERETEAEZE

@) EmH (BRI GRS ER) ([E
BRE SRS ER D EEmP 5 #H KRB
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HREHMBEKRL & EEEEHEZ
HIEFENAEHMBREAREHRESR
2 WEHBRBREE (RAEH) OREES
KE B
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Timing of revenue recognition

W 35 R B A

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies note 1(u) on page 204.

2 E ORI AN A2 R F204 8 £ & 5HBCR At 1(u)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HBETHNEES X

The Group’s revenue arises from the sales of camera and
fingerprint recognition modules.

EEENKREELABRBALENEMNEENEE -

The Group enters into a framework sales agreement with
each major customer and manufactures products based
on purchase orders. Products are delivered to a location
designated by the respective customer where they undergo
a quality examination. After satisfactory completion of the
quality examination the risks and rewards of ownership of
the products are considered to have been transferred to the
respective customer and revenue is recognised.
EEFERTIERPAIVIERHE R WRIERBIIES
EEm EmXNEZERBAZFNECHEIETER -FE
mEKmER BRERMEENEREEHRERREER
ZHEEER femER S -

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

BAHE NSRBI EFEREATTE

° inspecting contracts with customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of
the sale transactions, including the terms of
delivery and goods acceptance and any sales
return arrangements, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s WMERBEBFFMAK THEEXZINGNK
BREYERH MKBRKRFARERMEERD
ZH U ERENKREERRERSHA
BITgst ERINENR:

e  assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year
end had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms
of sale as set out in the sales contracts by
comparing the details in the relevant sales
invoices to customers’ acceptance documents
or customers’ inventory records which are
available from shared platforms the customers
have with the Group;

o HEMBFERMITNEE KRR S ETHERR
L BEBHEERFBEEPRIKMNEZBE 3
EEEREFPAZ TR FNFELESZYE &
Ml E TR RBEHEHESRTNHEKRRERE
B B IS EA R R 2R

o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R E

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EETHNEELE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a
key audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.
ﬁﬁ%%éﬁ?i%ﬁ%%&%ﬁiﬁ*%m%%§ﬂﬁé
E5E ﬂm%ﬂhﬁz GFHEEEEATEIFERR
S HIEE ﬁﬁ?ﬂ”ﬂ e W o5 HE RS Bh B0 [E B LB o
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scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify sales returns and inspecting
relevant underlying documentation to assess if
the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial
period; and

BEFERERNHEES S BHHER pcﬁﬁ
M B S I S - DART (il A B B U 5 R B

BHEESNMBRARER: &

scrutinising all the sales journals raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which
met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.
BMERSHAMENHE D REETEAR
IR A HR o) 8% W0 42 3 = MR BA S A 1 XA o



Recoverability of trade receivables

B2 BUCGRTER T W E 4%

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies note 1(n) on page 197.

2R IR EN 16K E 197 B A2 B R i 1(n) °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HBETHNEES X

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s gross trade receivables
totalled RMB1,783,326,000, against which allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB349,000 were recorded.
HEZZE—+tFT-A=1T—H E5EESRKFIELRE
A AR #1,783,326,0007T ' $T ¥ % 8758 Rt st IR R IR BB
7 A\ R #349,0007T

The Group’s allowances for doubtful debts are based on
management’s estimate of the expected credit losses to
be incurred, which is estimated by taking into account the
ageing of overdue balances, the repayment history of the
Group’s individual customers, current market conditions
and customer-specific conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.
EEEEREEEHERARELENERBRNMETTRER
REF-ANARERTARKENRR EEERER
PHERTH RITOMSRREUAREPHNEERN B
EZRHERKNEE L RERE #IE -

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade receivables included the following:

BT EE SR FIEN PR E B2 T B
AT 75

e obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and making allowances for doubtful
debts;

e THERESFETH RREWRRRE
B AR B O A S N BB PR I - 3 AT (B S e N AR T
AR MITRETAERIL

e assessing whether items were correctly
categorised in the trade receivables ageing
report by comparing a sample of individual
items with underlying sales invoices;

s WMBEMEEZHEUFIBHEHRBET NUF
HE ZRUGIARE REN D MHEEERE:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESTHNEELE

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the Group’s customers are mainly
smartphone manufacturers which are facing challenges in
terms of their profitability due to the competitive market
environment, which increases the inherent uncertainty
in assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, and
because determining the level of allowances for doubtful
debts requires the exercise of significant management
judgement.

B E ZRKFIBRAIRE M ERBERENFEH EAARE
SENEFIERTRTFREAE  KERMROTISES M
EFRB AR N A EA S MG M T EEETHE SRR
AW EM R EE T EEMN TR AEE REREE KA
TTEE R H) B IR [E Ik -
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obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual material and all
overdue trade receivable balances and
evaluating the allowances for doubtful debts
made by management for these balances with
reference to the debtors’ financial condition, the
industry in which the debtors are operating, the
ageing of overdue balances and historical and
post year end payment records;
THREREANGEBRESARMEBEBNE FEK
FRIEREO AT REENER WEB2EER
AR FSARN - B ARG PIEE 1T - B HAER
FHERE BERBRERTE UTHEEE
HZERBELOREERE:

assessing the historical accuracy of the
estimates made by management for the
allowances for doubtful debts by comparing
the allowances made by management as at 31
December 2016 with the actual new allowances
and recoveries in respect of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2016 during the current
year; and
RAKREEEN_ZT—A"F+-A=+—HM
EHOREREERNFEHH _T—RF+=
RA=+—HE 5 EWIAE B IIE 8 & &P
WEH IR M EREEHHRREEMED
fhEr RS RN &

inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances at
31 December 2017.

HE T —tF+_A=+—HESEWHE
B MEREEFPRVRELBZNHERIE
e



Independent Auditor’s Report

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

B A BEN RS

B O I R R ) HL A A 3R 5 A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BRI S

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI E

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Chi Hung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
affEER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE —T—tF+ - A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR 5I7R)

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net loss

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative and other
operating expenses

Research and development
expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs
Share of loss of an associate

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of
the Company

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

2017 2016
—E—t& —E—REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARET T AREFTT
Y 2 2 7,938,958 4,991,158
$HE KA (7,056,225) (4,568,721)
EF 882,733 422,437
H b Y e 3 35,099 18,407
HFE R 3 (23,931) (45,172)
HERDHALZ (16,045) (9,662)
THEREMEERT
(64,955) (41,311)
FEER
(269,556) (124,564)
&R R 543,345 220,135
& B A 4(a) (16,912) (5,548)
FE{H B & X B 18 (16,918) =
BR B AR R 4 509,515 214,587
Fris 5t 5 (73,238) (23,832)
FREF 436,277 190,755
5B
RRARREREE A
436,277 190,755
FREF 436,277 190,755
BRER RMB Cents RMB Cents
ARED AREES
BN 9 39.8 18.4
BE 9 38.9 18.1

The accompanying notes on pages 180 to 308 form part of 55 180Z 308 E HY & BT Mt 51 18 5k 5% S5 81 75
these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity ¥z 89 — 210 - B B FE N AR A 7] IR A %
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year 8 A JE{E F N & Kl 2 I% B 7 5515 A Mt

are set out in Note 27(b).

FT27(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
EftERREMEE KSR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZE—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(RAREIR)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on
translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries

outside the Mainland China

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of
the Company

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The accompanying notes on pages 180 to 308 form part of these

financial statements.

2017 2016
—E—tF b S 2
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARE T NEEE I
FREF 436,277 190,755
FERHEAME RS
(RBEREFHFIE
HRE)
B eENs B BER
IHH :
— R R B Ak LA SN
R NGIEI G E &g
[ & =58
(12,739) 15,189
FREAMEE WS
8 (12,739) 15,189
FAZEHKRRAE
423,538 205,944
]
RRARREREE A
423,538 205,944
FRAEEWRHAEE
423,538 205,944

1802308 & H K& B B 51 18 A 7% 5 91 7%
WERH— 21D °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SO AR R

as at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+tF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR 5I7R)

2017 2016
—E—tH AN S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hia ARE T AREEFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BEMEE 10 1,480,662 720,181
Interests in an associate R—REEE RN A AR 12 258,318 =
Lease prepayments HEFEMNHIE 13 16,632 17,048
Intangible assets mEE 14 1,154 1,315
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBE E 26(c) 7,672 4,287
Prepayment for acquisition of WEESER BN & E /)
non-current assets TEfT5RIA 176,666 83,354
Deposits A 12,050 =
1,953,154 826,185
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 688,041 799,246
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EAth e Ug FR I8 16 2,035,045 2,606,431
Other financial assets HEibe R &EE 17 873,486 =
Derivative financial assets PTESREE 18 7,073 126,867
Current tax assets BNEAFL I8 & 2= 26(a) = 152
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIF R 19 78,469 96,543
Cash and cash equivalents Be kRS EEY 20(a) 464,982 64,905
4,147,096 3,694,144
Current liabilities REAE
Bank borrowings RITIE K 21 1,078,119 335,432
Trade and other payables B 5 & EH e 5RIA 22 2,830,117 2,592,781
Derivative financial liabilities MESHBE 18 17,989 =
Current tax payable FE 1~ BN HA R 18 26(a) 8,033 10,372
3,934,258 2,938,585
Net current assets REEEFE 212,838 755,559
Total assets less WEERABAS
current liabilities 2,165,992 1,581,744

2017 53 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SO AR IR 3R

as at 31 December 2017 R—T—+F+—-HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R¥%I7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARE T NEEE I
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income PEFE U A 23 14,598 11,739
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE 26(c) 5,737 2,040
20,335 13,779
NET ASSETS BERE 2,145,657 1,567,965
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARE f#E
Share capital N 27 8,895 8,605
Reserves i 27 2,136,762 1,559,360
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 2,145,657 1,567,965

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 19 KEE@ RN _ZT—NF=A+ LBt E

March 2018. N R T % o
He Ningning ) 2=
Directors i
Wang Jiangiang I F i od .

The accompanying notes on pages 180 to 308 form part of these 55 1802 308 & HY K& B it 53 18 ik 5% 55 81 75
financial statements. WA —EBMD o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RS ER
— 5t

(Expressed in Renminbi)

=+—RIFE
(AAR®ITR)

—_H

—=

for the year ended 31 December 2017 & &
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EORTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZE—+tF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R¥%I7R)

Operating activities

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/
(used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Payment for purchase of
non-current assets

Increase in deposits

Acquisition of an associate

Net cash outflow of purchase
and redemption of other
financial assets

Net premium paid for derivative
financial instruments

Decrease in pledged
bank deposits

Interest received

Placement of time deposits with
maturity over three months

Withdrawal of time deposits with
maturity over three months

Net cash used
in investing activities

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

REED

REMT/ (AR E

ENAEHR

RETBHRE

(FrR) B FHE

REZH

HEWE BE R&HE

P15 5008

BEIRBDEENRE

12 1075 3K
W A )

RREMEDEMGMSEEER

BEeFR

TEERTANEMNEEFRE

EERMIRITES

S &SN

FEARHBBBE=

TE Hi7F 3K
IREXEIE B B8
EHF R

REREH

FrRBR & F

/m /s

& A &

=& A&

2017 2016
—E—tF b S 2
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARET R ARETT
20(b) 2,296,626 (33,891)
(75,113) (4,723)
2,221,513 (38,614)
14 203
(949,246) (408,893)
(12,050)
(275,236) =
(865,744) (25,500)
(35,092) =
= (800)
18,377 5,279
= (26,181)
= 26,181
(2,118,977) (429,711)



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE —T—tF+ - A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR 5I7R)

Financing activities
Proceeds from share issued
under shares option scheme
Proceeds from share issued
for the Placement
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
(Increase)/decrease in
pledged bank deposits
Interest paid
Dividends paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hia ARE T AREEFTT
BLESEE
RIR AR M AT B 21T AR D B
1B5RIB 5,530 5,530
M ERITIRMD TS RIE
179,065 137,276
IRTTIE RPN FKIB 877,046 245,746
EERITER (658,554) (270,172)
BRI RITER
(&) R (37,468) 132,684
2 FE (16,848) (5,535)
SRS (87,145) -
BEEB TR FE
311,626 245,529
BeRBEESEYWHEM
(R2) Z8 414,162 (222,796)
R—B—HHWEEZR
HEEEY 64,905 282,215
ERESHHEE
(14,085) 5,486
R+=-—B=+—HHERER
HEeEEEY 20(a) 464,982 64,905

The accompanying notes on pages 180 to 308 form part of these 55 180ZE 308 B Y K& M T 5T 18 5K 5% 55 81 7%

financial statements.

HERE—ED e
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information of any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 comprise the Company, its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in an associate.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB A3EREIN UAAREHIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(continued)

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiary established in the
Mainland China. The functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries outside the Mainland China is US
dollars.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

—  Derivative financial instruments (Note 1(f));
—  Other financial assets (Note 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

TEEHBE(E)

(b) BEREHEE (Z)

HRAEENETEXRBERNHE
EIT MBEBRRAARE (A
RE1) 2% BRAEFHAN &
BERRONTUER - ARER
ZANY/NISI DN SR AR e F VAR ==
RAININEEE M - KRR R EF
B AmIAING B AR NINEEE
RET-

mEMBRETAAEELETS
FESL ARAEAE - MEI LA N @ FT IR
RFFFEBONREQNFEZIW
ATEERBERIN:

HRERMHRELENREM
BMKRAEIEE IR L F8 - fhat
KRR - ek & HIE - BT 2R
RETERRERLMEZ®RE
E RBE RARIXEHEE &
FEFTREBRKRIDERER
Z(«%A&E/E\'FL\‘ /RTP/L/\ /\\\/EI\IE
MZAEMEAREL - EE

1 75 1 7 26 DA 53 3B E b SRR &
BHEERABERAERKE-
ERERIEBRRZEMA-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

()

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 32.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. However, additional disclosure
has been included in note 20(c) to satisfy the new
disclosure requirements introduced by the amendments
to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative,
which require entities to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB A3EREIN UAAREHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEBE (&)

(d) Subsidiaries (d) MER T

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(l)(ii)).

B AREASEESNER -
(GRS E7 ¥Rk S =
BB A & 0w WHEE
NEBHZEBNENZEZ
FOE AAREEFZER-
MAEEAEEREHERENE
EER (BAKBEREMTRHE
B)EERER -

RHEERBHRE B BT
HE R AGHITBRK BEE
%%TﬂZEt SERNRAEIE
ﬁ% REEREREEEENA
T%X%%FimEﬁﬁm
s A RNREa o s mKR i
B - EBARTIRRZ
Fiﬂﬁﬂiﬁ%fﬁ}%?s,ﬁﬂ@ﬁé%ﬂ
18 U8 5 B 1% B K % 35 g 25 48 R
E@H/ﬁiﬁfﬁ

RARB R AR R F - R
B A T%&ﬁﬁ&%$ﬂﬂ@
B8 (R HIEE1()G)) 5 BR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B S R R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (Note 1(l)(i)). Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(f)

(9)

Associate (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in associate is stated at cost less impairment
losses.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note

1))

P AR T RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(Note 1(w)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings and plant 20 years
—  Machinery 10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Office and other equipment 3 - 5 years

The residual value rates of each class of fixed assets are

as follows:

Residual value rates (%)
Buildings and plant 10%
Machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%
Office and other equipment 10%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are initially stated at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. At the end
of each reporting period, the fair value is re-measured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. Interest income from
these financial assets is recognised using the effective
interest method in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 1(u)(ii). When these financial assets
are derecognised or impaired (Note 1(|)(i)), the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of acquiring land
use rights paid to the PRC’s governmental authorities.
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 1(I)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights which are
50 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B S R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (Note 1(l)(ii)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (Note

1()(i).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives and impairment losses (see
note 1(I)(ii)).
date they are available for the use for 5 years.

Computer software is amortised from the

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Operating lease charges

V)

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investment in associate,
available-for-sale financial assets, and current
and non-current receivables

Investment in associate, current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
and available-for-sale financial assets are reviewed
annually to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

TEEHBER(E)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

() Impairment of investment in associate,

available-for-sale financial assets, and current

and non-current receivables (continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,

market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair

value of available-for-sale financial asset below

its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates and joint

ventures accounted for under the equity

method in the consolidated financial

statements (Note 1(e)), the impairment loss

is measured by comparing the recoverable

amount of the investment with its carrying

amount in accordance with Note 1(|)(i). The

impairment loss is reversed if there has been

a favourable change in the estimates used

to determine the recoverable amount in

accordance with Note 1(I)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

)

Impairment of investment in associate,
available-for-sale financial assets, and current
and non-current receivables (continued)

For current receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

()

Impairment of investment in associate,
available-for-sale financial assets, and current
and non-current receivables (continued)

(continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

)

Impairment of investment in associate,
available-for-sale financial assets, and current
and non-current receivables (continued)

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade and bills receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHRIN - LAAREHIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;
— lease prepayments; and
— investments in subsidiary and associate in the

Company’s statement of financial position.

— If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB A3EREIN UAAREHIR)

TEREHBER(F

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
EERE (&)

() Impairment of assets (continued) (1

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

(i) EMEERE (&)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(I)(i)) except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts.

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(BR=EHEAN AARKETITR)

1 FESHEE(E)

(m) #&
FEZRKALR] SR FEAHR
K& AR

(n)

PR ER A InAE R AR 2R A

B IEEMARBAAN B
PR R S 7 B BB R A
AR SLEE A ) EL M AR o

RN FEREBEBRBESR
B 1 5 & (BB T A B 5T A AR &%
tEHSHE TR A aT A

REEELE  ZFFENEREE
BRSSP ERSE B = EE
B - (R EMORZE AT # IR
FENTERFENRABE
ROk S EEEBEERE
B 32 o (AT 17 & ORL B0 (E fe] 2 [
TR FE R A R B 3 A HR A R
REAXHNEESBENRD -

B85 RHAMEKRE

B 5 REMEWE EW*EQ
FEER  AERRAERAEE
&%%W$M%$ﬂ@%ﬁw
BR(MsE10)()) - B RIS
RETEE S NERTERY
REERSURNTENTE
RNEFRIBRIN W FBAT * 5%
% JE W SRIB 1R A AR R R BR BB
BEYIER -

2017 53 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF

197



198

Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(o))

(a)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,

using the effective interest method.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans made from
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Employee benefits

U

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN AAREFIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
and when the customer has accepted the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax (“VAT”) or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
year in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised by setting up the grant as deferred
income that is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Unconditional discretionary government grants from
the government authorities are recognised in the
profit or loss as other revenue when the amount is
received.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Borrowing costs

(w)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of an asset

which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as

part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(w) Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(Br S BB AARKEIIR)

TEEHBER(E)

(w) BH7S (&

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(ii) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

2 Revenue and segmental reporting

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
for mobile phones and other electronic appliances. No
segment information is presented for the Group’s business
segment as the Group is principally engaged in a single line of
business. Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold,
excludes VAT and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

2

Revenue and segmental reporting
(continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the locations of operations of the contracting parties.

2 WERDBEHE (&)

AEE LMWL E S 5 rWRaE TR
BENTHEEETEE -

2017 2016
—E—tF S bl 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T

Revenue I =
PRC (including Hong Kong) ‘:F' B (BEEE)
Overseas iR

The Group had three (2016: two) customers with whom
transactions had exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The amount of
sales to these customers amounted to approximately
RMB5,463,529,000 (2016: RMBS3,027,256,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Details of concentrations of credit
risk arising from these customers are set out in Note 28(a).

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain
amounts of revenue are related to sales made to related
parties (see Note 30).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 —E—+4F+_-A=+—H
(BRBHEEBEIN AARETIR)

3 Other revenue and other net loss 3 HikEszREMFEER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARET T
Other revenue H fth iy 25
Government grants BT 488 B 16,659 13,620
Interest income B A 18,377 4,256
Others H At 63 531
35,099 18,407
2017 2016
o el - =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
Other net loss HtFEEE
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEU RS, (B18) FE 41,918 (64,613)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment HENEE (383) (17)
Net realised and unrealised HNEERRE & &
(loss)/gain on foreign exchange EEREAEHRZ
option contracts F (BB s (47,911) 19,458
Fair value loss on foreign currency ~ YMNERHI S 4 2
forward contracts NEEEE (17,555) =
(23,931) (45,172)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —T—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BHE 8RN AARESR)

4 Profit before taxation 4 PBR¥AIER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B B B A R HIBR (3T A) T3 &
THIBZER:
2017 2016
—E—+fF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
(a) Finance costs (a) BEHA
Interest expenses B> 16,912 5,548
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRA
Contributions to defined AT TR IKET &l
contribution retirement plans M (K aE24)
(Note 24) 10,270 6,944
Salaries, wages and HFe ITENM
other benefits H A48 51 446,894 270,316
Equity settled share-based A& E R D
payment expenses (Note 25) NRFEX (H:F25) 6,704 1,658
463,868 278,918
(c) Other items (c) H#EE
Amortisation 5
— lease prepayments (Note 13) — HEBEN A
(H15%13) 416 416
— intangible assets (Note 14) - EBEEE
(HiaE14) 161 161
Depreciation (Note 10) WE (Kfit10) 135,228 63,443
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 B % B
— Audit and review services —&£BEF R
for the Group EHR® 2,047 1,651
— Audit services —FRAIEF RS
for the subsidiaries 123 152
Operating lease charges in EEMENKEHESE
respect of properties H 9,020 4,117
Research and development MEE KA (B2 ))
costs (Note (i) 269,556 124,564
Impairment losses (reversed)/ B 5 N E KGR
recognised on trade and (#ME) BERERRE
other receivables BB (9,555) 9,400
Cost of inventories (Note (i) GTERA (BaEi)) 7,220,335 4,641,127

21 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 Profit before taxation (continued)

Notes:

(i

Research and development costs include staff costs of
employees in the design, research and development department
of RMB66,104,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB43,093,000), which are included in the staff costs as
disclosed in Note 4(b).

The criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development state of the
project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they

are incurred.

Cost of inventories includes RMB478,530,000 (2016:
RMB252,230,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses,
which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 4(b) for each of these

types of expenses.
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478,530,000 (ZZE—NF: AR
#252,230,0007T) * B 8 Tk A
MEREHERY A ZZENET
AZEZENRIE EXEREKE
R A BB S EHE SR -

2017 55 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P AR AL

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5 Income tax in the consolidated income

statement

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income

statement represents:

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

5 SHESRPIAER

(@) AOHHEAEXRTFHNAEDE:

Current tax

PRC Corporate Income Tax
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences
(Note 26(b))

BN 5% 1/

B RS R
B RS TR0 AR
RN EHR

IEFE B 18

TREMEEN
B A& K # (0]
(H1a226(b))

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
Sl =7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARSI
66,919 25,339
4,495 -
1,512 (2,142)
72,926 23,197
312 635
73,238 23,832




Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

Income tax in the consolidated income 5
statement (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

BOERRPHAEH
(#4&)

(b) RERARERFENHBEMAIES
&t E A B AR -

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before
taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of PRC preferential
tax treatments (iii)

Tax effect of additional
deduction on research and
development costs

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Over provision in prior years

PRC dividend withholding tax (iv)

Actual tax expense

B 5% A i A

BR % A s A R B R BIA -

7S NN EL
EEERNRERTE

PEEEBEFBN
758 7155 52 2 (iii)

BfF 3% A ZS /9 BB SN H0ORLAY
M E

NAIMBFAXOFE

BREFEBREE
o B e B TR 0 A (iv)

EREMBHEX

2017 2016
Sl =7
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
509,515 214,587
131,262 52,180
(44,073) (17,088)
(20,035) (9,207)
1,589 89

- (2,142)

4,495 -
73,238 23,832

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P AR AL

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

Income tax in the consolidated income

statement (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the Britrsh Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and

BVI.

(i)  Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Kunshan QT
Hong Kong”) is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5%

in 2017 and 2016.

(i)  Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC statutory
income tax rate is 25%. Kunshan Q Technology Limited
(*Kunshan QT China”) was qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) in 2009, which entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from the year
2009 to 2011 according to relevant regulations in the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law. Kunshan QT China
successfully renewed the HNTE qualification on 21 May
2012 and 6 July 2015 respectively and continued to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for another three

years commenced from 1 January 2015.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

5

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

EHERERPHFEH

==
=
(/r'/E\

(b) RERARKRFENHBEAIES

&t

NL

m R HEER: (&)

fa

(0

(il

(i)

REFRSHELEBREZES
(RBRZES]ORAR
R AKREBARFERS
REBRLHESBNERMAE
i

RZZE—EtFR-ZF—RF-
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong
Kong) Ltd. ([EILEKBEF])
JRIE16.5%80 Tt & 84 4 & 7 A
BB

—EENF—HF—HEE F
B 1)) TE AT 15 B B K /325% o
EBLUERMEFRFEERAA
(TELESRFRE]DR=ZZZH
FRESIEMEE ([SFE
MMl EE RER-ZZET
NFEZZT——FREPEP
EEMEANHBEREER RS
B15%MEERMSHE R 1L
ERFBES IR —=F%
AZ+—Bk=Z—HFtA
NERIEFE TR EEE
BE-_E—RAF— A —HBiE
FERIN=FEZF15%NEE
FTiSHi = o



Notes to the Financial Statements

5 Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside the
PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. According
to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of a PRC

enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate of 5%.

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEAN AARKESITR)

5 SHERRPIAER

y —y
=
(/&5\

(b) RERARERFENHBEMAIES

HEFNEER: (&)

Hiat: (&)

(iv)

BB ESEMERERER
BHE AEEERPELE
—ZEEN\F—A—BRHAE
ERRF R EFBEEINEEE
B& A A9 K IR B HR10% (1
IRARFR U E S BEFRBR SN )
MR ERFMENR R=2FF
NF—HB—HAEEHNERDIK
B ER BB NZIBTENE -
AR 5 P S T B 7% 2 HE R EL A
BHRE FRIEXEEAIL
BA B ¥25% A FRERR
NEERBARBERABER
5% H) 48 5 R TR A0 B R AR F

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

6 Directors’ emoluments 6 E=FM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIEE B A el EH 53831 K A
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the A(BBEEENER) RO FE2F
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of WEMBBE ESEHMNT :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_ZE—+tH&+=-—H=+—HI=E
E

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and scheme  Discretionary payments
other benefits  contributions TS Sub-total (notg)
BB A

FooRk BRONT
g REMEN BRKTEER BiERA it #it
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBI00
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Executive directors ~ Hif783

Mr. He Ningning BEES% 301 - - - 301 - 301
Mr. Wang Jangiang ~ TEBEE - 344 16 700 1,060 257 1,317
Mr. Hu Sanmu H=ALE - 362 18 435 815 191 1,006

Independentnon-  BUFUTES

executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia Hisang ~ fIXH %G E - 84 - - 84 - 84
Mr.GouBingKoeng  BREEE - 4 - - 4 - 42
Ms. Chen Jun RE L - 42 - - 42 - 4
Mr. Ng Sui Yin SRELE - 84 - - 84 - 84
Total st 301 958 34 1,13 2428 448 2,876
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 6 EEHM (&
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—_E—ANFEt+t-HA=1+—HL%E
E

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and scheme  Discretionary payments

other benefits  contributions bonuses Sub-total (notg)
URHA
e BE
it REMEA BEHEER MEEA Nt it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TR  AR%TR  ARMTR  ARMTr  ARETR  AR¥Tn  ARETR

Executive directors YnES

M. He Ningning eSS 322 - - - 322 - 322

Mr. Yang Peikun BEHEE = 219 19 - 298 156 454

Mr. Wang Jiangjang TR#ELE - 195 5 500 700 125 825

M. Hu Sanmu W=REE - 319 18 370 707 63 770

Independent non- BUkunES

executive directors

Mr. Chu Chia Hisang NRELE - 90 - - 90 - 90

M. Chen Jun RExt - 90 - - 90 - )

Mr. Ng Sui Yin RIRETE = 90 = = 90 = 90

Total it 322 1,063 4 870 2,007 344 2,641

Note:These represent the estimated value of share options granted to Bt ZESBERBEAEENBRIES

the directors under the Group'’s share option scheme. The value MESRENBERENGEE - ZE
of these share options is measured according to the Group’s B ENEEREN T[T HASE
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as B ARD ABEREMRNORZ SN SR
set out in Note 1(r)(i). REtE e
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal ZEEMREMNOFE (BEDRLER
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note 25. W E ZIRR R EE ) M 7254 57 -

Q017 FH  ESEHE (EM)ERAT 219



220

Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid
individuals set out in Note 7 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the year.

Individual with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2016: two) of them are directors for the year ended 31
December 2017, whose emoluments are disclosed in Note
6 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining individuals are as follows:

6

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

ESHM (&

RAFE AEBHERNESHT
XHETHREAEEHALENK
M EMRBEESBENAAREHE
S N A TR Y 22D Sk 1F S BE B A 4
E-RAEE HEEEHRLAFE
TR B AT 1R 37 B B9 22 4k -

RE#AL

BE-_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—HLt
FE hEERFALTHAERE (=
T-—RF - MB)RESF EFHHRN
EXHizEeHE - TN A TR E AR
BT

Salaries and other emoluments & K H Ath 3 B
Discretionary bonuses ) 15 B AT

Contributions to retirement RKAE R 58 4 5K

benefit scheme

AR A7) 70 EE B 0 5 5K

Share-based payments

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
—g—tf —B-AE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT T ARET T
1,289 915
1,134 1,204

13 14

402 182

2,838 2,315




Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

Individual with highest emoluments 7 BEHEAL(E
(continued)
The emoluments of the three (2016: three) individuals with the HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—H1t
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017 FE R (ZE—RF:=Z8)&%
are within the following bands: BFATHHM FATEE :
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE
HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000 =B 7L £1,000,0007% 7T 2 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T &1,500,0007% 7T 1 —
Other comprehensive income 8 HiZmUz=
Tax effects relating to each component of other FREMEE WS S ER I 0B
comprehensive income -4
2017 2016
tE-tE ZERE
VEREN Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount Tax effect amount amount Tax effect amount

BHALE HEYE  RR%eE LR nE¥E  Khke®
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR SRS A

Exchange difference on RENTEENELZR:
transfation of:
~ financial statements of SN
subsidaries outside HEAR
the Mairland China Baz (12739 - (12739 15,189 - 15,189
Other comprenensive income~~ Eft 2 A (12,739) - (12,739) 15,189 - 15,189
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

9 Earnings per share 9 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BRELRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is FRERBFITAARD R T @
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity B AFELERNARK
shareholders of the Company of RMB436,277,000 s, 27 % 0eE (=2 — 75 &
(2016: RMB190,755,000) and the weighted average of A K #190,755,0007T ) & £
1,095,479,000 (2016: 1,038,359,000) ordinary shares in A B 21T @ AT A 0 RE S S 8
issue during the year, calculated as follows: 1,095,479,000R% ( =& — /X
% :1,038,359,0000% ) & HE %
AAEMT
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares () ZERINEFIGTE
2016
—ET—RF
‘000
T
Issued ordinary share R—HA—HH®
at 1 January BT RR 1,081,771 1,027,945
Effect of share options BITEMERENTZE
exercised (Note 27(c)(ii)) (Ktaz27(c)i)) 13,599 8,332
Shares issued for the Bl EEBEITIRG
Placement (Note 27(c)(iii) (B a27(c)i)) 109 2,082
Weighted average number of R+ =A=+—H#
ordinary shares at B AR N S B
31 December 1,095,479 1,038,359

2 2 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

Earnings per share (continued) 9 BRERN (&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB436,277,000(2016:
RMB190,755,000) and the weighted average of ordinary
shares of 1,120,394,000 shares (2016: 1,056,739,000)
calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)

(b) BER#EFRR

EREBERFNTIARAR LB
KRERB ARG AR
436,277,000 ( =T — /N F -
A R #190,755,0007T ) & & @
R& hn 4 S 9 851,120,394,000%
— =T — X :1,056,739,000
R)BEEFENT :

() EEKRMEFTE (#E)

2016
—E—RF
’000
T B%

Weighted average number R+ - A =+—HH#
of ordinary shares at AR N 98
31 December

Effect of deemed issue 1% {EIR B AN A &) B8 I% 4
of shares under the FEIETROATEE
Company’s share
option schemes

Weighted average number R+ A =+—HH#

of ordinary shares AR N 98
(diluted) at 31 (#5%)
December

1,095,479 1,038,359

24,915 18,380

1,120,394 1,056,739

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF

223



Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 ZT—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHRIN - LAAREHIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 ¥ -BEKRRKE
Office
Plant and Motor and other Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equi§¥m\ent Sub-total  in progress Total
AR
BT RERESE nE EthRfe t ERIE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETR ARBTRE ARMTR ARETR ARET:

Cost: x:
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—~F—A—H 153,932 284,622 689 66,703 505,946 13,765 519,711
Additions NE 20,547 188,324 - 58,143 267,014 96,160 363,174
Transfer from construction ~ EEBEER IR
in progress 1,741 46,407 - 1,350 49,498 (49,498) -
Disposals HE - (1,042) - 1) (1,083) - (1,063)
At 31 December 2016 and M =F—" &
1 January 2017 TZA=+-Ak
“Z—+%-f—-H 176,220 518,311 689 126,175 821,395 60,427 881,822
Additions NE 57,529 563,309 132 80,793 701,763 194,342 896,105
Transfer from construction EESHEETR
in progress ) 31,012 81,771 - 983 113,766 (113,766) -
Disposals e - 238) - 2,352) (2,590) - (2,590)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF
+-RA=+—H 264,761 1,163,153 821 205,599 1,634,334 141,003 1,775,337
Accumulated depreciation: 247 :
A 1 January 2016 R-Z-xE—A-A (16,126) (55,435) (339) (07,142) (09,041) - (99,041)
Charge for the year ERRk (9,351) (31,978) (124) (21,990) (63,443) - (63,443)
Written back on disposals (&R E - 836 - 7 843 - 843
At 31 December 2016and A =E—K 45
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—-RAk
“E—+F—f-H (25,477) (86,577) (462) (49,125) (161,641) - (161,641)
Charge for the year ﬁ?ﬂ?ﬂ B (21918) (66,093) (89) (47,128) (135,228) - (135,228)
Written back on disposals  HEEE - 54 - 2,140 2,194 - 2,194
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-f=+-A @735  (152616) (551) 04,113 (294,675 - (294675)
Net book value: FHFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R
+-R=+-H 150,743 431,734 227 770,050 659,754 60,427 720,181
At 31 December 2017 RIE—t%#
+-R=+—-H 217,366 1,010,537 270 111,486 1,339,659 141,008 1,480,662
The buildings held for own use are located in the PRC under Bre B FARPE  EpH
medium-term leases. 4 o
As at 31 December 2017, the Group was in the process of N—_E—+t+tFE+=_F=+—8 K&
obtaining the ownership certificate in respect of buildings FERURPRZEEFEASA
in the PRC with net book value of RMB31,012,000 (2016: R#31,012,000c (ZF—/"F: A
RMB24,281,000). K ®24,281,0007T ) 2 FHREFT
BREE -

2 24 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



11

Investments in subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries

31 December 2017 —
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B AR BT RE

T tE+=A=+—F

(Br=EHEAN AARKESITR)

11 REFE R RIMNIKRE

TRENARRFHEMHBRARZE

of the Company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless £l o RAEBEIN FTHEIAR D 2ERI A
otherwise stated. LRAR o
Proportion of equity
Place and date of incorporation/ Place of Paid up capital/ interest attributable to
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BYRER/

NAER EMRL/ RIEHRAH EXME ERER ARAEERELS  EEXH

Direct Indirect

HE B

Q Technology (Great China) Inc. British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ BVI US$10,000 100% - Investment holding
(“QT Great China’)* 3 July 2007 EBRUAHS 10,000 T REER

Q Technology (Great China) Inc. EBRLEHS ((RERREHE])/

([QT Great China ) * “3T+ELA=R

Kunshan Q Technology Limited* People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’)/ PRC US$175,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and trading of
(BUEHKREFRERARAR) (Note () 15 October 2007 7 175,000,000% 7 Camera Modules

BIEAREFRRARAR (M) REARLANE ([RE])/ REREERGEEA

“Z2ZLETATRA

Kunshan Q Technology (Hongkong) Limited Hong Kong/15 January 2013 Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Trading of Camera Modules

Kunshan Q Technology (Hongkong) Limited BE/-ET-=#-At+%A Bk 10,000 7T BERGHER

Chengdu Q Technology Limited* PRC/6 June 2014 PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% Research and development
(‘Chengdu QT Subsidiary’) PE/ZZ-BERARA H AR1,000,0007 of Camera Modules
(RBEARBFHRBRAT) Note (i) HERGERE

RBERHEFHRERAR
(IRBEARBRR]) (i)

Shenzhen Q Technology Limited* PRC/19 June 2015 PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Trading of Camera Modules
(*Shenzhen QT Subsidiary’) hE/—E-R1EXAtNA # AR 2,000,007 BEERGEEA
(RIERRBFRRBRAR) Notefi))

AIERHEFREERAR
(TRYNEARBERR]) (i)

Taiwan Q Technology Limited* Taiwan/1 July 2015 Taiwan TWD3,000,000 100% - Trading of Camera Modules
(Taiwan QT Subsidiary’) a&/-2-R5tA-H | 3,000,000% & % BEAGELA
(REERMBERAR)

AECHBHARAR
(TREEHAMERR])

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

11

12

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
& The entity was previously known as CK Telecom (Great China)

Inc. (“CK Great China”), and its name was changed to Q
Technology (Great China) Inc. on 2 September 2015.

* The English translation of the companies’ names are for
reference only. The official names of the companies are in
Chinese.

Notes:

(i)  The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated in
the PRC.

(i) The two entities are limited liabilities companies established in
the PRC.

Investments in associate

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

11 RBRANRE (&)

* ZEBRIRACK Telecom (Great
China) Inc. ([CK Great Chinal) °
HEBR_ZTZ—FRFhLhA_-_BE
2% AQ Technology (Great China)
ey, ©

N e

Bt -

() ZEEARHBREMKZINE B
Bz

(i) ZMREEBARFENRIHNERE
ERAT -

12 REEE DN BINIRE

Place of Proportion of equity
operation and interest attributable to
Name of Associate Date of incorporation business Paid up capital the Company Principal activities
HENTER LA A EXMAREY BHZER ARAEERELS  EEXE
Direct Indirect
¢4 B
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd 10 August 1999 Taiwan TWD1,500,000,000 36% - Design, research,
(FERBERHE KE{ —“AAAENRTE A 1,500,000,000%7 & % development,
FEMBERHERA manufacture and sales of
optical lens
Rt e SER

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Investments in associate (continued)

On 19 March 2017, the Group entered into a share
subscription agreement with Newmax Technology Co.,
Ltd. Upon the settlement of the total consideration of
RMB275,236,000 approximately on 31 August 2017, an
aggregate of 57,008,888 placing shares have been allotted
and issued to the Company, representing approximately
36% of the entire issued ordinary shares of Newmax
Technology Co., Ltd as enlarged upon completion of the
private placement. Newmax Technology Co., Ltd became an
associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial are
disclosed below:

Gross amounts of the associate

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

SHEERIN AARER)

12 REFERAINRE (&)

RZFE—+tF=HTNAB XxEEHE
FHERERMND AR ARG ZRMR
BHRE - RN —tFNA=+—

A# 5B REHARK275,236,000
T 1% A $£57,008,888% At & Ak 17
EEEZEREZEITTARR HERRT
RALERREREERNTERERS
BRARIzEZHEHTERRZY
36% - FEERI RN BRARIKA
REB ZHE QT -

TXHREBZERR W HERM
2 ZEERMERSABRRZEM
ZRELAE YRS HUBRRK
ZEREEH K

BMENT A

At

31 December

2017

R-ZZE—+t5F

+=A=+-—H

RMB’000

ARETF T

Current assets RENEE 498,757
Non-current assets IEREEE 235,246
Current liabilities mENARE 208,102
Non-current liabilities EREEE 6,584
Equity g 519,317

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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P AR AL

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

12 Investments in associate (continued)

Gross amounts of the associate (continueq)

12 REBEERRINRE (&

BMENR BB (E)

For the
period from
31 August
2017 to

31 December
2017
R-ZE—+t&
NB=+—H
£
—E—tF
+=A=+—H
R

Revenue
Loss from operations
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Reconciled to the Group’s interests
in the associates

YA
REXBER
H b 2 W s

2
N

/|

&

PHEWEEE

H

59,399
(46,995)
2,816

(44,179)

REERBELNTER 2B

At

31 December

2017

R=ZF—+tF

+=A=+-—H

RMB’000

AR¥ETTT

Gross amounts of net assets of the associate  Bf& A 71 & & /FEHE 519,317

Group’s effective interest REEERER 36%

Group’s share of net assets of the associate A& [E fE(L & D 78 EFE 186,954

Goodwill 5k 71,364
Carrying amount in the consolidated B RENEREE

financial statements 258,318
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13 Lease prepayments

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

13 HERNFIA

RMB’000
AREEFTT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2016, RZE—R"F—HA—HB ZZ—~FK
31 December 2016 and 2017 TR —lrEae = B e e —[g 20,791
Accumulated amortisation: EEtEes:
At 1 January 2016 R=F—~"F—H—H (3,327)
Amortisation for the year F R (416)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—RE+A=+—HEK
—E—+F—H—H (3,743)
Amortisation for the year N #E8 (416)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H (4,159)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RE+=-_A=+—H 17,048
At 31 December 2017 N—_E—t+tF+=-_A=+—8H 16,632
Interests in leasehold land represent prepayments of land REE TR ESIERNERR S

use rights premium to the PRC authorities by the Group.

*é%?%‘zﬁﬁﬁif@@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ

The Group’s leasehold land is located in PRC, on which its NRE - AREBEHNHEE + R

manufacturing plants were built. The Group is granted land
use rights for a period of 50 years up to 2058.

= EiﬁﬂZJ:@iE%‘%fEIJTf’

7R & B AR £ E P M B0 A IR 350
FE_ZTRNFIH-

The amounts include RMB416,000 (2016: RMB416,000) RZE—+F+_A=+—H &%
current portion of the lease prepayments as at 31 December Z A AREL416,0000T (=
2017. —~NF: AR¥416,0000) HEE

TR RIRBIEA &R 1

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

14 Intangible assets 14 B EE
Computer
software
SrEMEG
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: B :
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 RZZE—RER
Sl — e FE R =—E 1,608
Accumulated amortisation: BotEes:
At 1 January 2016 R-E—XE—H—8 (132)
Amortisation for the year F G (161)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZZE—R"FE+ZA=+—HEK
—T—+F—H—H (293)
Amortisation for the year F G (161)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=_A=+—H (454)
Net book value: BREEE:

At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—RFE+_A=+—H 1,315
At 31 December 2017 RZEBE—+F+_HA=+—H 1,154
The amortisation charges of the intangible assets for the year FRNEELEENEEBE I AS
are included in “administrative and other operating expenses” HEBRERPH [T R E MK L FH

in the consolidated income statement of profit or loss. * o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:

15 78

B OB R T

Raw materials and consumables R M ¥ &8 #E
Work in progress £ m
Finished goods X ah

The analysis of amount of inventories as an expenses and
included in profit or loss is as follows:

(R SEEBIN AAREIIR)

B8

Carrying amount of inventories sold & HEFEMREE
ERRTHRMEME S

Carrying amount of inventories

recognised as administrative ERARMAZEERDN
and other operating expenses FEMNREE
and research and development
expenses
Write down of inventories 5 & #OR

2017 2016

—E—tF T —RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREF T

153,019 227,125

303,789 272,938

231,233 299,183

688,041 799,246
ERRAIFTABETNFESEN

DHTAT -

2017 2016

—E2—+tF A S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®EFTT

7,054,083 4,564,809

162,789 73,843

3,463 2,475

7,220,335 4,641,127
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P AR AL

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

— third parties

— related parties (Note 30(c))
Bills receivable

— third parties

Trade and bills receivables

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Other deposits, prepayments and
receivables

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year, except

B 5 g WA

—%£=7

— 85 (Ha230(c))

eSS

—%£=7

B 5 RWGRIA MW RE

R AR

Hitiz®  FBR

F‘ﬂﬂl /T/\

16 EZ K E M EURRIE

2017 2016

=25 —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥ET T

1,761,433 2,371,648

21,893 3,894

232,346 169,105

2,015,672 2,544 647

(349) (9,904)

2,015,323 2,534,743

19,722 71,688

2,035,045 2,606,431
FrEE S N EMERZEERER
—FAKESIER AR ERZ

for the Group’s deposits amounting to RMB2,612,000 (2016:
RMB264,000) as at 31 December 2017, which are expected
to be recovered after more than one year.

Bill receivable represented outstanding bank acceptance
bills and commercial acceptance bills. As at 31 December
2017, bills receivable amounting to RMB27,427,000 (2016:
RMB129,225,000) were pledged as security for bills payable
(see Note 22(a)). Bills receivable are due in 3 to 6 months
from the date of issue.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

—+tF+_A=+—H2EAA
K#2,612,000c (ZE—<"F: A
R #¥264,00070) A E Bz & K
I ZESHRTEHERNBR—F1&
Yz 8]

FE U 18 15 R B B Uk SRAY 2R 17 &
REBABEEALEE - R _F
—+F+-_A=+—H AR¥
27,427,000 (ZE—RF: AR
#129,225,000L ) W EKREEE
BERERENEZHRMER (R KT
22(a)) - R E IR B 317 H BiREET3
Z6fME A 2 H -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued) 16 ESREMBEWRIE (&

As at 31 December 2017, bills receivable amounting to
RMB37,513,000 (2016: Nil) was pledged as security for bank
borrowings (see Note 21).

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables amounting to
RMB128,704,000 (2016: Nil) and RMB46,224,000 (2016: Nil)
was pledged as security for bills payable (see Note 22(a)) and
bank borrowings respectively (see Note 21).

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the year, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

R—_ZT—+F+=-_RA=+—H &
WZE AR%37,513,0007C (=&
—NF &) BEBEABRITERD
R (RHE21) -

R-B—+F+=-_A=+—H 85
FE U FR I8 A R #128,704,0007T ( —
T— T E)RAR®46,224,000
T(ZE—RE E)BE DRI EBE
BREMERE (RHE22()) RIRTTE
FRMaE21) IR

w

(@) BR#R 747

RER - REZ A D KK
REBRERNE S RKFIA R
RN EE (B AE S REME
WRIE) iR D AT AT -

Within 1 month RAE A LAA

More than 1 month but iBim11E B ER3E A AR
within 3 months

More than 3 months but FB@31E A 1B R6ME A AR
within 6 months

More than 6 months but FEA6E BB EA
within 1 year

2017 2016
—E2—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥ETTT
1,495,748 1,569,991
492,370 902,416
27,161 62,336
44 =
2,015,323 2,534,743
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade and bills receivables directly (see
Note 1()(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year is as follows:

At 1 January Rn—H—H

Impairment loss recognised EERHBEEE

Reversal of impairment B R e R B E 1B R & E
loss recognised

At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H

As at 31 December 2017, there was an impairment
provision of RMB349,000 (2016: RMB9,904,000) related
to certain customers which balances were overdue
and were individually determined to be impaired. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
After taking into account their respective financial
condition and the subsequent year end settlements from
customers up to the date of these financial statements,
the directors considered that such specific provision was
adequate but not excessive.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

16 E5 R EMEBYRKIER (&

(b) EZERUFEARERRERE

B 5 R IE R EREE AR
BEEBRABBRLE  BRIER
EBEEMKEERHES B RE
MR TEM FRIBRT  BE
EEEEHEE S RERKFIEBERE
WEEME (RHEE103)) °

FARKBREBENESOT
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFTT
9,904 504
= 9,400
(9,555) -
349 9,904

RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—8"
ERETRERPZREREBEAA
R #349,000c (=2 — /R F:
AR #9,004,0007T) © H & &
BRI EREERRE A&
B EREZEABRNEME
Y o KE RZERP 2Bk
MEERFERREZETH
mEBEHENEEBRL EFR
REBZIEBERE B KB
LE



Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired  BE K %80 H 78 R 8L (B

Less than 3 month past due #1 FASE A A A

Over 6 less than 12 months 61 HA R 1B 618 A
past due B 1218 A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2017, receivables that were past
due but not impaired related to customers that maintain
continuing trading relationships with the Group. Based
on past experience and customer’s financial condition,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary as the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

16 E5 RHEMBWKIR (&

(c) WEHENE S RBFIAERER

E$: ]

BE R B 5l 7R R HL R 4% R A RE
BB 5 EWHIRE M EKREIRN
R HTEAE

2017 2016
—®—+t% —TAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARET T
2,014,957 2,453,442
322 617

44 -
2,015,323 2,454,069

BE 2R 380 8 7 oK OBk (B /O FE UK IR
BTV EBRCBENZ AR
FaR-

RZZE—+F+=—HA=1+—8H"
£ 48 B 18 KR (B &Y FE U 1B 1T
REERXEEREE F T KE
BRHEP - REBAENLERNRZ
ERPHMBMRAL EEER
B ZEEHDA 2D iR
TEERZSTERELBER
1o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

17 Other financial assets 17 HittEemEE
2017 2016
—E—t & —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR
Other financial assets Hih ¢ & E 873,486 —
Other financial assets represent investments in short-term HhemiEdEREZEREENH
wealth management products issued by commercial banks PR A D R R AR AT R AT 2 IERAE
in mainland China whose principal and returns are not B e ARG HE PR B A R o
guaranteed.
As at 31 December 2017, other financial assets amounting R-_E—+t+E+-_A=+—8" ' H#
to RMB576,742,000 (2016: Nil) was pledged as security for T EEEARKS76,742,0007T (=
bank borrowings (see Note 21). T-RNF E)BEBIEARRITER

BHER (R HEE21) o
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18 Derivative financial assets and liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

18 fTEEREERAE

At 31 December 2017
R=®—t&+=A=+-8

Notional

amount Assets Liabilities

BEEH BE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T R AR®TR

Foreign currency derivative SNESTET B
instruments
~ Forward contracts —RHEHN 841,866 (17,555)
— Option contracts —HEEH 3,677,645 7,073 (434)
Total BEr 4,519,511 7,073 (17,989)
At 31 December 2016
R-ZE-—R"E+=ZA=+—H
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
AETH BE =L |
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT AREFIT
Foreign currency derivative SNESTET B
instruments
— Option contracts —HEEY 884,468 126,867 =

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

18 Derivative financial assets and liabilities 18 STESRIEERARE (&

(continued)
The Group entered into foreign currency option and ANEEHE—-BIRTEI M INERES
foreign currency forward contracts with bank. As at 31 L RINERBAEHN R —LF
December 2017, the notional amount of outstanding h — A = - ENVERE| B S 4w 2
contracts amounted to about USD691,670,000 (2016: E S F 4 5691,670,000EF7T (=&
USD127,500,000). All these option and forward contracts are — X% 127,500,000 7T) BT B
matured within one year, ZEHERERANER —ERF]
/E]q o
The fair value of the foreign currency option contracts is SNEERRES AN B T EL R A S
measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. Main T — AT E — REEAT & o R AR
parameters used in the model include the spot price of the HARNTFELHE LG E BEHIE
foreign exchange rates as of the valuation date, strike rates, ETHEEXR RHEEX IINEEX
forward foreign exchange rates, implied volatilities of foreign B [E =8 8) K DA N 4 & b Fl| = o
exchange rates and the risk-free rates.
The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts takes into INEREAIG A Z ANFEETIEER T
account the market interest rate and the estimated future SHREEREBENOTESARI Z S
pay-off of the forward contracts. %H o
19 Pledged bank deposits 19 BB ITER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Pledged for R UAT & I 3
— bank borrowings (Note 21) —RITER (HZ21) 49,468 12,000
- bills payable (Note 22) —ENEE (Hiz22) 28,201 75,493
— letter of guarantee — ¥R K 800 9,050
Pledged bank deposits BB EITER 78,469 96,543
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the EEHBETEABRSERBET
settlement of relevant bank borrowings, bills payable, and the B EMNEE N ERKE EE#F
maturity of letter of guarantee. & o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HENBRELZEEBY R EME

flow information EREER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) BehBREeEZEYERE:
2017 2016
—E—t& —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT
Cash in hand FEAS 47 65
Cash at bank RITERK 464,935 64,840
Cash at bank and in hand RITERRFHERS 464,982 64,905
As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents R—ZE—+tF+=_A=+—
placed with banks in the Mainland China amounted to H - AEFEFEAF BN R TT
RMB133,408,000 (2016: RMB40,744,000). Remittance WIES MRS EBYMA AR
of funds out of the Mainland China is subject to the 133,408,0007T ( =& — ;N & -
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control AR®40,744,0007T) - 5 E S
promulgated by the PRC government. BE b B (A 3h 28 38 57 AR B IR
78 15 B9 A8 B8 SN BE IR B RO
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HENRELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) EREEBHR (&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIANRAELEFFBRENY
generated from operations: BE :

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Profit before taxation B ¢ A A 509,515 214,587
Adjustments for: MATSHEFE:
Depreciation e 135,228 63,443
Amortisation of 0 & 78 3R IE 5
lease prepayments 416 416
Amortisation of intangible BB B oY
assets 161 161
Interest expenses B 5 X2 16,912 5,548
Interest income PSRN (18,377) (4,256)
Loss on disposal of property, &Y HBEKZENEE
plant and equipment 383 17
Write down of inventories 7 & MO 3,463 2,475
Impairment loss(reversed)/ B(BE) HBRESHR
recognised for trade and H b fE W IE R B 18
other receivables (9,555) 9,400
Equity-settled share-based WESEENRNDNAR S
payment transactions 6,704 1,658

Net loss on foreign currency  JMNERHI& #1855

forward contracts 17,555 -
Net loss/(gain) on foreign SNEERREA KBRS

currency option contracts (W) 558 47,911 (19,458)
Share of loss of an associate  JE (LB & A &) 518 16,918 =
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss  9MNE (Uez5) &8 (13,526) 20,460
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HENBRELZEEBY R EME
flow information (continued) EREER (&

(b) BRBIADERERELEREREHY

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: (continued) BR: (&)
2017 2016
—E-+tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR¥ETTT
Changes in working capital: ~ &iE& ¢ #& &) :
Decrease/(increase) in BERD,(#m)
inventories 107,742 (692,459)
Decrease/(increase) in trade & 5 & H b fE Wk 778
and other receivables wmA () 9,735 (2,058,425)
Increase in trade and B 5 K CH e 5R I8 35 A0
other payables 1,401,875 2,362,344
Decrease/(increase) in pledged 77 MR IR 17 H) 2 K 17 X
deposits with banks A (1) 55,542 (57,408)
Increase in amounts due to 1 B B 5 3K B 14 A0
related parties 23,164 967
(Increase)/decrease in amounts & U 78 B 75 28 (3G 00) R 4
due from related parties (17,999) 9,652
Increase in deferred income i iE Y& A 38 A0 2,859 6,987
Cash generated from/(used in) &K& 18,/ (FiA)IRE
operations 2,296,626 (33,891)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 &€ NRELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) EHREEHR (£
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MMEEHELECEBHK:
financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERANEBRRETHELEZ
from financing activities, including both cash and non- BEEHFAE PRIRESNLIER
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities SR MEETHELEZEBETD
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash AR RExBEREELHRER
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash NEBEHBREERERDEA
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. BEEHREREZABE-
Bank
borrowings
SRATER
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZE—tHE—H—H 335,432
Changes from financing cash flows: AMERSRESE:
Proceeds from new bank loans FriR1TE RS RIA 877,046
Repayment of bank loans BERITERK (658,554)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSMELEER 218,492
Exchange adjustments 5 (7,130)
Other changes: Hith & g :
Settlements of trade payables directly by the EBEMRETEBENZEFERMELEE
bank through import trade loan facilities 2 5 ENRIE 531,325
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZF-—t&+=A=+—-A8 1,078,119
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

20 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 20 HENBRELZEEBY R EME

flow information (continued) EREER (&
(d) Major non-cash transactions (d FEFREXS
Major non-cash transactions during the year included the FRN TEBIIEBETFBFEUAT
following items: BEH:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Settlements of trade BEEBEBREELHE
payables directly by B 5’ HIE
the bills endorsement 589,205 320,705

Settlements of trade payables B & B R 175 @ # O
directly by the bank through B S ER@MEEE
import trade loan facilities g 5 N IE 531,325 207,537

Total Bt 1,120,530 528,242
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

21 Bank borrowings 21 BITERK
As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings with effective T Taea o feanme: Hoeat S =l
interest rate of 3.31% (2016: 1.91%) were repayable within g ﬂ K E53.31% ( —FE—NF:
one year or on demand as follows: 1 91% ) BZER —FANIREXKEERE
B ERITIE R T :
2017 2016
—E—t & —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARE T
Bank borrowings HR1TE K
— secured (Note) — BT (A7) 673,891 111,335
— unsecured — A 404,228 224,097
1,078,119 335,432
Note:The bank borrowings were secured by assets of the Group and Biat: RTEFTBHAEEBNEEEE
the carrying amounts of these assets are as follows: WoOZEEENERENT
2016
—E2—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Other financial assets HtemEE (fat17)
(Note 17) 576,742 -
Pledged bank deposits EHRPRITER (H2E19)
(Note 19) 49,468 12,000
Bill receivables (Note 16) JEWER (H7iE16) 37,513 -
Trade receivables (Note 16) B 5 RWHIE (K1iE16) 46,224 =
709,947 12,000
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22 Trade and other payables

Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

e

B2 REMEMNRIER

2017 2016
—E—tF TR KT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETTT

Trade payables and accruals

— third parties

— related parties (Note 30 (c))
Bills payable (Note (a))

— third parties

Trade and bills payables (Note (b))

Accrued payroll
Foreign currency option premium
Other payables and accruals

B EMNZBENETER
===

— R85 (H12230(c))
BN EE (KitE)

A —

— ==

B EMNFEREMNEE
(HiiEm))

FEstTE

HNEERIE B

Hibh BN RIBRIETEA

All of the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2017
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within

one year or are repayable on demand.

1,858,471 2,054,547
24,334 1,170
770,356 318,154
2,653,161 2,373,871
60,894 50,161

- 107,409
116,062 61,340
2,830,117 2,592,781

N=E—tE+ A=+ — AN
B 5 KA S FURTR R —
7 S T TR A I S R B K1

mE b oot 5%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

22 Trade and other payables (continued) 2 ESREMBENFIE(£F
(a) Bills payable analysed by type of security (a) REHFEHRSM2ERFERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Bills payable secured by AT &IEEEHRT
mHEZENER
- Bills receivable (Note 16) —EWEE (Hit16) 27,427 124,760
— Pledged bank deposits —BHEFRITER
(Note 19) (Htat19) 20,153 102,748
— Trade receivables (Note 16) — & SEWRIE (#1:216) 100,000 -
147,580 227,508
Bills payable unsecured EEFENZEE 622,776 90,646
770,356 318,154
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22 Trade and other payables (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B #E SR 3R M

31 December 2017 —E—+4F+_-A=+—H
(BRBHEEBEIN AARETIR)

(b) An ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables based on the invoice date is as

follows:

22 EZNHMBENRKE(F)

(b) ZBRZAPE D 2BEZENTE

REMNRBZRESHOT:

Within 3 months

More than 3 months but
within 6 months

More than 6 months but
within 1 year

More than 1 year

MR3ME A AR
8 @318 A ER6ME A AR

HEiE6E A ENIFIARN

FB @1 F

As at 31 December 2017, the accrued trade payables

which represented the amounts with no invoice received
by the end of the year, amounted to RMB76,458,000

(2016: RMB142,943,000).

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR¥ETTT
1,700,477 2,046,742
695,397 182,461
169,407 896
11,422 829
2,576,703 2,230,928

R-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—8"
EsrE S EMRE (BFERL
BUMBEZENRE)AARK
76,458,000 (ZE—RF : A

R #142,943,0007T ) °

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

23 Deferred income

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

23 EEWA

Government

grant

BT % B

RMB’000

AR¥ETTT

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-—RFE—HA—H 4,752

Additions during the year FARE 9,081
Amortisation credited to consolidated T AE OF e 3R A HE 5

income statement (2,094)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZBE-—RETZA=+—8K

—E—+tF—H—H 11,739

Additions during the year FARE 5,000
Amortisation credited to consolidated FTAG GF e 2= B0

income statement (2,141)

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+H+A=+—H 14,598

24 Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at the rate of 20% starting from 1
December 2011 (before 1 December 2011: 18%) of the
eligible employees’ salary rate to the Schemes. The Group
has accrued for the required contributions which are remitted
to the respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the
retired employees covered under the Schemes.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Starting from 2014, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

Equity settled share-based transactions

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option conversion scheme (the “Conversion
Scheme”) and granted a total of 59,935,500 share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to
the Group made or possibly made. The directors of the
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite certain
employees of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options at Nil consideration to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 25(a)(i).

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

24

25

(B BH 1IN - LA ARITIR)
BERKER (&
REMBE RS (2)

B —MOF8 ~EETRE (B
BEHEABSETEEA) ARE
BAEBGRN EETERBHO 2R
WARMARERHNERGTEINES
EERtE R ESFE ([RESET
gl]) BEEFTERBABILXTA
EEMNRTEHIRKE S -BIER
EeiE BEEREREEAS M
FENEABEEEB A ERSRIERMH
FZ AMEEAAER LR A30,000
Bt (ZF — M4 75 A Al £25,000
BIT) cHWETEIEH BV R BN 5
Jg% °

Bk £t FRIA SN - R B L X AT R
ReBALBEBEMEKNEE-

DESEEURGBERDN

R

RZTE—NMNF+—A+=H &R
BIERMTERXAREEABRER
2 (TERAFRBERBEARERE])
k—IEE R EERGE ([ERE
2) EREEIAHABEANER
EiEmeER2HEERD HE
59,935,500 IR #E - B L SR BN
MEEKAI e AEEEHAN R
oA RRESEREARBZRS
AEBIFNEE (BEASEMEH
NAINES) USSR EZNERER
BARGRMD HRXAMEESAE
AREET EI M B E R T EE25(a)() ©
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31 December 2017 ZT—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”)
to eligible participants to subscribe for a total of 39,425,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company, subject to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth target of the Company’s 2017, 2018
and 2019 financial years. Details of the three tranches of the
2016 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 25(a)(ii).

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted share options (the
“2017 Share Option Scheme | and 2017 Share Option
Scheme II”) to 48 eligible participants (“Grantees”) to
subscribe for a total of 8,083,000 ordinary share of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company, subject to performance
conditions related to certain revenue growth target of the
Company’s 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 financial years.
Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme | and 2017 Share
Option Scheme Il are set out in Note 25(a)(iii) and Note 25(a)

(iv).
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25 LEREEURMDAERR

X5 (%)

7 = Eyveao s S Dbl A
AARMAEEIKRLEERLAH
39,425,000f0 R #E ([ Z T — /R F
AR ERTE] ) ARB AR RRAF
& #£39,425,0000% & % E {E0.0178%
TTZEBR MEAGEBRARRZE
—t ZZE-N\EKZE-NBEFE
ZETHWARRBEZ ZITEIGEE
EXE AAEE - = _F—X
FRRERE ZFBHNHE25()
(ii)

RZFE—tFAALB - RAAAMRA
48FEER2EE ([ARA]E
HERE ([ —FHEBRETS
IR Tt FERESTEI]) AR
BN QB AR & 8,083,000 &
BREEC.OVE L2 EBR  HEGSE
AR E—+t ZF—N-=F
—NWERZZFE_ZTUBFEZAETIK
AERBBEZITEGEHEEENRE
AAEE - — T -t FHERE S
T+ FERETSINZEFER
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31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions 25 UERGEEURARERMD

(continued) X5 (#E)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHEMGERREHENT :
follows:

Vesting conditions

Number of B HHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEEE ARUAHBHZFR BRENGHNFH
() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
() BRAFRBEANBREE
2012
—E—_F
Granted to directors:
RT&E%:
—-on 1 January 2012 15,000,000 3 years 6 years
-RN-ZET——%—F—H 3F 64
-on 1 January 2012 7,500,000 4 years 6 years
-R—ZT——F—F—H 4F 65F
-on 1 January 2012 7,500,000 5 years 6 years
-R-ZE——%—F—H 5% 6F
Granted to employees:
BKTESR:
—-on 1 January 2012 11,948,500 3 years 6 years
-RN-ZE——F—F—H 3F 64
-on 1 January 2012 5,974,250 4 years 6 years
-R—ZT——F—F—H 4F 65F
-on 1 January 2012 5,974,250 5 years 6 years
-R-ZE——%—F—H 5% 6F
Sub-total for 2012 53,897,000
T FNG
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31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

25 LREREEURMDAERR

(continued) X5 (%)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHEMGERREHFNOT: (&)

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

Number of B HHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEE ABARUAHBHZFR BRENSHNES
() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
() BRLAFRBENBRESE
2013
—F—=F
Granted to employees:
BTESR:
-on 1 January 2013 2,186,500 2 years 5 years
-R=ZT—=%—H—H 26F 5%
-on 1 January 2013 1,093,250 3 years 5 years
-R=FT—=F—H—H 3F 5%
-on 1 January 2013 1,093,250 4 years 5 years
-RZT—=F—A—H 45 5%
Sub-total for 2013 4,373,000

—E-=Eh
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31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions 25 UERGEEURARERD

(continued) X5 (#E)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHEMGKRRGEHFENOT: (&)

follows: (continued)

Vesting conditions

Number of B HHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEEE ABARUAHBHZFR BRENSHNES
() Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
() EROBAREANBRETS
2014
—E2-ImF
Granted to employees:
KTESR:
—-on 1 January 2014 832,500 1 years 4 years
-RZZE-—OmF—-A—H 16 45
-on 1 January 2014 416,250 2 years 4 years
-R-ZTE-HFE—-—H—H 26 45
-on 1 January 2014 416,250 3 years 4 years
-RZE-HFE—-H—H 3F 45
Sub-total for 2014 1,665,000
ZE—FNE
Total Pre-IPO Share 59,935,000
Options granted
ERERAREER
AR B 2
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31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

25 LEREEURMDAERR

X% (

(a) RHMMERRELEWT : ()

Vesting conditions

=

)

Number of B HHE Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEE ABARUAPBEHZFR BRENGHNFH
(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme:
(i) =F-—AEBRETE:
Granted to directors:
ETES:
- on 26 October 2016 1,124,800 1 years and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RZE-—RFTAZtXH 152508 A 2FEZ2ME A
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RFETHZT/E 2F Z5(E A 3FZ21E A
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RE+TAZTXH 3FT5(E A AFZT2ME A
Granted to employees:
BTESR:
- on 26 October 2016 14,645,200 1 years and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RFTAZtXH 152518 A 2FEZ2ME A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RFETHZT/E 2F Z5(E A 3FZ21E A
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
—-RZE-RE+AZTXH 3FT5(E A AFZT2ME A
Total 39,425,000
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25 Equity settled share-based transactions

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(RS EHEBIN AAREIR)

25 UEmGEHIURDRBERD
X5 (%&)

Vesting conditions

(a) RHMERREFEWT : ()

Number of B HHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEEE ARUAHBHZFR BRENGHNFH
(iii) 2017 Share Option Scheme I:
(i) —F—tFRREE:
Granted to employees:
BKTESR:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,935,200 9 months 1 years and 6 months
-RZE—+EANA ofEl A 156261 A
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 1 years and 9 months 2 years and 6 months
-RZE—+FANE 1629l A 2FZ6fE A
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
-RZE—tEANAE 2FTOfEl A 3FEZ6(E A
Total 4,838,000

2017 53 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF
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PR AR AL

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERAIN AARESR)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

25 LEREEURMDAERR

X5 (%)

Vesting conditions

(a) RHHMERREEWT : (&)

Number of SFHBHHF Contractual life
instruments  Years from the date of grant of options
THEE ABARUAHBHZFR BRENGHNFH
(iv) 2017 Share Option Scheme II:
(ivy —E—tFBEREEIN:
Granted to employees:
BTESR:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,298,000 1 years and 9 months 2 years and 6 months
-RZE—+EANA 162l A 2F 68 A
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
-RZE—+EFANE 2F Z9fEl A 3FZ6fE A
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 3 years and 9 months 4 years and 6 months
-RZZE—+EANH 3FZTOfE A AFZ6{H A
Total 3,245,000
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31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions 25 UERGEEURARERD

(continueq) X5 (#&)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) EREHERITHEENT :
options are as follows: (&)
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BRABZEFTBREZ
2017 2016
ZB-tF —T-RF
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE TEE  BREHE
RMB '000 RMB '000
AR®TT T4 ARETT T
Outstanding at the REHRTE
beginning of the year 0.4 13,826 0.4 27,745
Forfeited during the year ~ RER B XM - 0.4 93)
Exercised during the year ~ RER BT 0.4 (13,826) 0.4 (13,826)

Outstanding at the end RERERITE
of the year - 0.4 13,826

Exercisable at the end RERA{TE

of the year = = -
On 13 November 2014, the share options under R-ZZE—NWE+—AF+=
Employee Share Option Scheme were converted A EEBRETSIETZ
into share options of the Company, with 1 share ERECERAARAZ
option under Employee Share Option Scheme i AR 4 - 1 AR RS SR A1
being converted into 100,000 share options of 8110 & B iR 8118
the Company, at the same terms and conditions, T2 BB fE 8 5100,000
except that the respective exercise prices were PARRE) B - HEHEE
adjusted on a proportionate basis from RMB40,000 T EE A AR%40,000
to RMBO.4 per share. During the year, the remaining TEREIABREERAR
13,826,000 options under the Pre-IPO Share 0.4 - FN - BRARE
Option Scheme were all exercised to subscribe for ERERESTEIE THHRT
ordinary shares in the Company as set out in Note 13,826,0001) fg iz 1 B &
27(0)(i). BBITEARBARRAEE

B (ERBETEE27(C)() ) °
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PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows: (continued)

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme:

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year

Granted during the year ~ RERERH

Forfeited during the year ~ RERB KM

Outstanding at the end RERMRTE

of the year

Exercisable at the end RERA{TE
of the year

REERTTHE

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

25 LEmEHEIURDRBERD
X5 (%)

(b) BREHERTEEMOT
(%)

(i) =—F-—NFHBKETE:

2017 2016
ZE-tF It SN2
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE T  BREHA
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
B T4 BT T

413 38,744 - _
- 413 39,425
413 (1,979) 413 (681)

4.13 36,765 413 38,744

The 2016 Share Options outstanding at 31
December 2017 had an exercise price of HKD4.13
(2016: HKD4.13) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1.9 years (2016: 2.9 years).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (continued)

(iij) 2017 Option Scheme |

25 UEmGEHIURDRBERD
X5 (%&)

(b) BREHERTEENT
(%)

(i) = FE—EFERETE

2017
—E—tF

Number of

Exercise price options

TEE BREHE

HKD ‘000

BT T 14

Granted during the year REARNBER D 6.22 4,838

Forfeited during the year RERNBE KK 6.22 (1,290)
Outstanding at the end RERRKRITE

of the year 6.22 3,548

Exercisable at the end RERAITHE

of the year

The 2017 Share Options Scheme | outstanding at
31 December 2017 had an exercise price of HKD

6.22 and a weighted average remaining contractual

life of 1.9 years.

RZE—+tF+=-A=+—
HRARITEHN T —+FHE
IR #E 5T EIIBY 1T £ (8 R6.22
I AR I TR E 4
FHA1.9%F -
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PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (continued)

(iv) 2017 Share Option Scheme Il

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

25 LEREEURMDAERR
Ra (&)

(b) BREHERTEEMOT
(%)

(iv) —FE—tFEREFTEN

2017
—E—tF

Number of

Exercise price options

TEE BREHE

HKD ‘000

BT )

Granted during the year REARBER D 6.22 3,245

Forfeited during the year RERNE KK 6.22 (240)
Outstanding at the end RERRAKRITE

of the year 6.22 3,005

Exercisable at the end RERAIITHE

of the year

The 2017 Share Options Scheme Il outstanding at
31 December 2017 had an exercise price of HKD

6.22 and a weighted average remaining contractual

life of 2.9 years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(RS EHEBIN AAREIR)

25 UEmGEHIURDRBERD
X5 (%&)

(c) BRENAFERRR

PATR T B I RE R B A IR 75 B 2
FESERLERENRTE

e

@

The estimate of the fair value of the Pre-IPO

Share Options granted is measured based on

Black-Scholes model. The contractual life of the

share option is used as an input into this model.

Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the Black-Scholes model.

BARRHRERBIKEE

B BER AR SR BRE
BV E A FERRA S —&F
BETEIGTE -BRENS
MEREZRLTESBA
BEEA - IREITENES
B @ AR R —EFBAR

7 o

2012 2013 2014
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—F--F —F-=F% —E-mF
EEBERE EERERE EEBERE
Fair value at measurement A&t & HBKAFE RMB16,206 RMB25,332 RMB89,705
date AR®16,20600 AR%253327c AR89,7057T
Spot Price RERE RMB35,394 RMB50,772 RMB123,604
AR¥35,3041  ARM50,7727t  ARM¥123,6047T
Exercise Price (Note(b)(j)) T8 (b)) RMBO.4 RMBO.4 RMBO.4
AR#0.47T AR®0.47T ARH#0.47T
Expected volatility TEH R 1B 53.8% 51.3% 47.9%
Option life (expressed FBREEH (AREE
as weighted average life e A RO IN#E 19
used in the modelling) FHERTR) 4.88 3.88 2.88
Expected Dividend TR S 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate mR A E (R BB
(based on CNY China ARBEHWS =R
Government Bond Yield) TE) 3.27% 3.25% 4.42%

2017 53 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF
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PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 ZT—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility of comparable companies operating in
similar industry of the Company, calculated based
on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options, adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(RS EHEBIN AAREIR)

25 UEmGEHIURDRBERD

X5 (%&)

(c) BRENAFERRER (£)

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme: (i) =—EFE—NFERETZ
The estimate of the fair value of the 2016 Share BH - NFERENG
Options granted is measured based on a Binomial HAFEIE B SHEEE
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the BAAHE ERENS L E
share option is used as an input into this model. HRfE s B AU R B A b ASUE
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into FH - BETENFEHED
the model. B A ZAR LA
2016 2016 2016
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E-RE —E-RE —E-RE
EEBRE EEBRE EEBRE
Vesting date HEAH 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
—T)N\F —Z-NF —ZT_TF
mA—H mA—H mA—H
Maturity date 38R 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
—T)N\F —Z-NF —ZT_TF
+-A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
Fair value Rit2 BHHAFE
at measurement date HKD0.487& 7T ~ HKD0.35/ 7T ~ HKDO0.267 7T
Share price RE HKD4.13B 7T  HKD4.13B T HKD4.13E JT
Exercise price (Noteb)fij)  1T1E1E (AiZ(b)i)) HKD4.13 JT  HKD413/E T HKD4.137 7T
Expected volatility TE R 1B 40.86% 40.64% 40.63%
Risk-free interest rate &R A & 0.47% 0.51% 0.58%
Expected dividends TEHIR B 0.49% 0.49% 0.49%
Forfeiture rate KHE 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%
Suboptimal early exercise RERETEER
factor 1.85 1.85 1.85
0175 FH ERME (FE)ERAA

263



264

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 ZT—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme (continued) (ii)

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

25 LEREEURMDAERR
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(c) BRENAFERRBR (F)

==
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARBESIR)

25 UEmGEHIURDRBERD
X5 (%&)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRER (£)

(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme I: (i) —FE—EFEREZ :
RE T FERENMG
AT ER_BEXEEERE
REGTE - BIREN S NF
HfE Z R A R A BUE
A REBITENEHED

The estimate of the fair value of the 2017 Share
Options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the model. By AZEAL A o

2017 2017 2017

Employee Employee Employee

Share Share Share

Options Options Options

—E—+E —E—tF —E—+E

EEERE EEERE EEERE

Vesting date % B A5 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020

Maturity date Elp:is 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
Fair value Rt EBHNAFE

at measurement date HKDO0.58/% It HKDO.477%& It HKDO0.36/8 T

Share price KB HKD6.22/87c  HKD6.22/875  HKD6.22/8 7T

Exercise price (Note(®)(ii) — 111E1E (H1a£ b)i)) HKD6.22/87t  HKD6.227% 7T  HKD6.227& 7T

Expected volatility 8 HA % 18 37.86% 40.07% 39.51%

Risk-free interest = e A 0.57% 0.71% 0.80%

Expected dividends B S 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%

Forfeiture rate R E 5.61% 5.61% 5.61%

Suboptimal early exercise K EIREITHERE
factor 1.85 1.85 1.85

2017 53 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR T RE

31 December 2017 —T—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

(iij) 2017 Share Option Scheme I: (continued)

(Br S BB AARKEIIR)

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(iii)

25 DEREEURMDAERR
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(c) BRENAFERRBR (£)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN AAREFIR)

25 UEmEHIURDRERD
X5 (%&)

(c) BRENAFERRER (£)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)
(iv) 2017 Share Option Scheme Il: (iv) —EFE—tFEREFE :
BRE—ZT—tFERENMG
FATEZ B HEEE
REGTE - BRENSNF
HATE a2 AR B R R R i A BUR
ER-REITEMNTEMER

The estimate of the fair value of the 2017 Share
Options granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the model. B A ZAR A A o

2017 2017 2017

Employee Employee Employee

Share Share Share

Options Options Options

—E—tE “E—tF —E—tF

EEERE EEERE EEERE

Vesting date %8 A 5 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2021

Maturity date 3HIR 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2021
Fair value REtE BB ATE

at measurement date HKDO.477% 7T HKDO.367% 7T HKDO0.217%& It

Share price KB HKD6.22/87c  HKDB6.22/7T  HKD6.227 7T

Exercise Price (Note(b)iv) 1111 (#TaE®)iv)) HKD6.22/87t  HKD6.227% 7T  HKD6.227& 7T

Expected volatility 8 Hi R 1R 40.07% 39.51% 40.39%

Risk-free interest rate 2= 3 B A o= 0.71% 0.80% 0.90%

Expected dividends TEEARR B 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%

Forfeiture rate ERES 5.61% 5.61% 5.61%

Suboptimal early RERBETFERE
exercise factor 1.85 1.85 1.85

2017 55 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF



Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BHE 8RN AARESR)

25 DEREEURMDAERR
Ra (&)

25 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

(c) BRENAFERRBR (£)

(iv) 2017 Share Option Scheme II: (continued) (iv) —E—tFEREFZI :

(#&)

The expected volatility was referenced to the
average of daily historical share price volatility of
comparable companies operating in similar industry
of the Company. Expected dividends are estimated
as the average of the Company’s historical
dividends. The option scheme was granted under
a performance condition, and management of the
Company estimates the probability of attaining

REIRIE D2 ER AR EIR
UITRBLENATELRAF
B B 35 52 i (B 18 © TR H
B AR RARRIE LR
S 8- BERUERT 81 AR
BERBIEHERARREERE
BRI R BIREA]
BEMEM X - T B ARUR

revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective BRB B (E &L r] ¥ A {E
et ENERATE - K HE

P A I 488 B 75 T 355 iR 1 o

input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

26 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position

26 ST BRRKRPIAER

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) BB MR KRFHENHIF 1B

of financial position represents: ¥

2017 2016
—E—+iF A2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR¥ETTT

Current tax assets BEMIEEE
PRC Corporate Income Tax R (b TS - 1562

Current tax payable B HA P& 4 Bt 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax R EMSR 8,033 10,372

268
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN AAREFIR)

26 Income tax in the consolidated statement 26 & #tE1 &R R KX P FFEF

of financial position (continued) (#)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERANELEHRELEERERE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities FRRNE FHBAR L RIEDRH
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BELEFIBEEN A G/ 48k 2P
position and the movements during the year are as NE =k N
follows:

Unrealised
Fair value profit Impairment
change of  Undistributed arising from  on inventories
financial  profits of PRC intra-group and trade Deferred

instruments subsidiaries transactions receivables income Total

BEERAEM &R

ERIA PEMEBLAN RAELEH  ESELHE
ATERD AOEEA AERERN BfE BEUA ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 1 January 2016 RZE-7~5-HA-H - (2,040) 4,034 175 713 2,882
(Credited)/charged to (31A) /8

consolidated income statement ~ A4HEER (#/i#5))

of profit or loss (Note () (2,919 - (513) 1,749 1,048 (635)

At 31 December 2016 and RZE-~E+ZA

1 January 2017 =t+-Bk
“EI-+5-f-A .919) (2,040) 3521 1924 1,761 0,047
(Credited)/charged to (]A)/HkE
consolidated income statement ~ ABHEER (#/i#51))
of proft o loss (Vote 5) 3,35 (2,365) (646) (1,125) 429 312)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t5
+=A=t-A 476 (4,405) 2875 799 2,190 1935

2017 55 E#RPE (£E)EBRLTF 269
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

26 Income tax in the consolidated statement 26 & 3fEf 4Rk R 3k B T 588
of financial position (continued) (4&)
(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (c) EHEHARAREIR:
financial position:

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Net deferred tax asset recognised A& 5 B 75 A 1 3= #E 32

in the consolidated statement of ~ IEILF{ I & E/FE

financial position 7,672 4,287
Net deferred tax liability recognised 7 & #f B 15 A 5 3= FE 52 &6

in the consolidated statement of ~ IEILF{ 18 & (&% 58

financial position (5,737) (2,040)
1,935 2,247
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d RERELEHEEE
The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities in AEETEJLPEMBERTR
respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax relating —FE—tEFF+A=+—HH
to certain undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries BRE TR DB = A P48
as at 31 December 2017 since the Group controls BERREFEMNHERELEHIES
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based & RAERASE B 26z EH
on the assessment of the management, as of 31 BRI EREK -RBIEE R
December 2017, the undistributed profits amounted to BEE 22 —tF+=
RMB870,336,000 (2016: RMB559,708,000) will not be A=+—8'%k% @E/ﬁnﬂiﬁ
distributed in the foreseeable future. R #870,336,0007C ( Z&F — 7~

E : AR #559,708,0007T ) #%
ZRAIERNRKRDE -

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends

Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Br=EHEAN AARKESITR)

271 Bz RERRE

(@) Movements in components of equity (a) EEIpHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing NEFESHERS L MHDEFET
balances of each component of the Group’s REREHBHEERESF NG 6
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated mEBE AR ARG S 5D
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in REFEEREEF ST
the Company’s individual components of equity between R
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Equity
settled  Accumulated
share- based loss/
Share Share Exchange Other payment Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
NERLEER
DR A 2iER/
B RGEE ESiRE AR ERARRH RERA @it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARBTT ARBTT ARBT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
27d1) 270l 27dllv) 27025
At 1 January 2016 R=F-~"%-A—-H 8,132 668,384 39,749 66 4,458 5,363 726,152
Share issued under share RERRETHETREG
option schemes 27(e)fi) 17 7,907 - - (2,494) - 5,530
Equity settled share-based INEREEMNRA B
payment transactions ARAFZS ) - - - - 1,658 - 1,658
Shares issued for the Placement 1B — MR EREE B 1Tk
under general mandate 27(c)iiy) 356 136,920 - - - - 137,276
Loss for the year ERER = = = - - (2,851) (2.851)
Other comprehensive income ~ E s 2 AN - - 49,844 - - - 49,844
Asat31 December 2016and ~ R=B-AF+=A=+-BR
1 January 2017 ~8-tf¥-B-H 8,605 813,211 89,593 66 3,622 2,512 917,609
Share issued under share RERRE BB TRE
option schemes 27e)i) 122 7,903 - - (2,495) - 5,530
Equity settled share-based IEREER RN A
payment transactions B 5 i) - - - - 6,704 - 6,704
Shares issued for the Placement 1R — R EREER TR
under general mandate 27(c)fi) 168 178,897 - - - - 179,065
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - 20,784 20,784
Dividend approved in respect BEEFEHAERS
of the previous year 271b)fi) = = = = = (37,145) (37,145)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 Ak - - (48,308) - - - (48,308)
As at 31 December 2017 RZ2-tF+ZA=+-H 8,895 1,000,011 41,285 66 7,831 (13,849) 1,044,239

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —T—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BHE 8RN AARESR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 27 & -HERRKRE (&

(b) Dividends (b) BB
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FAEMNELGREFZFEAR
Company attributable to the year |

2017 2016
—E—tfF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT

Final dividend proposed after R ¥R A REEZ K

the end of the reporting HRERARKT8S

period of RMB7.8 cents ZE—AREARK

(2016 RMB3.5 cents) 3.5%) (HHER9.6/8

equivalent to HKD9.6 cents il (==& — 754 :3.9/8

(2016: HKD3.9 cents) i) ) 87,017 38,151
The final dividend proposed after the end of the year RIFERAR  MAFELER
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end BEZNRIIKE M ARIER
of the reporting period. REME-

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FAEHERZHZLE—1EH

Company attributable to the previous financial HEEEBNEAGRERFEA
year, approved and paid during the year. KRE -

2017 2016
—E—t& —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Final dividend in respect of BEFABHERSTNZ

the previous financial year, E— B0 B EE REAR

approved and paid during the B AAR¥I 5D (==

year of RMB3.5 cents (2016: — /& :Z) (HER

Nil) equivalent to HKD3.9 398 (ZF—RF:

cents (2016: Nil) z)) 37,145 =

2 7 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements
B #% SR 3R M

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN AAREFIR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 27 E€  -RBERRKRE (&

(c) Share capital (c) B
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZBTRAE
Number of
shares Amount
% 3 21 B o]
‘000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Authorised: EIE -
Ordinary shares FHR0.018 7L 2 E i
of HK$0.01 each 50,000,000 500,000
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
RA#E ZRREE
Note ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
l/ir3 T THBT AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BRETRAR:
At 1 January 2016 RZE—A"F—H—H 1,027,945 10,279 8,132
Shares issued under BEERAREER
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme  BE &t 2|3 17 ik (7 (i) 13,826 138 117
Shares issued for the Placement i & %47 i () (i) 40,000 400 356
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
1 January 2017 +ZRA=+—-HRk
—T—tF
—H—H 1,081,771 10,817 8,605
Shares issued under BEERAREER
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme B & = 2|2 17 R {p (i) 13,826 138 122
Shares issued for the Placement 8¢ & 21717 (i) 20,000 200 168
At 31 December 2017 N 3
+-RA=+—H 1,115,597 11,155 8,895

Q017 FH  ESEHE (EM)ERA 273
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M A

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Shares issued under Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

During the year, options were exercised to
subscribe for 13,826,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of RMB5,530,400 all
of which was credited to share premium account
(2016: 13,826,000 shares at a consideration of
RMB5,530,400). RMB2,495,000 was transferred
from the equity settled share-based payment
reserve to the share premium account (2016:
RMB2,494,000).

Shares issued for the Placement under general
mandate

On 29 December 2017, an aggregate of
20,000,000 shares were allotted and issued at
HKD10.80 per share. The net proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses, is approximately
RMB179,065,000.

On 12 December 2016, an aggregate of
40,000,000 shares were allotted and issued
at HKD3.90 per share. The net proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses, is approximately
RMB137,276,000.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

21 Ex RBRERE (&

(c) B& (&)

(i)

(iir)

REEXAHREFIERET
BRITRG

FA-BREETHENIZ
RE AR ¥5,530,4007T 2
% N X 5113,826,0008% &
AR - REHF ARG R
BERE(ZE—XNF &R
B AR ¥5,530,400C R HE
13,826,0000% f& 15 ) ° B LA
BmEE RO BERN
HiFEEB AR 2,495,000
TEBEERMOER(ZZ
—NF: AR ®2,494,000
JT) °

RIE—RREDEERITRG

RZZT -+t &+ = A
—tAB UNEKEKMH
10.80B LBl E R EITAEH
20,000,0008% /% 17 ° FT1S
EFE (BNKESRE
EXEBEREHEBRZRE)
#“ A ANR179,065,000
e

RZE-—RE+ZA+=
B LA 173.90/%8 T
B & 3 17 & 40,000,000
BERE 9 o FTIS FRIEF R (K8
HBREERAe EXERE
HHEBRAZE)ORARK
137,276,0007T °



Notes to the Financial Statements

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in Note 1(v).

PRC Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the Mainland China are required to appropriate 10%
of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of profits
to parent companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of its registered capital.

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEEBIN AAREIIR)

271 B RERRE (&

d) REHEERAR

)

(i)

(iii)

REFASHERRE (K&
R ARBRMDEERLE
& & A 2k T AR A K
R-RAEEESIRER
BEBZE ARFELARE
HWERFEHBETBED
HIRAE ©

EZEE

EXFEEERRERBEAL
PN SE 75 10 B 75 S ok P EE A
M —YISNEZRR - HHARE
TR IR M 521 (V) PT & & 5T K
REEHE °

o B JE 1

HARBRARRTE AR A
P FR B A 3 AR AT K 58 O B
BARAKGELRTEEE
A RARETEBRRR
A E10% (B HEFE
BRIBAEERRRFE
EERAEEREEIMERN
HI50% 3 LE » B T 5% i 18
N LIRS YN PR iR -3
7o

EERESAEREIER
77 A FA DA 88 R 5T B 18 53
METBRARIMER  ERE
MFERENEHRMERET
fMEARM25% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % R 3R M &

31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Other reserve

v)

The other reserve of the Group as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 represents the difference between
(i) the carrying amount of share capital of QT
Great China; and (ii) the nominal value of the share
issued by the Company in exchange for all the
issued share capital of QT Great China under the
reorganisation of the Group completed on 26 June
2014.

Equity settled share-based payment reserve

The equity settled share based payment reserve
comprises the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised shares options granted to the
directors and employees of the Group that has
been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in Note

1(n)(ii).

(vi) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
changes in the fair value of other financial assets
held by the Group as at the year end dates net of
deferred tax, and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in Notes 1(h) and 1(l)(i).

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(Br S BB AARKEIIR)

21 B2 RERERE (&

d) RENEERAR (&)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

At f#fE

AEER—_E—CK=_F
— 7N ek — B e
b, 3 15 8 () QT Great China
BB AN BR T {E ¢ B (i) A A A
BEAEBNR T —MNF X
AZ+AAHEKNEHEAR
¥ QT Great Chinaz 3 &
BITRAMEBETZRMD ZE
BzHERERE-

UEmBEURGBERL
Ef

R EEURMDAERN
NRFEERFRE M T
1(r) (i) BT 3 3t LA R 1D 7 B
B AR 5T R R
BRYAEBEEREBZK
TEERENRE AT
BEB o

RFERFRE

AT EFEEREAEBRR
SHMSRMEERFEA
MAFERTEEFE (N
BREERIE) - Wik BT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN AAREFIR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount
of reserves (including share premium and
retained profits) available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB986,162,000 (2016: RMB815,723,000).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure with reference
to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there are adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio was 50.2% at 31
December 2017 (2016: 21.4%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

21 B RERERE (&)

d) REHEERAR (F)

(vii) FE 7 IREED
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H - aifts kR FARQAR
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B 17 5 (B M R B m ) 48
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815,723,0007T) °
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AEEEREANERZRERS
REAEERFELENED B
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AEBBREFAERNERE
BARRE URFRAEESKF
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(O] 7 B 4 45 1 62 & AN AR L B0 4
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1o

$%l@ﬂﬂﬁ%|ﬁxg%
BARERE - AR B R R ZIRIF
%@ﬁﬁﬁmk T HEIRAE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to

trade and other receivables and deposits with banks.

Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

U

Trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2017, certain
amounts of sales were related directly to the related
parties (Note 30(b)).

The management considers that related parties
are under influence of the Group’s Controlling
Shareholder, hence no material credit risk exists on
sales to related companies.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit terms. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These trade receivables are
due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

U

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. As
at 31 December 2017, 14.59% (2016: 32.49%) of
the total trade and bills receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer, and 63.8% (2016:
58.13%) of the total trade and bills receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 16.

The Group derecognised bills receivable when
it transferred bank acceptance bills to suppliers
through endorsement. Bill holders in due course
preserve right of recourse against the Group in
case of dishonor of the bills. As at the year ended
31 December 2017, the outstanding bills endorsed
with recourse totaled RMB148,296,000 (2016:
RMB65,099,000), which represents the Group’s
exposure to credit risk. All of these bills are due
within one year.

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Br=EHEAN AARKESITR)

28 TRIEREER QA FE
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31 December 2017 ZT—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br S BB AARKEIIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 €RIEMREE N A F¥{E

(continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills
issued by major banks or banks with qualified rating
in the PRC and thus considers that the credit risk
associated with such bank acceptance bills to be
insignificant. The Group had not suffered any losses
in this respect during the year.

The Group does not provide financial guarantee
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

(i) Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk
by placing deposits with financial institutions with
established credit ratings. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management does not expect
any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 ZE—+F+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AN AAREFIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 €RIEMEE N AF¥E

==
—==]

(continued) (4

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b)

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow and all the financial
liabilities are with maturities within one year or repayable
on demand as at 31 December 2017.

The following tables show the remaining scheduled
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period):

REBEERR (F)

HRFIESRBER —FKNE
WEER_ZT—tF+ A
=+—HEZXEE HAKE
WAERESRABEYKRER
BHARBBAREREMRLNE
BT H ©

TRINFARE BN RS HRE
BRNARAUMBARSRENETRE
B (BREANF XK (NEZF
B)BREBERBSHRABITHHN X
APERAEM ) s N BEE R
HIFFIS

Total
Total contractual
contractual undiscounted
undiscounted cash flow/
cash flow/ more than 1
within 1 year year but less Carrying
or on demand than 2 years amount
BRRER
ERAUE BREeRELE
BeRensE,/ BB—F
—FRHEER BREmWE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARB T AREFIT
Bank borrowings RITIEN 1,097,400 - 1,078,119
Trade and other payables B REMENFRIA 2,830,117 = 2,830,117
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—LF+
—A=+—H 3,927,517 - 3,908,236
Bank borrowings RITER 336,665 - 335,432
Trade and other payables B REAMENFRIA 2,592,781 = 2,592,781
At 31 December 2016 NZF—RF
+=ZA=+—H 2,929,446 - 2,928,213
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31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, the Group does not obtain any bank borrowings at
variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details
of the interest rates and terms of bank borrowings are
disclosed in Note 21.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give
rise to loan balances, cash balances, receivables, and
payables that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and
RMB.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(i) Exposure to currency risk

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k&

SHEERIN AARER)

28 TRIEREER QA FE

(&)

d) E¥ER (&)

The following table details the Group’s major

exposure at the end of each reporting period to

currency risk arising from recognised assets and

liabilities denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the Group to which they

relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of

the exposure are shown in Renminbi,

translated

using the spot rate at the end of each reporting

period.

Cash and cash equivalents & RIREEEY

Trade and other receivables Z 5 K £ fth & Ue 718
Trade and other payables
Bank loans and borrowings

Gross exposure to
currency risk

Notional amounts of

exchange rate derivatives
- Forward contracts

— Option contracts

Net exposure to
currency risk

BHRAMENHKA

RITEFRRMER

ERRRAERER

[ & O 4 R A58
2EEH
—EHAH
—HESY

ERRRAEFE

usbD
E

2017
“E—t&
RMB’000
AR¥ETR

() EXmEpEEE

TRANAEBRERS
HIRMAXHNEEERE

2 2EEWRRIHEC
REEMNBENEEEHN
AEBHINEEEAINE
E¥AEMEL H2®E

E’Jﬁﬁ:. [\ B A A R ¥ 5|
R 3 BA R e B R 9 B HA
fE R

RMB

AR®

2016 2017 2016
“E-tF —T-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T N

RMB'000
AREBTTL

569 625 9,445 881
326,338 66,384 89,567 -
(817,262)  (1,656,508) (50,517) -
(148,980) (20,395) = (50,000)
(639,335)  (1,609,894) 48,495 (49,119)
4,519,511 901,810 - -

841,866 17,342 - -
3,677,645 884,468 - -
3,880,176 (708,084) 48,495 (49,119)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 €RIEMREE N A F¥{E

(continued) (&
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d E¥E (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBE ST

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

2017
ZE—tF
Increase/
(decrease) Effect
in foreign  Effect on on other
exchange profit after component

rates tax  of equity
SHEEZ B
R/ HEHE HEBIH
(Th) &BIXE %
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR

TR TR E BB R
(RRBEF)RBELAE
BEAERS EL BB (A E
1 B B S5 0 78 45 2 5 R 4
R B BB 7 B A
B BRAA AR E
RETE) IS -

2016
—E-RE
Increase/
(decrease) Effect
in foreign Effect on on other
exchange  profit after component

rates tax of equity
HIE B iR
R/ HEBR AtBHH
(TR) ENFE TE

% RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT

Usb xT 5 164,907 -
(5)  (164,907) =
RMB AR 5 2,026 =
(5) (2,026) =

Results of the analysis above represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
as at the end of the respective reporting periods for
presentation purposes.
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31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

28 TRIEREER QA FE

y —y
=
(/&5\

(d) E¥EK (&)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i)

HBEZH (E)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency at the end of the respective reporting
periods, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis
for 2016.

(e) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. Unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

A BURE DA THRERINE
EXNEHCAREHAE
AEBRNE mEPRAFRE
7R 5% (8 TED e SMEEE TR B ) 2
TE BREAKEARRME
PRI R W IR - B
FIBEAE KA L ERAIRE
BRI E R IIE - DA
I B IR BN ER B 75
RAMBAKEZINERE
ERZER-DMIINE T
—ANEFHRNELEETT

(e) A¥E

U]

B FEIEYEHTA

TREVNASLEE ST AN
ANEE ZESRTENR
HEHRBEEEELGTE
I 5> 48 A B B 75 ) 5 ZE Al
FIBFAFEFEMART
M= AFERE - FQF
B 20 ENERTIIKRE
WTEE T AT AR
MABRENEZERERE
E

o BRIGE: EERER
# AR (I35 8 B 18
FI& 2 o B B RE B 45
S B R 1) AT B
AFE
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31 December 2017 —T—+%F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 €RIEMREE N A F¥{E

(continued) (&
(e) Fair value (continued) () AFE(£E)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEIRHYLHTA
(continued) (#%&)
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o EHoHE:FAE R
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which AEE (AR EDE R
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant 1R B R e A 4 ) B
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are RERT AT EREG A
inputs for which market data are not available HEFENANFEE 0]
Bl ASUR B EMISE
B HY A BUE
° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using ° BR3GE  FREATT
significant unobservable inputs R ARBAENAFE
(=
The Group has a team headed by the assistant NEEBE — BB ISEEB)
chief financial officer performing valuations for BESANE S e T A
the financial instruments, including other financial (BFESBEEANTEEZELF
assets which are categorised into Level 2 of the [E o H & & E ) #
fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the T1HE - Z B E RS
chief financial officer. A valuation report with analysis A BE SR A o PAR SR HAK 4=
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared at Bt AN EA=ZEH SN
the end of each reporting period, and is reviewed N ERE  WHEISEEL
and approved by the chief financial officer. = L& o

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2017 categorised into
REZB-tF+-A=Zt-ANDVEFELER
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

“B-tF EH1 B2 E &3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARETR ARBT T

Assets: BE:
Derivative financial assets PTEERAEE
— Foreign currency option —SNEHES D
contracts 7,073 - 7,073 -
- Other financial assets —HEeREE 873,486 - 873,486 =
Liabilities: a%:
Derivative financial liabilities ~ T4 4R EE
— Foreign currency forward —INEREIAH
contracts (17,555) - (17,555) -
— Foreign currency option —HNEHRES LD
contracts (434) - (434) -
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31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 €RIEMREE N A F¥{E

(continued) (#4&)
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) AFE(£&)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () ERFEIFEYEHTA
(continued) (%)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2016 categorised into

R-B—7%E+-A=+-ANATEHESEA

2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZE-RF B &1 [Z 2 B3
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Assets: EE:
Derivative financial assets 74 & @l & &=
- Foreign currency —HNE HRRE S A
option contracts 126,867 - 126,867 -
The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts ROMER B S “/7 R

TETJL&@%KH%#& HR R H

(E RE— 45 M 3K
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period PERETE - WA ")jl: 1A

and comparing to the contractual rates, with the ﬁiﬁﬂ—rﬁﬁ SEEMRERA
=

in Level 2 is determined by using the forward

resulting value discounted back to the present
value.

B R 25NME B S R R
BERAMEN R4 — £

The fair value of foreign exchange option contracts
in Level 2 is determined by using the Black-

ﬁJ o A 70 5%
Scholes-Merton model. The observable inputs for BIRE Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂgﬁ%&
valuation were described in Note 18. BWAR TE%YB/\‘\W RL18 -
The fair value of non financial assets in Level 2 is B2 MEEMNDTE

%RFH RBERERERAE

2y =& d:
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant HE PTFRRRT = i;K 8% _;F&
government yield curve as at the end of each H?EE’]@F%?IT,\H&A/ Gk ?

MERENRBEEERE

determined using discounted cash flow models.

reporting period plus an adequate constant credit
spread.
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31 December 2017 —2—+F+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& RBAE1ERIN AARESR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017.

29 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017

not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

28 TRIEREER A FE
(%)

(e) DFE(£&)

(i) IEH R FESRR T BEE
REEGBHAFE

7R ER BlIR A AN S B SR AN A
EreR TANEmESRR
R_FB=tFT—_HA=1T+
B R FELEEANER -

29 EiE
(a) BAREIE

R_EB—+tH+_-_A=+—H
e R B & B0 B 7 Rk I R At
REENEREAENAT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —ET—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT

Contracted for 251 %)
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31 December 2017 ZE—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

29 Commitments (continued) 29 H&iIE (&
(b) Operating lease payments (b) REHEMNIR

As at 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease R-_E—+F+_HB=+—8"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were BIE A& E 4 E Y

payable as follows: RAREEEERNHBELOT :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥ET T

Within 1 year 1FE R 3,214 1,969

After 1 year but within 5 years 15 & B R5F A 192 1,477

3,406 3,446
The Group leases a number of properties under AEERBEEHEONEESLE
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial ME-BHH—RYVFBE1E2
period of 1 to 2 years, at the end of which period all F BB RAIRELEBRER
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes fER - MO T EEIAES -

contingent rentals.

2017555 E#KPE (£E)EBERLTF

289



Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2017 ZT—+F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Ek BB 1EHRIN - LAAREHIR)

30 Material related party transactions 30 EXBEBAIRS
In addition to the related party information disclosed PRt ERIIN REBFTZATER
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered iR 5

into the following significant related party transactions:

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

BEMAME 8 B2 5 E Y B R

— Heyuan CK* (‘BB Al i85 B flr i Oa IR ) AR A &) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

—mRAER ([AErBEERMRE CTR)BERAAE]) FH {a] 58 5 S AR 42

— Guangzhou CK Telecom Limited (“Guangzhou CK”) Controlled by key management of the Group

(BN BERTREER AT
—BMNARERMRZERRAR ([EMEAT]) HASEFZEREA S

— Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(‘MEL B AR AR

—HERRRERQA] ([MELRERE]) B fA] 28 28 S A 1

— C-Flex Electronic (Heyuan) Ltd.*(“C-Flex Electronic”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(AEEF OCTR)BRAR
TEFOTR)BRARD(TAEETF]) B fA] 28 28 5 A 2

— CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

—CK Telecom Asia Pacific Ltd A2 B ST A

— Chengdu CK Technology Limited* (“Chengdu CK”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(‘BEBFERI BB R A A

—BE TR R AR A A ([EFEA]) M AT S A

— C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd. (“Huangshi C-Flex”) Controlled by Mr. He Ningning
(BEAAEEFRIEERARA)

—HAREEFMRARAR(I5AAEE]) M AT S A

— Huizhou Youhua Micro Electronic Technology Company Controlled by Mr. He Ningning

Limited (“Huizhou Youhua”)

(BMEEMETHZERRAF)

—BMNREMEFRRBRAA ([EMRE]) FH {n] 8 B8 S AR 42
— Nexmax Technology Co., Ltd (“Newmax Technology”) The associate of the Group
(“FrEE R AR R A R
—ERMBERNBRAR ([FRER]) NEE B QT
*  The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference @ ZENRZEB o EXHEEHR
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. EZ o ZENTNERBE AR -

2 90 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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30 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in Note 6 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 7, is as
follows:

Short-term employee benefits 52 A& B & A
Post-employment benefits BE R & 18 7
Equity compensation benefits s HE A (2 43 A

The above remuneration to key management personnel
is included in “staff costs” (Note 4(b)).

30 EXBMAERS (&

() TEEEAESHMH

TEEERABREAEEXH
BEREARE HEREHAKHE
B RN BB T 2B A
T -BREARAES-

AEBTEEBAEFHERE
ENARRESE (MK E6F 3
BIRETE=FMESR (20K

A7) AT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBETTT
6,835 5,146
66 69
1,379 609
8,280 5,824

TRFEEBAEHFMENTE
TA] (KIsE4(bD)) °
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30 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

30 EXBMAERS (&

(b) HEBSNRZ

Sales of products to
— Heyuan CK

Purchases of products from
— C-Flex Electronic
— Huangshi C-Flex
— Van Telecom PRC
— Huizhou Youhua

Rental expenses to
— Chengdu CK
— Van Telecom PRC

EmET
— AR A]

ERHA
—AEEF
—EEmE
— M B
— R

NEERXT
—REB P Al
— MR E

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF il s
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBT T
78,821 70,219
78,821 70,219
15,937 6,387
2,899 =

9 =

25,090 =
43,935 6,387

124 128

2,452 588
2,576 716
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30 Material related party transactions 0 EXBHAERS (££)
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERAES S &EgR
At 31 December 2017, the Group had the following R-ZE—+F+=—A=+—8"
balances with related parties. NEE BT BTN
(i) Due from related parties () FEHEET
2017 2016
—E—t& —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ETTT
Trade-related g 5 HHE
Trade receivables 2 5 I W5RIA
— Heyuan CK — AR A 21,893 3,894
(i) Due to related parties (i) B
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥ETTT
Trade-related g 5 1He
Trade and bills payable B RNRIBERENERE
— C-Flex Electronic —7FHEE 391 1,170
- Van Telecom PRC — LR 6 -
— Huangshi C-Flex — =AML 3,267 =
— Huizhou Youhua —EMRE 20,670 -
24,334 1,170
The amounts due from/to related parties as at 31 R-_BE—+tF+_A=1+—
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were Ak — X FE+ A
expected to be recovered/repaid within one year. E+— B FEU S FE{T Bk
FRIAEEHRB{R —FE ARG
SIEE-
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30 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(d) Operating lease payments

(e)

As at 31 December 2017, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable to Chengdu CK and Van Telecom PRC as

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

30 EXBMAERS (&

(d) E&EBAEN

R-_ZR-THNE = E
RETABELEHOENK
PG A] R ME R BB P B R R 2R

follows: EBERNKBRBEQOT
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Within 1 year 1FE R 1,062 1,062
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B EBREER 131 1,193
1,193 2,255

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 2 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
continuing connected transactions

The transactions in relation to sales of products to
Heyuan CK, purchases of products from Van Telecom
PRC and C-Flex Electronic as disclosed above constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Directors Report.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(e)

AEBRELEHOEESZ R
ME-BO—RINF BEIE2
F A GRARBEORREH
B - HASTERAEE -

RFHEMERZAEN EHRA
HYIE A

E X EE 2 B R AR A
HEEM  AMELZRER P E LA
EEFRBEEMNRIBXE
BHARZMAERARES L
AR (TEWARA]) F14AE
MEENHEI AR ERE
X5 LRAE14AR IR E
ZRBENEFTSMmE [F5EH
BRH] —fe
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31 R EEME M BAARR R

31 Company level statement of financial

position
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K1t AR T AR®T T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KEKN B AT 18,670 11,965
Investments in associate B g= i /NE] 258,318 =
Amount due from a subsidiary &4 — [E B B A & Z08 522,761 554,987
799,749 566,952
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary &Yz — &[T B A 7 FE 335,963 351,258
Cash and cash equivalents HeNREEEY 182,955 4,357
518,918 355,615
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables g 5 N H At e 5K I8 2,671 4,958
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 15t — I B B A B FR A 271,757 =
274,428 4,958
Net current assets REEERE 244,490 350,657
Total assets less current WEERABARS
liabilities 1,044,239 917,609
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital fi&% AR 27(c) 8,895 8,605
Reserves 1 27(a) 1,035,344 909,004
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,044,239 917,609

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 19 March 2018.

He Ningning

Directors

Wang Jiangiang

EFEEgRN_T-\F=RAthB#&%

JE D FF AT 3

Gk

Eaie:

BE=x
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

32 Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in Note 1. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these
financial statements.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances
for trade and other receivables by assessing the
recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances annually.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

32 EREFHlEH K H K

st LA g LNER L EMER (2
RARERBEARSBERKEM
MAERY) REERFEFNGE

EZEABERNER FEZFTH
SRPE A Y A i B E e T BARA R R A
EAT2RELHEERBREDN
BREASBHULSEVHEHRREH
EEMNEAR -T2 BERHEIR
Mt - ANEBMEE A TEEES
BRS RAmB U E W B HRRAEA
B A B B H T R fh A e

(a) EZRHEAMEBKRIERE

ﬁEILL REEELKE

R 2 5 & E g B K
EMT%@&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬁ

@%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ“ (RS
#ﬁﬁ%l oL B B R R A B Bk
ANarug e - Eﬂatéié%liiiﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ
SRR R - WIBHA R ) 01
FERTRE REEERRTE
T%&ﬁmr% R IH A BRI E -
My EHETESEENRE
%ﬁOK%lﬂié%ﬁﬁﬁ@
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

32 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

()

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. Any change in the
assumptions would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals of write-
down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net
assets value. The Group reassesses these estimates
annually.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to

recoverable amount.

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Br=EHEAN AARKESITR)

32 ERGFHEE RAM (&)

(b)

(c)

FENREFE

FENAIZERFEINAETEE
BBz m At EER G E =
PRI AR BGETTIHE PR B BV 1l
AR - Z B EET D ER B AT
AEHERLUMEERNBE
B - R TR B 0k
BB E F R AR LA 17 B HOR
BN A MR ER YR E
AEENEERE AKEEF
B &S AE

M BERRERE

fid 15 5 BN B E A BR T {E AJ BE
AW E - BIZEER AR
[ERE] XA EBRDF R
BEBE EENE@ESE
EITER UFFEATREEER
BE THEENKEE - BFF
IBERNEHBRZEEENT
SRR (E A e AW EIRS - B
BESETRERD - M3 E
AT REESHRERNKRE S
B e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

32 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to level of
sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales
revenue and amount of operating costs.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

33 Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2017, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party of the Group to be QT Investment,

which is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling

party of the Group to be Mr. He Ningning.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
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B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

34
standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2017 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

(R SEEBIN AAREIIR)

BE-Z—t+tH&+=HA
=+ —BHLFECEMMENS
REMMIERT - T ERI KR
BWrogse

BEHEYBRRTIZE S BE
RN ESEREMZAEER R
el 2 Al - X FAEFT R R] E AR
BE_T—tF+-A=+—HI
FE R AL BRI F I HRK
WARRM AP EFEIAT A EAR
SEMERE-

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RIS BHR 2 EMEH

S HBEEXN

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

B R B HS R 5 YR R B 1655 B &P AT V& AV 7

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

BRI IS S RIER 2/ T A

Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and measurement of
Share-based payment transactions

BSR BT 7 88 & SE R F 235 (18ETA) » AR 17 REEH AKX 589
DR EE

IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance Consideration

BB B3 & it EE B & F 220  SMNEX B RFANHL1E

IFRS 16, Leases

BRI s S ERIE 165 HE

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BRI BREZRELEE @R EHEE S TNHEEHL

1 January 2018

—2-N\F—A—H
1 January 2018
—E-\F—-A-H

1 January 2018

—E-)\F—A—H

1 January 2018
—T—-N\F—H—H
1 January 2019
—E—NF—H—H
1 January 2019
—T—-—NF—H—H
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018.The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, IAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, including the measurement of impairment for financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, IFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements
of IAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to
use the exemption from restating comparative information and
will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017

(Br S BB AARKEIR)

4 BE_ZFE—ttFE+=H

=t—-HLEFECHEMMES
REMWIBE] - #Ta] AR 2
BHAETE (&)

REBEEFG L EEE] R3] E8

AZERGRAERABEASFRKNTE
R E - e SRS B2 A5 ER
METHHEAESEFHTBERERE
KERZE BRBHXENE—X
BN T X il o RS Bt B BR B 75 4R
HARER|FON R BIR I B R ELERE
165 EIT B AEDE T
BRARMNZERA ZERTESLS
BATR - ARESETKRAFTETD
ERASERMERIAISERET
MRZEE T XERRAEBE
E_FE-—NFERA=F+HIA~MEA
ZHH B EER Al ee g BT —
TEE - AKETEeERAES
TR ERE BRABEE BHEEZ
ZRAERERARZTFEREAN-
BRI R EEREIR T A
B B B 7 3 ZE B B O5R R B 78
T AEEFE ﬁ?\?%ﬂ/‘]fﬁﬁﬁ—ﬂ”
B ERFE3R &M T A
BRKEE BB BEmELEAFE
Fﬁ%U\’\* RtEemEENITR

PREGTECHEERE RS F
@EJr H—HHE BEEREEHREEL
IR/ W)\HIﬁﬁﬂ]mz*z@.ﬁ’YA*
EREREAERRKRILERS
@Elﬂ&iwﬂﬁﬁ”‘ﬁ&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
Fo

BRSBTS SR A5 B SOMM — T — N\
E—H—E%Zfﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘*ZifﬁﬁﬁF?
EPREB - AEBEASRABRE
JILBEMA R —F—/\F— A
_E'ZTE@E@%H:M%&EM\TE{T@F



Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR BT RE

31 December 2017 —E—+F+—-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (kBB 1EEAIN LA ARESIR)

34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

e  The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument
is classified as FVTOCI then interest revenue,
impairment and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for
trading and the entity irrevocably elects to designate
that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is
designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income
on that security will be recognised in profit or loss.
Gains, losses and impairments on that security
will be recognised in other comprehensive income
without recycling.
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (continued)

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost and FVTPL
will continue with their respective classification and

measurements upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under IFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from IAS 39, except that IFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income
(without reclassification to profit or loss). The Group
currently does not have any financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will not
have any impact on the Group on adoption of IFRS 9.

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it
will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur
before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an
entity is required to recognise and measure either a
12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the application
of the expected credit loss model will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses. However, a more detailed
analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will replace the existing revenue standards, IAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in Note 1(u). Currently, revenue from the sale of goods
is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. IFRS 15 identifies 3 situations
in which control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced;
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(@) Timing of revenue recognition (continueq)

(a) YRR (&)

(b)

(c) When the entity’s performance does not create c) BEEB I EHNVERYHE
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and Em=EERAEEE "
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for Bz BRI S Tk 2EH
performance completed to date. T3k E B B A 1T HE B o

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under IFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being when control
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard
is not likely to have significant impact on how it
recognises revenue.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the Group’s products, the Group estimates the level
of expected returns and makes an adjustment against
revenue and cost of sales.

The Group has assessed that the adoption of IFRS
15 will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have a
right of return.

(b)
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(b) Sales with a right of return (continueq)

However, the new requirement to recognise separately a
return asset for the products expected to be returned will
impact the presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the Group currently adjusts the
carrying amounts of inventory for the expected returns,
instead of recognising a separate asset.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect
transition method for the adoption of IFRS 15 and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018.

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 1(k), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessee.
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continueqd)

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in Note 29(b),
at 31 December 2017 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
RMB3,406,000 for properties, the majority of which is payable
within 1 year.
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continueqd)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Group has decided not to early adopt
IFRS 16 in its 2018 consolidated financial statements. Now
the Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of the new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application.
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